
 

 

 AGENDA 
CITY OF ROCKLIN PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: October 17, 2017 

TIME:  6:30 PM 

PLACE:    Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

www.rocklin.ca.us 

 

 

MEETING PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS OF DECORUM 

Citizens may address the Planning Commission on any items on the agenda, when the item is considered.  Citizens 

wishing to speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand and stepping to the 

podium when requested to do so.  Although not required, speakers are requested to identify themselves by stating their 

name and city of residence for the official record. 

 

For items not listed on the agenda, any person may do so under “Citizens Addressing the Planning Commission on non-

agenda items.” Three to five-minute time limits may be placed on citizen comments.  As a reminder, the Brown Act 

does not permit the Commission to take action on items not on the agenda. 

 

All remarks shall be addressed to the Commission as a body and not to any member thereof, or to staff, or to the public. 

No person, other than a member of the Commission, and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into 

any discussion without the permission of the presiding officer. 

 

Whenever any group of persons wishes to address the Commission on the same subject matter, it shall be proper for 

the Chairman to request that a spokesperson be chosen. 

 

Any person who disrupts the meeting of the Commission, may be barred by the Chairman from further audience before 

the Commission during that meeting. 

 

WRITINGS RECEIVED AFTER AGENDA POSTING 

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Planning Commission less 

than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at City Hall, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, during normal 

business hours. These writings will also be available for review at the planning commission meeting in the public access 

binder located on the table at the back of the Council Chambers. If you have questions related to this agenda, please 

call 916-625-5160. 

 

WRITTEN MATERIAL INTRODUCED INTO THE RECORD 

Any citizen wishing to introduce written material into the record at the hearing on any item is requested to provide a 

copy of the written material to the Planning Department prior to the hearing date so that the material may be 

distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Rocklin encourages those with disabilities to 

participate fully in the public hearing process.  If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in 

our public hearing process or programs, please contact our office at (916) 625-5160 well in advance of the public 

hearing or program you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. 

 

COURT CHALLENGES AND APPEAL PERIOD 

Court challenges to any public hearing items may be limited to only those issues which are raised at the public hearing 

described in the notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the public hearing. (Government 

Code Section 65009) 

 

Packet Pg. 1



Agenda of October 17, 2017 

Page 2 

 

There is a 10-day appeal period for most Planning Commission decisions.  However, a Planning Commission approval of 

a tentative parcel map has a 15-day appeal period.  Appeals can be made by any interested party upon payment of the 

appropriate fee and submittal of the appeal request to the Rocklin City Clerk or the Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin. 

 

ELECTRONIC PRESENTATIONS 

All persons with electronic presentations for public meetings will be required to bring their own laptop or other form of 

standalone device that is HDMI or VGA compatible.  It is further recommended that presenters arrive early to test their 

presentations.  The City is not responsible for the compatibility or operation of non-city devices or the functionality of 

non-city presentations. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

Any person interested in an agenda item may contact the Planning Staff prior to the meeting date, at 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 or by phoning (916) 625-5160 for further information. 

 

POSTING OF AGENDA 

In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) this agenda was posted on the City’s bulletin board at City 

Hall, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, and City of Rocklin website at www.rocklin.ca.us.  

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Meeting called to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Minutes 

a. October 3, 2017 Minutes 

5. Correspondence 

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items 

 

CONSENT ITEMS  

 

 None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

7. WHITNEY RANCH PHASE III SUBDIVISION 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, GPA2017-0003 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, PDG2017-0004 

REZONE, Z2017-0005 

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, SD2017-0007 

 

This application is a request for approval of a General Plan Amendment, a General Development Plan 

Amendment, a Rezone, and a Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map to modify various land use designations and 

zoning, and to further subdivide five existing parcels totaling approximately 41.2 acres into 208 single-family 

residential lots,fifteen  lettered lots for landscaping, access, and utilities. 

 

The project area is comprised of five Units within the existing Whitney Ranch Phase 1 and Phase 2 development 

areas specifically: Unit 1, APN 017-171-030, the northwest corner of Wildcat Blvd & Bridlewood Dr.; Unit 42, 017-

177-011,  the southeast corner of Painted Pony Ln. and Whitney Ranch Parkway; Units 44A & 44B, APN 017-174-

Packet Pg. 2



Agenda of October 17, 2017 

Page 3 

 

045, the northeast corner of Old Ranchhouse Road & Whitney Ranch Parkway;  and Unit 55C, and a portion of 

APN 017-182-018, northeast of the terminus of Painted Pony Ln. 

 

An Environmental Impact Report for the North West Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) project was previously 

approved by the Rocklin City Council through Resolution No. 2002-230 and an Addendum to the Northwest 

Rocklin Annexation EIR was approved in 2008 per City Council Resolution 2008-252. The project site is not on any 

of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 

 

The owner is Sunset Ranchos Investors, LLC; the applicant is Ubora Engineering & Planning. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council  Approval of a 

Resolution Amending the General Plan Land Use Designations for Multiple Sites in the Whitney Ranch / 

Sunset Ranchos Planning Area (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / GPA2017-0003) 

 

b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council Approval of an 

Ordinance Approving the Twelfth Amendment to the North West Rocklin Annexation Area General 

Development Plan, Replacing and Superseding Ordinance 1060 and Retaining Ordinance 932, and Rezoning 

Multiple Sites in the Whitney Ranch / Sunset Ranchos Planning Area (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / 

PDG2017-0004 And Z2017-0005) 

 

c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council Approval of a 

Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / SD2017-0007) 

 

 

8. STANFORD PLAZA PHASE 1C 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2017-0009 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL2017-0006 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to divide a vacant 1.79-acre site within the 

Stanford Plaza retail development into two lots (Parcel 1 = 0.75 acres; and Parcel 2 = 1.04 acres) and a Design 

Review to construct two buildings and associated parking lot and landscaping. The subject property is located on 

the southwest corner of Sunset Boulevard and Pebble Creek Drive.  APN 364-090-019. 

 

A review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has determined that a 

Categorical Exemption is the appropriate level of environmental review for this project, pursuant to Section 

15332 - Infill Development Projects. 

 

The applicant is Borges Architectural Group.  The property owner is Eureka Development Company. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Stanford 

Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009 And DL2017-0006) 

 

b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (Stanford Plaza 

Phase 1C / DR2017-0009) 

 

c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Tentative Parcel Map (Stanford 

Plaza Phase 1C / DL2017-0006) 

 

 

 

Packet Pg. 3



Agenda of October 17, 2017 

Page 4 

 

9. VILLAGES AT CIVIC CENTER (CIVIC CENTER PLAN) 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, PDG2017-0005 

 

This application is a request for approval of a General Development Plan Amendment to amend the 

development standards applicable to the RD-8 zone of the Rocklin Civic Center General Development 

Plan (Ordinance 745 and amended by Ordinance 899). 

 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council 

through Resolution No. 2005-306. The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of 

the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 

 

The applicant and property owner is Greg Judkins of Riverland Homes, Inc. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of an Ordinance 

Amending the  Rocklin Civic Center General Development Plan, Ordinances 745 and 899, to Modify Certain 

Development Standards Within the PD-8 Zone District  (Villages At Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center 

(PDG2017-0005) 

 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

9. Informational Items and Presentations 

a. None 

10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

11. Reports from City Staff 

12. Adjournment 

 

 

Packet Pg. 4



City of Rocklin  Page 1 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 3, 2017  

CITY OF ROCKLIN  
MINUTES OF THE  

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

October 3, 2017 
Rocklin Council Chambers 

Rocklin Administration Building 
3970 Rocklin Road 

(www. rocklin.ca.us) 
 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order at  6:31p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Whitmore .   
3. Roll Call  
 
 Chairman Martinez    
 Commissioner McKenzie - Excused 

Commissioner Sloan 
 Vice Chairman Whitmore  
 Commissioner Vass  
  
 Others Present: 
 

DeeAnne Gillick, Deputy City Attorney  
Bret Finning, Planning Services Manager 
Nate Anderson, Senior Planner 
Laura Webster, Director of Long Range Planning 
Dave Palmer, City Engineer 

 Terry Stemple, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 About  15 others 
 
4. Minutes –     

a. Minutes of August 10, 2017 were approved as submitted. 
5. Correspondence  -   None 
6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items –  None 
  
CONSENT ITEMS  
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7. TENTATIVE MAP DEADLINES AND TIME EXTENSIONS AMENDMENT 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT, ZOA2017-0004 
 
The proposed project would amend certain sections of Title 16 - Subdivisions of the Rocklin Municipal Code to 
bring obsolete provisions into compliance with the California Subdivision Map Act. 
 

Packet Pg. 5

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 2 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 3, 2017  

The proposed revisions to the Rocklin Municipal Code are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not 
result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they authorize 
the construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is 
exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 15061(b)(3), 15262, and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
The proposed Amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code was initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be 
effective City-wide. 

Nate Anderson, Senior Planner presented the staff report. 
 
The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 
 

1. Potential findings for approval of multi- year extensions of time. 
2. Market force considerations 

 
The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  There being none, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Vass and seconded by Commissioner Whitmore , Resolution Of The Planning 
Commission  Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval Of An Ordinance Of The City Council To Modify 
Certain Sections Of Title 16 Of The Rocklin Municipal Code Regarding Tentative Map Deadlines, Time Extensions, 
And Vesting Tentative Maps (ZOA2017-0004) was approved by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Vass, Whitmore, Sloan, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: McKenzie 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
8. KENNELS AMENDMENT 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT, ZOA2017-0005 
 
The proposed project would amend certain sections of Title 6 – Animals and Title 17 - Zoning of the Rocklin 
Municipal Code to allow animal kennels in certain zoning districts. 
 
The proposed revisions to the Rocklin Municipal Code are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not 
result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they authorize 
the construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is 
exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 15061(b)(3), 15262, and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 
 
The proposed Amendment to the Rocklin Municipal Code was initiated by the City of Rocklin and would be 
effective City-wide. 

 
Nate Anderson, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 
 

1. Zoning where kennels would be permitted 

Packet Pg. 6

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 3 
Planning Commission Minutes  October 3, 2017  

2. Noise monitoring 
3. Revocation of permits if circumstances change 
4. Time limits on permits 
5. Maximum number of animals in a kennel  
6. Waste area clean-up 
7.  
Possible building modifications necessary to address waste clean-up 
8. Design Review requirements 

 
 
The hearing was opened to the public for comment.  
 

1. Paul, Jenny & Beth Reiken, owner of a proposed kennel, addressed the Commission giving a brief 
explanation of their proposed business if the RMC Amendment is approved. 

 
There being no further comments, the hearing was closed. 
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Vass  and seconded by Commissioner Whitmore , Resolution Of The Planning 
Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval Of An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Rocklin To Modify Sections Of Title 17 Of The Rocklin Municipal Code Regarding Kennels (ZOA2017-0005) was 
approved by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Vass, Whitmore, Sloan, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: McKenzie 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. Informational Items and Presentations – None 
10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners – None 
11. Reports from City Staff - None 
12. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business brought before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at  7:06 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Terry Stemple 

 Planning Commission Secretary 
 

Approved at the regularly scheduled 
Meeting of   
 

Packet Pg. 7

Agenda Item #4.a.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
(Units 1, 42 & 44A, 44B, and 55C) 

 
General Plan Amendment – GPA2017-0003 

General Development Plan Amendment – PDG2017-0004 
Rezone – Z2017-0005 

Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map – SD2017-0007 
 

October 17, 2017 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING CITY 
COUNCIL  APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN LAND USE 
DESIGNATIONS FOR MULTIPLE SITES IN THE WHITNEY RANCH / SUNSET RANCHOS PLANNING 
AREA (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / GPA2017-0003) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE TWELFTH AMENDMENT TO THE 
NORTH WEST ROCKLIN ANNEXATION AREA GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, REPLACING AND 
SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE 1060 AND RETAINING ORDINANCE 932, AND REZONING MULTIPLE 
SITES IN THE WHITNEY RANCH / SUNSET RANCHOS PLANNING AREA (Whitney Ranch Phase III 
Subdivision / PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP (Whitney Ranch Phase III 
Subdivision / SD2017-0007) 
 
Proposal/Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a General Plan Amendment, a General 
Development Plan Amendment, a Rezone, and a Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map to 
subdivide five existing parcels totaling approximately 41.2 acres into 208 single-family 

Packet Pg. 8

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 2 
 
residential lots, fifteen lettered right-of-way landscape lots to be dedicated to the City, one 
utility/emergency access/landscape lot to be dedicated to the City (Lot C, Unit 1A), and one 
lettered landscape lot to be maintained by a homeowners association (HOA) (Lot G, Unit 44B).  
 
Ownership/Location 
 
The owner is Sunset Ranchos Investors, LLC; the applicant is Ubora Engineering & Planning. 
 
The subject site is comprised of five Units within the existing Whitney Ranch Phase 1 and Phase 
2 development areas including Units 1, 42, 44A, 44B and 55C. APNs 017-171-030, 017-177-011, 
017-174-045, and a portion of 017-182-018. See pink shaded areas in Figure 1 – Location Map. 
 

Figure 1 – Location Map 

 
  

Packet Pg. 9

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 3 
 
Background and Site Characteristics 
 
Whitney Ranch Phase III is an infill phase of Whitney Ranch to create residential subdivisions on 
five remaining large lots within Phase I and Phase II and make related land use designation and 
zoning modifications. The original zoning was established in July, 2002 by Ordinance 858 that 
pre-zoned the Northwest Rocklin Annexation Area (PDG-99-02). The large lot map for Whitney 
Ranch Phase I, processed as Liberty Hill, was approved by Resolution 2004-68 (SD-2003-02). 
Subsequently, revisions were approved as part of Whitney Ranch Phase II that included the 
current large lot parcels (SD-2006-06) and zoning (PDG-99-02E) approved in September, 2008 
by Resolution 2008-254 and Ordinance 941. Since then, there have been a number of 
subsequent amendments to the Northwest Rocklin General Development Plan, the most recent 
being Ordinance 1060 approved in November 2016, which amended the Trip Caps for the Plan 
area. 
 
The five Units that comprise the project site have been mostly vacant for decades having once 
been part of the Joel Parker Whitney ranch in the late 1800’s and early 1900’s. The project sites 
support native and non-native grasses on rolling terrain. Generally, the Units slope to the west 
and south into the existing drainage areas that are tributary to Pleasant Grove Creek. 
 
The Units are generally adjacent to existing and future single-family neighborhoods in 
Northwest Rocklin (Spring Valley) and Whitney Ranch (Units 25, 28, 41, 45, 52, 56, 55AB, and 
57), and to open space parcels. 
 
Figures 2 and 3 provide existing General Plan designations and Zoning for the subject sites and 
surrounding properties. 
  

Packet Pg. 10

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 4 
 

Figure 2 – General Plan Map Excerpt 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Project Site – Unit 55C 

Project Site – Unit 44B 

Project Site – Units 42 & 44A 

Project Site- Unit 1 

Packet Pg. 11

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 5 
 

Figure 3 – Zoning Map Excerpt 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Plan Amendment, General Development Plan Amendment and Rezone 
 
The project requests a General Plan Amendment, General Development Plan Amendment, and 
Rezone for each of the five Units to allow their proposed subdivision into single family 
residential lots, landscape parcels and an open space parcel. See Table 1 for the existing and 
proposed changes in land use designations for the five Units. 
  

Zone Districts 
 

RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONES 
 
Density (dwelling units per acre) indicated by numerals in the zone name. 
EXAMPLE PD—1.6 is Planned Development 1.6 units per acre 
 
NON-RESIDENTIAL ZONES 
 
PD-BP—Planned Development Business Professional 
PD-C—Planned Development Commercial 
PD-NH.COMM—Planned Development Neighborhood Commercial 
 
OS—Open Space 

Project Site - Unit 44B 

Project Site – Units 42 & 44A 

Project Site – Unit 1 
Project Site – Unit 55C 

Packet Pg. 12

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 6 
 

Table 1 – Existing and Proposed General Plan Designations and Zoning 

 
The following summarizes by Unit the current land uses, proposed land use changes, and 
provides the approximate acreage: 
 

• Unit 1A conversion of the site of the existing Whitney Ranch information center 
designated for High Density Residential to Medium High Density Residential and PD-12 
(6.2 acres) 

• Unit 1B conversion of the existing City-owned drainage Basin 23 designated for High 
Density Residential to Recreation Conservation and Open Space (2.1 acres) 

• Unit 42 conversion of vacant site designated for Medium High Density Residential to 
Medium Density Residential and PD-5.1C (42 and 44A total of 20.5 acres) 

• Unit 44A conversion of a vacant site designated for Neighborhood Commercial to 
Medium Density Residential and PD-5.1C (42 and 44A total of 20.5 acres) 

• Unit 44B conversion of a vacant site designated for Medium High Density Residential to 
Medium Density Residential and PD-8 (12.3 acres) 

• Unit 55C conversion of a vacant site designated Public/Quasi Public  (originally intended 
to be developed for a small private recreation facility) to Medium Density Residential 
and PD-5 (2.2 acres) 

 
The proposed land use changes for the six Units will result in the following changes to existing 
land use designations in terms of acreage: 
 

• Increase of approximately 2.1 acres of Recreation Conservation designated/Open Space 
zoned land (Unit 1B) 

• Conversion  of approximately 6 acres of High Density Residential designated/Business 
Professional zoned land  to Single Family Residential (Unit 1A) (see further discussion 
below for Unit 1’s land uses) 

• Conversion of approximately 6 acres of Retail Commercial designated/Neighborhood 
Commercial zoned land (Unit 44A) to Single Family Residential 

Existing Proposed Existing Proposed
1A MHDR PD-12
1B R-C OPEN SPACE
42 MHDR MDR PD-12 PD-5.1C

 44A RC MDR PD-Nh C PD-5.1C
44B MHDR MDR PD-10 PD-8
55C PQP MDR REC. FAC. PD-5

* Unit 1 GDP Zoning designation PD-BP.  General Plan Update 
changed land use designation to HDR.

PD-BP/HDR*HDR

DEV. 
UNIT

GENERAL PLAN ZONING

Packet Pg. 13

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 7 
 

• Conversion of approximately 2.2 acres of Public/Quasi Public designated/Private 
Recreation Facility zoned land (Unit 55C) to Single Family Residential 

• Conversion of approximately 27 acres of Residentially designated land to lower densities 
(Units 42 and 44B) 
 

General Plan Amendment 
 
The applicant has proposed several land use designations changes that are within the scope of 
the original Whitney Ranch approvals (Phases I and II). Staff has reviewed the requested land 
use changes and analyzed them against the goals and policies in the General Plan and finds the 
requested changes to be consistent with the General Plan. 
 
Whitney Ranch/Sunset Ranchos Units 1, 42, and 44B are currently identified in the City’s 2013-
2021 Housing Element at a density which could theoretically provide opportunities for 
Moderate Income housing.  
 
Rocklin’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) for the Moderate Income category is 709 
units. Although the median income for Placer County is relatively high, the proposed 
development densities may not result in homes that are affordable to the Moderate Income 
category.  
 
If approved, the re-designation of Whitney Ranch/Sunset Ranchos Units 1, 42 and 44B to lesser 
densities will reduce the City’s current inventory of potential sites available for the Moderate 
Income category. However, the remaining inventory of potential sites identified in the Housing 
Element Available Sites Table would still provide for up to 771 units, leaving a surplus of 62 
units more than the minimum number of units required to be accommodated.  
 
The City will continue to monitor its inventory of available sites as future development projects 
come forward to ensure that the goals of the Housing Element and our Inventory of Available 
Sites remain in compliance. 
   
This request is the second General Plan Amendment that has been brought to a hearing this 
year. If the Planning Commission recommends approval of the project it will be considered by 
the City Council at a future meeting. 
 
General Development Plan Amendment/Rezone 
 
The City’s General Plan Update in 2012 (Reso. 2012-171) modified the land use designation of 
Unit 1 from Business Professional (BP) to High Density Residential (HDR). The zoning of the site 
was not changed to reflect the updated General Plan designation however, the City did pass a 
companion consistency ordinance (Ord. No. 988) to provide review procedures for these 
conditions with the anticipation of amending the zoning to be consistent with the General Plan 
designation in the future or as part of entitlements for proposed projects.   

Packet Pg. 14

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 8 
 
 
The requested General Development Plan Amendment would reduce the maximum possible 
dwelling units (du) within the sites involved from 480 du to 283 du, a net total reduction of 197 
du based on zoning.  
 
A Traffic Capacity Comparison Analysis for the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III entitlements 
is included as Attachment 1. The analysis uses the trip generation rates assigned in the General 
Development Plan for both the existing land uses and the land uses proposed in this 
amendment. The proposed conversion of the business professional and commercial land uses 
to residential land uses together with the other proposed amendments results in a net 
reduction in Average Daily Trips of approximately 4,600 ADT. 
 
The proposed General Development Plan Amendment and Zoning are consistent with the 
proposed General Plan Amendment. 
 
Tentative Subdivision Map 
 
Subdivision Design - General 
The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map will subdivide approximately 41.2 gross acres into 208 
single-family residential lots, various lettered landscape lots to be dedicated to the City, and 
one landscape lot, Lot G in Unit 44B, which will be retained by the HOA is summarized in Table 
2 below.  
 

Table 2 – Unit Acreage and Lot Summary 

 
The streets within these subdivisions are proposed to be public and are designed to the City’s 
46-foot and 42-foot standard residential street sections.  The 46-foot street section provides for 
parking, rolled curbs, gutters, and sidewalks on both sides of the street. Cul-de-sacs and some 
short street segments that terminate, meet the City’s 42-foot standard residential street 
section with rolled curb, gutter, and sidewalk on one side and vertical curb on the other; 
parking would only be allowed on one side of these streets. In Unit 1A 24-foot wide private 
alleys, owned by the HOA, would provide access to some lots. 
 

Area
(Acres)

1 017-171-030 6.2 51
42

44A
44B 017-174-045 12.3 55
55C 017-182-018 2.2 5

Totals 41.2 208

017-177-011 20.5 97

W.R.  Phase 3 Tentative Map Summary
W.R. 
Unit # APN Proposed  # 

of Lots

Packet Pg. 15

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 9 
 
The project is obligated to construct all on-site streets and improvements and to install sewer, 
water, and other infrastructure as required by the City and the applicable utilities to provide 
service to the project. 
 
Units 42 and 44A, as well as Unit 44B are designed with three points of entry. The entries are 
flanked by existing City-owned landscape lots or by landscape lots to be dedicated to the City. 
Unit 1 has one point of entry and emergency access through Lot C, the landscape, open space, 
and utility easement lot to be dedicated to the City. The lots in Unit 55C front directly on Lazy 
Trail Drive, which is expected to be constructed either with Unit 57 or Unit 55C, depending on 
the construction timing of these two Units. 
 
Grading and Drainage / Stormwater Quality 
The project’s grading is designed to balance the amount of cut and fill within each Unit. Internal 
retaining walls are used throughout the project site to retain slopes where needed. 
 
The project site is within the Pleasant Grove Creek watershed. Drainage and detention for 
Whitney Ranch was master planned and has been implemented with earlier phases of 
development. The proposed storm drainage system has been designed and/or conditioned to 
meet the City of Rocklin Storm Water Quality standards and the City’s NPDES Phase II State 
Water Resources Control Board General permit. Effective air quality and sediment and erosion 
control measures are required to be implemented and maintained during construction. 
 
Masonry Walls and Fencing 
The following wall and fence types, consistent with the earlier phases of Whitney Ranch, are 
proposed and/or conditioned to be used at various locations throughout the project: 

• Six-foot tall “Proto II” masonry wall with decorative cap and stone veneer pilasters to 
be spaced no greater than 80 feet on center (at project entries) 

• Six-foot tall “Proto II” masonry wall with decorative cap and pilasters to be spaced no 
greater than 80 feet on center (along the major arterial roads) 

• Six-foot tall open space metal fence (at rear and side yards abutting open space areas) 
• Six-foot tall “50-50” fence (half masonry half tubular steel) on certain lots 
• Post and cable fence to delineate Open Space lot boundaries 
 

The wall and fence designs and their locations within the project area are provided on the 
Preliminary Fence Plans for each of the Units as shown in Exhibit A.  
 
Landscaping 
The project frontages and entry landscape lots for each of the Units will consist of a 
combination of decorative masonry walls and landscaping including street shade trees, accent 
trees, shrubs, and groundcover consistent with the Whitney Ranch streetscape design 
standards.  
  

Packet Pg. 16

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 10 
 
Street Lights and Street Sign Poles 
 
The project has been conditioned to include decorative street lights, street sign poles and 
brackets, and bollards that are consistent with those used in Whitney Ranch Phases I and II.  
 
Unit Specific Discussion 
 
Units 1A and 1B 
 

Figure 4 – Unit 1 

 
Existing conditions 
Unit 1 is the site of the existing City drainage Basin 23 and the Whitney Ranch information 
center at the southwest corner of the intersection of Wildcat Boulevard and Bridlewood. Spring 
Valley subdivision is adjacent along the southwest boundary. 
  
City Drainage Basin to become Open Space (Unit 1B) 
In 2015, the Whitney Ranch developer constructed drainage Basin 23 on the northern portion 
of Unit 1 (Unit 1B). This basin serves the master plan community and the 2.1 acres containing 
the basin has been dedicated to and accepted by the City of Rocklin. The General Development 
Plan Amendment proposes to change the zoning of Unit 1B to Open Space and the underlying 
General Plan designation to Recreation-Conservation. The remaining portion of Unit 1, 
(identified as Unit 1A) is proposed to be developed with a small lot single family residential 
project. 

Packet Pg. 17

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 11 
 
 
Subdivision Design 
Unit 1A is proposed as a small lot, alley-loaded single family subdivision with 51 lots. Proposed 
lot sizes are similar to those in adjacent Spring Valley, whose average lot size is 3,088. Road A 
will be public, with one access point on Bridlewood Drive, however the eleven 24-foot wide 
alleys will be private, owned and maintained by a homeowners association. The alleys are 
conditioned to be marked with “Fire Lane – No Parking” to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 
There are two lettered landscape entry/right-of-way lots (A and B) that will be dedicated to the 
City. Lot C, adjacent to Unit 1B, is an Open Space and utility easement lot that will be dedicated 
to the City and provides emergency access to the Unit via an existing SPMUD access road.  
Similar to the adjacent Spring Valley subdivision Lot C and the SPMUD access road through it 
will be improved with fencing, landscaping and a connecting path to create a pedestrian 
amenity.  
 
Units 42 and 44A 
 

Figure 5 – Units 42 & 44A 

 
 
Existing Conditions 
Units 42 and 44A form the southwest quadrant of the Whitney Ranch Parkway and (future) 
West Oaks Boulevard intersection and are bordered on the south by Painted Pony Lane. Unit 
44A is currently designated Neighborhood Commercial. 
 

Packet Pg. 18

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 12 
 
Subdivision Design 
Units 42 and 44A are proposed to be developed into 97 residential lots comparable in size to 
adjoining Unit 41, south of Painted Pony Lane. Streets will be public. Two vehicular access 
points on Painted Pony Lane are proposed at existing curb returns constructed when Painted 
Pony Lane was built.  A third vehicular access point is proposed on West Oaks Boulevard. No 
vehicular access is proposed on Whitney Ranch Parkway. There are four lettered landscape 
entry/right-of-way lots (Lots A – D) that will be dedicated to the City. 
 
Unit 44B 
 

Figure 6 – Unit 44B 

 
 
Existing Conditions 
Unit 44B is situated south of Unit 43, the site of a future Placer County Water Agency tank 
facility, and is bordered by Old Ranch House Road on the west, Songbird Way on the east, and 
Whitney Ranch Parkway on the south. To the east, Unit 49 is owned by the Rocklin Unified 
School District and identified as a junior high school site. A portion of 44B has been identified as 
a possible future expansion of the existing private recreation facility (Whitney Ranch House) 
located across Old Ranch House Road.  
 
Subdivision Design 
All roadways are proposed to be public. A vehicular access point is proposed on each of the 
roads, Old Ranch House Road, Songbird Way, and Whitney Ranch Parkway. An existing 30-foot 

Packet Pg. 19

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 13 
 
wide Placer County Water Agency waterline easement traverses the site in a north-south 
direction. The tentative map design incorporates this easement within a proposed roadway and 
landscape median. Proposed Lot G will be owned and maintained by the Whitney Ranch HOA. 
There are six lettered landscape entry/right-of-way lots (Lots A – F) that will be dedicated to the 
City. 
 
Unit 44B is proposed to be developed in two phases. Phase One will include Lots #1 through 
#44 and Phase Two will include Lots #45 through #55. Phase Two is located and configured with 
the intent that it could serve as an expansion of the existing private recreation facility should 
the Whitney Ranch developer decide to pursue such an expansion in the future. Private 
recreation facilities are conditionally permitted uses within residential districts so a subsequent 
Use Permit, as well as a Design Review, would be required if the recreation facility is 
subsequently proposed rather than the construction of Phase Two single family homes. 
 
Unit 55C 
 

Figure 7 – Unit 55C 

 
 
Existing Conditions 
Unit 55A is located along the future extension of Lazy Trail Drive near the intersection of Lazy 
Trail Drive and Painted Pony Lane, across from Unit 54, a designated Park site. With Whitney 
Ranch Phase II, Unit 55A was identified as a site for a future private recreation facility. The 
Whitney Ranch developer has since determined that developing a new private recreation 

Packet Pg. 20

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 14 
 
facility at this location   is no longer desirable. They believe from an efficiency and functionality 
standpoint additional private recreation amenities would be better suited near the existing 
private recreation facility located on Old Ranch House Road.  
 
Subdivision Design 
Unit 55C proposes to develop 5 residential lots of similar size as in adjacent Units 55A and 57 
and to dedicate approximately 1.1 acres of additional open space (Lot A) to the City, including 
an approximately 85-foot wide buffer adjacent to Unit 55A, that is contiguous with existing 
Open Space Unit 34. 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
In 2002, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) project was approved per City Council Resolution 2002-230. Subsequently, an 
Addendum to the Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR was approved in 2008 per City Council 
Resolution 2008-252. Project specific analysis was conducted and potential impacts of the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation project were identified in the EIR and Addendum documents. 
Section 15162 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines contains the 
provisions for relying on previously adopted environmental impact reports. Pursuant to Section 
15162, it has been determined that the EIR and Addendum that were adopted for the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation project took into consideration the anticipated potential 
environmental impacts associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project and that 
no additional environmental documentation is necessary. This determination has been made 
because according to Section 15162, when an environmental impact report has been adopted 
for a project, no subsequent environmental document shall be prepared unless substantial 
changes to the project or to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken, or new 
information of substantial importance results in the identification of a new impact or an 
increase in the severity of a previously identified significant impact. The proposed Whitney 
Ranch Phase III project proposes 208 dwelling units and the proposed General Plan / Zoning 
would allow for a maximum 283 dwelling units, while previous zoning for the Northwest Rocklin 
Annexation Area anticipated and analyzed a maximum allowable 480 dwelling units for the 
same project areas. The analysis conducted to determine if further environmental review would 
be necessary has resulted in the determination that the Whitney Ranch Phase III project is still 
within the scope of the previously approved Northwest Rocklin Annexation project EIR and 
associated Addendum and does not result in any new significant impacts nor does it result in an 
increase in the severity of a previously identified significant impact, and no further 
environmental review is necessary. See Attachment 2 for further discussion. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 21

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision 
October 17, 2017 
Page 15 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment 1 – Traffic Capacity Comparison Analysis for Whitney Ranch Phase III 
Attachment 2 – Whitney Ranch Phase III – 15162 Analysis 
Attachment 3 – Correspondence from Erick Carlson 
 
 
 
Prepared by Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner 
 
 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Whitney Ranch Phase 3\Meeting Packets\PC 10-17-17\01 Whitney Ranch P3 SD2017-0007 PC  SR 
10-17-17  - final.docx 

Packet Pg. 22

Agenda Item #7.



I. SUMMARY - TRAFFIC CAPACITY Square Ft.

(x 1000)

Existing Whitney Ranch Phase 3 Land Use Allocations 480 190.7 7,170
Proposed Whitney Ranch Phase 3 Land Use Allocations 283 0.0 2,551
Difference between Existing & Proposed Land Uses -197 -190.7 -4,619

Square Ft.

(x 1000)

1 Residential/BP* 9.2 PD-BP* / PD-20** 184*** 125.4 2,220**

42 Residential 14.2 PD-12 170 1,530     

 44A Nh. Comm. 6 PD-Nh. Comm - 65.3 2,286     

44B Residential 12.6 PD-10 126 1,134     

55C Rec. Facility 1.5 Private Rec. Facility - ‐         

Total 43.5 480 190.7 7,170

Square Ft.

(x 1000)

1A Residential 6.2 PD-12 74 670        

1B Open Space 2.1 Open Space - ‐         

1 Core Roads 0.9 ‐         

42 Residential 14.2 PD-5.1C 72 648        

 44A Residential 6 PD-5.1C 30 270        

44B Residential 12.6 PD-8 100 900        

55C Residential 1.5 PD-5 7 63          

Total 43.5 283 0.0 2,551
Notes:

Traffic ADT based on trip rates listed in GDP  Traffic Capacity Section 3.4.4

*  Unit 1 existing Zoning per GDP is BP, General Plan Amendment overide to HDR

**  Unit 1 existing Traffic ADT based on Zoning designation of PD‐BP  per GP traffic allocation study

***  Unit 1 existing Max. allowable Units based on GP designation of PD‐20

Traffic 

(ADT)

Development 
Unit Land Use Acreage Zoning

Max. 
Allowable Dw. 

Units

Development 
Unit Land Use Acreage Zoning

Max. 
Allowable Dw. 

Units

WHITNEY RANCH PHASE 3 ENTITLEMENTS
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT
TRAFFIC CAPACITY COMPARISON

Traffic 

(ADT)

Bridlewood Dr. & BLA to Unit 110

II. EXISTING LAND USES

III. PROPOSED LAND USES

Max. 
Allowable Dw. 

Units

Traffic 

(ADT)Description

Packet Pg. 23

Agenda Item #7.



Whitney Ranch Phase III – 15162 Analysis 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Whitney Ranch Phase III project consists of a request for approval of a General Plan 
Amendment, a General Development Plan Amendment, a Rezone, and a Small Lot Tentative 
Subdivision Map to subdivide five existing parcels totaling approximately 41.2 acres into 208 
single-family residential lots, fifteen lettered right-of-way landscape lots to be dedicated to the 
City, one utility/emergency access/landscape lot to be dedicated to the City, and one lettered 
landscape lot to be maintained by a homeowners association (HOA). 
 
PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
In 2002, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) project was approved per City Council Resolution 2002-230. Subsequently, an 
Addendum to the Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR was approved in 2008 per City Council 
Resolution 2008-252. Project specific analysis was conducted and potential impacts of the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation project were identified in the EIR and Addendum documents.  
 
RELIANCE ON PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
The potential environmental impacts of the Whitney Ranch Phase III project were analyzed as 
required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in an Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) and an Addendum which were previously approved by the Rocklin City Council acting as 
the lead agency through Resolutions 2002-230 and 2008-252, respectively. 2015-207. Once a 
project has been approved, the lead agency’s role in project approvals is completed, unless 
further discretionary approval on that project is required. In this case, because the Whitney 
Ranch Phase III project required additional land use entitlements and further discretionary 
approval, the City must examine the adequacy of the prior environmental review.  

 
Public Resources Code section 21166 and Section 15162 provide the framework for analysis of 
the adequacy of prior environmental review of a subsequent project. The questions that must 
be addressed when making a determination of whether further environmental review would be 
necessary are as follows: 
 

1) Do Proposed Changes Involve New Significant Impacts? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines, will substantial changes represented 
by the current project result in new significant impacts that have not already been considered 

Packet Pg. 24

Agenda Item #7.



and mitigated by the prior environmental review or a substantial increase in the severity of a 
previously identified significant impact? 
 

2) Are There Any New Circumstances Involving New Impacts? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines, have there been substantial changes to 
the project site or vicinity (circumstances under which the project is undertaken) which have 
occurred subsequent to the prior environmental document, which would result in the current 
project having new significant environmental impacts that were not considered in the prior 
environmental document or that substantially increase the severity of a previously identified 
impact? 
 

3) Is There Any New Information Requiring New Analysis or Verification? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(3)(A-D) of the CEQA Guidelines, is there new information of 
substantial importance which was not known and could not have been known with the exercise 
of reasonable diligence at the time the previous environmental document was adopted as 
complete that is now available requiring an update to the analysis of the previous 
environmental document to verify that the environmental conclusions and mitigations remain 
valid? If the new information shows that: 
 
(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the prior 

environmental documents; or 
(B) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in 

the prior environmental documents; or 
(C) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact 

be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, 
but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 

(D) That mitigation measures or alternative which are considerably different from those 
analyzed in the prior environmental documents would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative, then the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental 
EIR would be required. 
 

If the additional analysis completed finds that the conclusions of the prior environmental 
documents remain the same and no new significant impacts are identified, or identified 
environmental impacts are not found to be more severe, or additional mitigation is not 
necessary, then no additional environmental documentation (supplemental or subsequent EIR 
or subsequent negative declaration) is required. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 25

Agenda Item #7.



COMPARISON OF THE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED PROJECT TO THE NEW PROJECT: 
 
The adopted Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum 
addressed the development of the Whitney Ranch Phase III project site as follows: 
 

• Unit 1A – High Density Residential 
• Unit 1B – High Density Residential 
• Unit 42 – Medium High Density Residential 
• Unit 44A – Retail Commercial 
• Unit 44B – Medium High Density Residential 
• Unit 55 C – Public/Quasi-Public (private recreation facility) 

 
The proposed land use changes for the project will result in the following changes to existing 
land use designations that were analyzed in the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum in terms of acreage: 
 

• Increase of approximately 2.1 acres of Recreation Conservation designated/Open Space 
zoned land (Unit 1B); 

• Conversion of approximately 6 acres of High Density Residential designated/Business 
Professional zoned land to Single Family Residential (Unit 1A); 

• Conversion of approximately 6 acres of Retail Commercial designated/Neighborhood 
Commercial zoned land (Unit 44A) to Single Family Residential; 

• Conversion of approximately 2.2 acres of Public/Quasi Public designated/Private 
Recreation Facility zoned land (Unit 55C) to Single Family Residential; 

• Conversion of approximately 27 acres of Residentially designated land to lower densities 
(Units 42 and 44B) 

 
The Whitney Ranch Phase III project involves the same land area that was previously 
considered and analyzed, but the changes proposed by the project reflect a reduction in the 
developable area and modifications to the anticipated types of land uses. These changes are 
analyzed below. 
 
IMPACT ANALYSIS:  
 
1) Aesthetics – the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project 

will introduce similar development types into the project area that are mostly consistent 
with what was anticipated by the original project. Newly introduced development types are 
consistent with the surrounding existing and anticipated development and do not include 
any aspects that would introduce new aesthetic impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 

Packet Pg. 26

Agenda Item #7.



described above are not anticipated to result in new significant aesthetic impacts or 
substantially more severe aesthetic impacts that have not already been considered by the 
prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum; there 
are no new circumstances involving new significant aesthetic impacts or substantially more 
severe aesthetic impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of aesthetics impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation 
(Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project, and no further analysis is required. 

 
2) Agricultural Resources – the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase 

III project will occur in locations that are designated as grazing land and are not located 
within or adjacent to land in productive agriculture or lands zoned for agricultural uses or 
timberland production and do not introduce any new agricultural resources impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant agricultural resources 
impacts or substantially more severe agricultural resources impacts that have not already 
been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and 
associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
agricultural resources impacts or substantially more severe agricultural resources impacts, 
and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of 
agricultural resources impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) 
EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

3) Air Quality - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project 
will result in similar construction air quality emissions but fewer operational air quality 
emissions due to a reduction in the number of vehicle trips generated by the project. The 
proposed conversion of the business professional and commercial land uses to residential 
land uses together with the other proposed amendments results in a net reduction of 4,600 
average daily vehicle trips and associated emissions. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant air quality impacts or 
substantially more severe air quality impacts that have not already been considered by the 
prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum; there 
are no new circumstances involving new significant air quality impacts or substantially more 
severe air quality impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of air quality impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation 

Packet Pg. 27

Agenda Item #7.



(Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

4) Biological Resources - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project will result in development in a smaller footprint area due to an increase in non-
developable open space. The proposed increase of 2.1 acres of open space beyond what 
was previously anticipated results in a reduction of biological resources impacts. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant biological resources impacts 
or substantially more severe biological resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated 
Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant biological resources 
impacts or substantially more severe biological resources impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of biological resources 
impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated 
Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further analysis is 
required. 
 

5) Cultural Resources - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project will result in development in a smaller footprint area due to an increase in non-
developable open space. The proposed increase of 2.1 acres of open space beyond what 
was previously anticipated results in a reduction of the impact of the potential discovery of 
cultural resources. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant cultural resources impacts 
or substantially more severe cultural resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated 
Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant cultural resources 
impacts or substantially more severe cultural resources impacts, and there is no new 
information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of cultural resources impacts 
within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is 
applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

6) Geology and Soils - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project will result in development types that are mostly consistent with the development 
that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development types 
associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would also be subject to compliance 
with the City’s development review process and the City’s Improvement Standards and 

Packet Pg. 28

Agenda Item #7.



Standard Specifications and the Uniform Building Code which will reduce any potential 
geology and soils impacts to a less than significant level. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant geology and soils impacts or 
substantially more severe geology and soils impacts that have not already been considered 
by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum; 
there are no new circumstances involving new significant geology and soils impacts or 
substantially more severe geology and soils impacts, and there is no new information 
requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of geology and soils impacts within the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable 
to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

7) Greenhouse Gas Emissions - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch 
Phase III project will result in similar construction air quality/greenhouse gas emissions but 
fewer operational air quality/greenhouse gas emissions due to a reduction in the number of 
vehicle trips generated by the project. The proposed conversion of the business 
professional and commercial land uses to residential land uses together with the other 
proposed amendments results in a net reduction of 4,600 average daily vehicle trips and 
associated emissions. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant greenhouse gas emissions 
impacts or substantially more severe greenhouse gas emissions impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR 
and associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
greenhouse gas emissions impacts or substantially more severe greenhouse gas emissions 
impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis 
of greenhouse gas emissions impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, 
and no further analysis is required. 
 

8) Hazards and Hazardous Materials - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney 
Ranch Phase III project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development 
types associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would also be subject to 
compliance with various Federal, State, and local laws and regulations (including but not 
limited to Titles 8 and 22 of the Code of California Regulations, Uniform Fire Code, and 
Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code) addressing hazardous materials 
management and environmental protection which will reduce any hazardous materials 

Packet Pg. 29

Agenda Item #7.



management and environmental protection impacts to a less than significant level. While 
the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project is located within ¼ mile of an existing or 
proposed school, it does not include any unusual uses of hazardous materials. In addition, 
the proposed project is not on the list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5, the proposed project site is not located within an 
airport land use plan or within the vicinity of a private airstrip, the project’s design and 
layout will not impair or physically interfere with the street system emergency evacuation 
route or impede an emergency evacuation plan, and the proposed project will be reviewed 
by the Rocklin Fire Department and will be designed with adequate emergency access for 
use by the Rocklin Fire Department to reduce the risk of loss, injury or death involving 
wildland fires. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant hazards and hazardous 
materials impacts or substantially more severe hazards and hazardous materials impacts 
that have not already been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new 
significant hazards and hazardous materials impacts or substantially more hazards and 
hazardous materials impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or 
verification. The analysis of hazards and hazardous materials impacts within the Northwest 
Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the 
Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

9) Hydrology and Water Quality - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch 
Phase III project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development 
types associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would also be subject to the 
mitigation measures incorporated into Rocklin General Plan goals and policies, the City’s 
Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, 
Chapter 15.28), the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal 
Code, Chapter 8.30), and the City’s Improvement Standards to reduce impacts to hydrology 
and water quality to a less than significant level. In addition, the developable portions of the 
proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project are located in flood zone X, which indicates that 
the project is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area and outside of the 500-year 
flood hazard area. The project site is not located within the potential inundation area of any 
dam or levee failure, nor is the project site located sufficiently near any significant bodies of 
water or steep hillsides to be at risk from inundation by a seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. 
Therefore, the proposed project will not expose people or structures to a significant risk or 
loss, injury, or death as a result of flooding and a less than significant flood exposure impact 
would be anticipated. 
 

Packet Pg. 30

Agenda Item #7.



In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant hydrology and water quality 
impacts or substantially more severe hydrology and water quality impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR 
and associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
hydrology and water quality impacts or substantially more hydrology and water quality 
impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis 
of hydrology and water quality impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, 
and no further analysis is required. 
 

10) Land Use and Planning - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase 
III project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the development 
that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development types 
associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project include land use and zoning changes to 
ensure consistency with the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. The construction of 
the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project would not physically divide an established 
community and would be compatible with existing and anticipated land uses. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant land use and planning 
impacts or substantially more severe land use and planning impacts that have not already 
been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and 
associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant land use 
and planning impacts or substantially more land use and planning impacts, and there is no 
new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of land use and 
planning impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and 
associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further 
analysis is required. 
 

11) Mineral Resources - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the development 
that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development types 
associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would also occur on sites that do not 
contain known mineral resources and the project is not anticipated to have a mineral 
resources impact. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, 
the anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 

Packet Pg. 31

Agenda Item #7.



described above are not anticipated to result in new significant mineral resources impacts 
or substantially more severe mineral resources impacts that have not already been 
considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated 
Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant mineral resources 
impacts or substantially more mineral resources impacts, and there is no new information 
requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of mineral resources impacts within the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is 
applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

12) Noise - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project will 
result in development types that are largely consistent with the development that was 
anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development types associated with 
the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would be anticipated to generate noise levels similar 
to those that would occur with the original project. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, 
the anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant noise impacts or 
substantially more severe noise impacts that have not already been considered by the 
prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum; there 
are no new circumstances involving new significant noise impacts or substantially more 
noise impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The 
analysis of noise impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR 
and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

13) Population and Housing - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase 
III project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced 
development types associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would reduce the 
maximum possible dwelling units (du) within the sites involved from 480 dwelling units to 
283 dwelling units, a net total reduction of 197 dwelling units based on zoning. The 
proposed Whitney Ranch Phase II project would not introduce unplanned growth or 
displace substantial numbers of people. In addition the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project is not considered to induce substantial population growth because it includes a 
reduction of dwelling units from what was previously contemplated and it is located in an 
area that has already been planned for urban uses. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, 
the anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant population and housing 
impacts or substantially more severe population and housing impacts that have not already 

Packet Pg. 32

Agenda Item #7.



been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and 
associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
population and housing impacts or substantially more population and housing impacts, and 
there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of 
population and housing impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

14) Public Services - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the development 
that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development types 
associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would not increase the need for fire 
protection, police patrol and police services to the site beyond what was previously 
contemplated, and the need for other public facilities would not be created by the project. 

 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, 
the anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant public services impacts or 
substantially more severe public services impacts that have not already been considered by 
the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum; 
there are no new circumstances involving new significant public services impacts or 
substantially more public services impacts, and there is no new information requiring new 
analysis or verification. The analysis of public services impacts within the Northwest 
Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the 
Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no further analysis is required. 
 

15) Transportation/Traffic - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase 
III project will result in fewer automobile trips generated because the proposed conversion 
of the business professional and commercial land uses to residential land uses together with 
the other proposed amendments results in a net reduction of 4,600 average daily vehicle 
trips. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant transportation/traffic 
impacts or substantially more severe transportation/traffic impacts that have not already 
been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and 
associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
transportation/traffic impacts or substantially more severe transportation/traffic impacts, 
and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis of 
transportation/traffic impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) 

Packet Pg. 33

Agenda Item #7.



EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, and no 
further analysis is required. 
 

16) Tribal Cultural Resources – the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch 
Phase III project will result in development in a smaller footprint area due to an increase in 
non-developable open space. The proposed increase of 2.1 acres of open space beyond 
what was previously anticipated results in a reduction of the impact of the potential 
discovery of tribal cultural resources. While the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum were prepared and adopted prior to the 
requirement to address tribal cultural resources in CEQA documents, because Public 
Resources Code section 21080.3.3 requires consultation to occur prior to the release of a 
negative declaration, mitigated negative declaration or EIR for a project and the City intends 
to rely upon the previous EIR and Addendum for the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, there 
is no opportunity to incorporate additional mitigation measures for the protection of tribal 
cultural resources. 
 

17) Utilities and Service Systems - the changes contemplated by the proposed Whitney Ranch 
Phase III project will result in development types that are largely consistent with the 
development that was anticipated with the original project. Newly introduced development 
types associated with the Whitney Ranch Phase III project would not increase the need for 
utilities and service systems to the site beyond what was previously contemplated, and the 
need for other utilities and public services would not be created by the project. 
 
In conclusion, when comparing the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project to the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum analysis, the 
anticipated changes associated with the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project as 
described above are not anticipated to result in new significant utilities and service systems 
impacts or substantially more severe utilities and service systems impacts that have not 
already been considered by the prior Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR 
and associated Addendum; there are no new circumstances involving new significant 
utilities and service systems impacts or substantially more utilities and service systems 
impacts, and there is no new information requiring new analysis or verification. The analysis 
of utilities and service systems impacts within the Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset 
Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum is applicable to the Whitney Ranch Phase III project, 
and no further analysis is required. 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The Northwest Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) EIR and associated Addendum evaluated 
the potential environmental impacts of the development of all phases of the Whitney Ranch 
Phase III project which included the same project area. Because the Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project will introduce similar development types into the project area that are mostly 
consistent with what was anticipated by the original project, and newly introduced 

Packet Pg. 34

Agenda Item #7.



development types are consistent with the surrounding existing and anticipated development 
and do not include any aspects that would introduce new or increased environmental impacts, 
it was determined that the prior EIR and associated Addendum would be appropriate to rely 
upon for purposes of CEQA compliance. Based on the analysis provided above, no new 
significant environmental impacts would occur and no substantial increases in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects would be anticipated. None of the conditions described 
in CEQA Guidelines sections 15162, 15163 and 15164 calling for the preparation of a 
supplement, subsequent or addendum to a negative declaration or EIR are present, and 
therefore, no subsequent or EIR or supplemental EIR or addendum to an EIR is required 
pursuant to CEQA.  
 
In summary, the analysis conducted to determine if further environmental review would be 
necessary has resulted in the determination that the proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project 
does not result in any environmental impacts beyond those that were previously identified and 
no further environmental review is necessary. 
 

Packet Pg. 35

Agenda Item #7.



From: Erick Carlson
To: Dara Dungworth
Subject: RE: City of Rocklin case number 31235 - Whitney Ranch P3
Date: Wednesday, September 06, 2017 10:59:01 AM

Dara,

I am checking in to see how the processing of the Whitney Ranch Phase 3 is progressing.  I
have general concern regarding density averaging show by the application exhibits yielding
less open space and generally more of the same small lot single family lots.  Upon reading
through the Land Use component of the GP, I keep coming across goals encouraging a variety
of densities and housing types.  This includes higher density in close proximity to major
streets and commercial and public facilities.  The original submittal and subsequent
subdivision map seemed to be in line with these goals.  I would submit that the current
submission seems to throw these goals to the wayside in lieu of current market pressure for
more buildable lots.

The loss of open space near Pernu park for the addition of a few more lots is also disturbing to
myself as a resident.  This would yield a nice passive recreation opportunity and is adjacent to
open space (also consistent with GP goals).  More houses in this location also impacts the
visual corridor to the West.

The loss of Neighborhood Commercial also is a loss to the neighborhood in my opinion.  A
small commercial component would be beneficial near higher density residential.  This would
also be a social benefit to the neighborhood a huge convenience.

I just wanted to throw in my 2 cents worth as a resident of Whitney Ranch.  Thank you for
your time and I appreciate you having addded me to the mailing list for this project.

Sincerely,

Erick Carlson
916-504-0104

-------- Original message --------
From: Dara Dungworth <Dara.Dungworth@rocklin.ca.us>
Date:06/19/2017 5:05 PM (GMT-08:00)
To: "'erickryncarlson@gmail.com'" <erickryncarlson@gmail.com>
Cc:
Subject: RE: City of Rocklin case number 31235 - Whitney Ranch P3

Erick,

 

Since we have just begun processing this application, we have not analyzed the requested land use
changes.

Packet Pg. 36

Agenda Item #7.



 

It is very early in the process, but from the Project Information page, you can see we have tentatively
determined that we will need to prepare a Mitigated Negative Declaration. Once you’ve had a
chance to review the application materials and the attached extensive project description
document, please let me know the nature of your questions and concerns. I would be pleased to
meet or continue our email conversation.

 

Cordially,

Dara

 

Dara Dungworth | Senior Planner 
Planning Division | City of Rocklin
3970 Rocklin Road | Rocklin, CA 95677
dara.dungworth@rocklin.ca.us | (916) 625-5163 | www.rocklin.ca.us

City Hall Hours:  8 am – 4 pm (Monday – Thursday); 8 am – 12 pm (Friday)

P Think of trees before you print, please.

 

From: Erick Carlson [mailto:erickryncarlson@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 19, 2017 10:24 AM
To: Planner of the Day
Subject: RE: City of Rocklin case number 31235

 

Dara,

 

Thank you for adding me to the mailing list. I have already read through the application and
had some concern over the adjustment in neighborhood park space and the lack of
neighborhood commercial.  I also had questions regarding the elimination of the private
recreation facility in lieu of 5 lots.  Am I correct to assume this will require an EIR?

 

Thank you for your time.

 

Packet Pg. 37

Agenda Item #7.



Sincerely,

 

Erick Carlson

 

-------- Original message --------

From: Planner Of The Day <donotreply@rocklin.ca.us>

Date:06/19/2017 8:44 AM (GMT-08:00)

To: erickryncarlson@gmail.com

Cc: Dara.Dungworth@rocklin.ca.us

Subject: RE: City of Rocklin case number 31235

 

Dear Erick,

 

Thank you for contacting the City. We are in the initial stage of the review process for the
Whitney Ranch Phase 3 project. We received it last month and it has been referred to outside
agencies for their review and comment. You may access the initial application materials on
Planning's Current Applications page: http://www.rocklin.ca.us/current-applications.

 

A hearing will be scheduled sometime in the future once the application has been reviewed
and deemed complete and ready to move forward to Planning Commission and on to Council
for their actions.

 

I will add you to the noticing list so you will receive mailed notices of the hearings. You may
also check the City's Agendas and Minutes page and find notices in the Placer Herald.

 

If you have any questions about the project as we proceed, I encourage you to contact me
directly.

 

Thank you again for contacting us. Cordially,

 

Packet Pg. 38

Agenda Item #7.



Dara Dungworth

Senior Planner

916-625-5163

dara.dungworth@rocklin.ca.us

Use this link to add notes to the case:
https://clients.comcate.com/myfeedbackView.php?view=1226690&id=47

Original Request

I would like to be contacted with information and hearing date for Whitney Ranch Phase 3.  I
have some concern over the proposed General Plan Amendment and rezoning as well as loss
of open space and neighborhood commercial.  Thank you

 

Packet Pg. 39

Agenda Item #7.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 

GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS FOR MULTIPLE SITES IN THE WHITNEY RANCH 
/ SUNSET RANCHOS PLANNING AREA 

 
(Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / GPA2017-0003) 

 
The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
Section 1.   The proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project, including its 

related land use entitlements, was analyzed as required by the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR and associated 
Addendum, approved and certified by City Council Resolutions No. 2002-230 and 2008-
252, respectively. Pursuant to Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, analysis has shown 
that no further environmental review of the Whitney Ranch Phase III project is required, 
nor should be conducted, since the Whitney Ranch Phase III project is within the scope 
of the Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR and associated Addendum which adequately 
describe these activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons:  

 
A. No new significant environmental effects nor any substantial increase in 

the severity of previously identified significant effects will occur from the Phase III 
project; 

  
B. No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 

which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous 
EIR or Addendum due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects. 

 
C. No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
previous EIR or Addendum were certified as complete shows any of the following: 

 
i) That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous EIR; 
 
ii) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially 

more severe than shown in the previous EIR;  
 
iii) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to 

be feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

Packet Pg. 40

Agenda Item #7.a.



Page 2  of  
Reso. No.  

 
iv) That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the environment, but the project proponents 
declined to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.  

 
Section 2.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 

that:  
 A. The General Plan Amendment (GPA2017-0003) will change the land use 
designations of Units 1A, 1B, 42 & 44A, 44B, and 55C within the Whitney Ranch planning 
area as indicated on Exhibit A. 
 

B. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the recommended 
approval of this General Plan Amendment on the housing needs of the region, and 
balanced those needs against the public service needs of its residents and available 
fiscal and environmental resources. 
 

C. Whitney Ranch/Sunset Ranchos Units 1, 42, and 44B are currently 
identified in the City’s 2013-2021 Housing Element at a density which could theoretically 
provide opportunities for Moderate Income housing.  
 

Rocklin’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) for the Moderate 
Income category is 709 units. Although the median income for Placer County is 
relatively high, the proposed development densities may not result in homes 
that are affordable to the Moderate Income category.  
 

The re-designation of Whitney Ranch/Sunset Ranchos Units 1, 42 and 44B 
to lesser densities will reduce the City’s current inventory of potential sites 
available for the Moderate Income category. The remaining inventory of 
potential sites identified in the Housing Element Available Sites Table would still 
provide for up to 771 units, a surplus of 62 units more than the minimum 
number of units required to be accommodated.  
 

The City will continue to monitor its inventory of available sites as future 
development projects come forward to ensure that the goals of the Housing 
Element and our Inventory of Available Sites remain in compliance.    

 
 D. The land uses and circulation allowed by the proposed amendment are 
consistent with and implement the goals and policies of the Rocklin General Plan, 
including the Housing Element. 
 

E. The area is physically suited for the land uses allowed by the proposed 
amendment in terms of topography and availability of services. 

 

Packet Pg. 41

Agenda Item #7.a.



Page 3  of  
Reso. No.  

F. The circulation and land uses allowed by the proposed amendment are 
compatible with land uses existing and permitted on properties in the vicinity, providing 
the properties are developed in accordance with the policies and requirements of the 
Rocklin General Plan and applicable zoning and subdivision ordinances. 
 
 G. The circulation and land uses allowed by the proposed amendment, and 
their intensity, are not likely to create serious health problems or nuisances on 
properties in the vicinity. 
 
 Section 3.  The Planning Commission hereby recommends City Council approval 
of the General Plan Amendment (GPA2017-0003), as shown in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2017, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
  
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Whitney Ranch Phase 3\Meeting Packets\PC 10-17-17\02 Whitney 
Ranch P3 Reso GPA2017-0003 - final.docx

Packet Pg. 42

Agenda Item #7.a.



 
EXHIBIT A 

Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision (GPA2017-0003) 

Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No.  
 

 

Packet Pg. 43

Agenda Item #7.a.



P
acket P

g. 4
4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.a.



  

RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE 

TWELFTH AMENDMENT TO THE NORTH WEST ROCKLIN ANNEXATION AREA GENERAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN, REPLACING AND SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE 1060 AND RETAINING 

ORDINANCE 932, AND REZONING MULTIPLE SITES IN THE WHITNEY RANCH / SUNSET 
RANCHOS PLANNING AREA 

 
(Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 

 
The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 

 
Section 1.    The proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project, including its 

related land use entitlements, was analyzed as required by the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the North West Rocklin Annexation EIR and associated 
Addendum, approved and certified by City Council Resolutions No. 2002-230 and 2008-
252, respectively. Pursuant to Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no further 
environmental review of the Whitney Ranch Phase III project is required, nor should be 
conducted, since the Whitney Ranch Phase III project is within the scope of the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR and associated Addendum which adequately describe 
these activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons:  
 

A.  No new significant environmental effects nor any substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant effects will occur from the Phase III 
project; 

  
B.  No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 

which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous 
EIR or Addendum due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects. 

 
C.  No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
previous EIR or Addendum were certified as complete shows any of the following: 

 
i) That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous EIR; 
 
ii) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 

severe than shown in the previous EIR;  
 
iii) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more 

Packet Pg. 45

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 2  
of Reso No. 
 

significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
iv) That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects of the environment, but the project proponents 
declined to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
Section 2.    The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 

determines that: 
 
A. The General Development Plan for the North West Rocklin Annexation 

Area was originally approved by Ordinance 858 by the City Council of the City of Rocklin 
on July 23, 2002 and subsequently amended by City Ordinances, 882, 884, 898, 892, 932, 
941, 991, 1000, 1014, 1041, 1055, and 1060 (the “General Development Plan”). 
Ordinance 1055 focused on Exhibit C of the General Development Plan and consolidated 
a series of ordinances pertaining to that section (i.e. 941, 991, 1000, 1014, and 1041) to 
create a new version of Exhibit C. Ordinance 1060  amended the Trip Caps within the 
General Development Plan and replaced and superseded Ordinances 941 and 1055 and 
retained Ordinance 932. The components/chapters of the General Development are 
comprised of the following: 

 
Chapter 1. The North West Rocklin General Development Plan “Zoning 
Map”, adopted as Exhibit A, and all amendments incorporated into and 
reflected on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Rocklin.  

 
Chapter 2. The “Conditions of Approval” adopted as Exhibit B;  

 
Chapter 3. The General Development Plan Zoning and Development 
Standards, adopted and referred to as Exhibit C, “Zoning and 
Development Standards”; and  

 
Chapter 4. The Public Facilities Financing and Phasing Plan, incorporated by 

reference as Chapter 4, adopted and/or amended through Ordinance 884, 898 and 
superseded by Ordinance 932. The most current version of the Public Facilities Phasing 
and Finance Plan was adopted by Ordinance 932.  

 
B. General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-0004) modifies Chapter 1 

(Exhibit A) in specific locations known as Whitney Ranch/Sunset Ranchos Units 1A, 1B, 
42, 44A, 44B and 55C and supersedes all prior versions of Chapters 2 through 3 in the 
General Development Plan for North West Rocklin also referred to as Exhibits B through 
C in their entirety.  

 

Packet Pg. 46

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 3  
of Reso No. 
 

C. General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-0004) retains and 
incorporates by reference the North West Rocklin Annexation Area Public Facilities 
Financing Plan 2008 Update, prepared by Economic and Planning Systems, Inc. dated 
April 22, 2008, and previously adopted as Ordinance 932. 

 
D. The proposed General Development Plan Amendment and Rezone 

(PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) are consistent with the concurrent General Plan 
Amendment (GPA2017-0003) and implement the policies of the City of Rocklin's General 
Plan, including the Housing Element.  

 
D. The areas within the General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-

0004) are physically suited to the uses authorized in the proposed General Development 
Plan Amendment and Rezone. 

 
E. The proposed General Development Plan and Rezone (PDG2017-0004 and 

Z2017-0005) are compatible with the land uses existing and permitted on the properties 
in the vicinity. 

 
F.  The land uses, and their density and intensity, allowed in the proposed 

General Development Plan Amendment and Rezone (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 
are not likely to create serious health problems or create nuisances on properties in the 
vicinity. 

 
G. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the proposed General 

Development Plan Amendment and Rezone (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) on the 
housing needs of the region and has balanced those needs against the public service 
needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 

 
 Section 2. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin hereby recommends 
approval of the General Development Plan and Rezone in the form as shown on 
Attachment 1, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
  
  

Packet Pg. 47

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 4  
of Reso No. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
 
 
 
 
          ____________________________________ 
          Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Secretary    
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Whitney Ranch Phase 3\Meeting Packets\PC 10-17-17\03 Whitney Ranch P3 PC  Reso 
PDG2017-0004-Z2017-0005 - final.docx 

Packet Pg. 48

Agenda Item #7.b.



ATTACHMENT 1 

Page 1 of Attachment 1 
to Reso No. 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE TWELFTH AMENDMENT TO THE NORTH WEST 
ROCKLIN ANNEXATION AREA GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, REPLACING AND 

SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE 1060 AND RETAINING ORDINANCE 932, AND REZONING 
MULTIPLE SITES IN THE WHITNEY RANCH / SUNSET RANCHOS PLANNING AREA 

 
(Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 

  
 The City Council of the City of Rocklin does ordain as follows: 

 
Section 1. Findings.  
 
A. The General Development Plan for the North West Rocklin Annexation 

Area was originally approved by Ordinance 858 by the City Council of the City of Rocklin 
on July 23, 2002 and subsequently amended by City Ordinances, 882, 884, 898, 892, 
932, 941, 991, 1000, 1014, 1041, 1055 and 1060 (the “General Development Plan”). 
Ordinance 1055 focused on Exhibit C of the General Development Plan and consolidated 
a series of ordinances pertaining to that section (i.e. 941, 991, 1000, 1014, and 1041) to 
create a new version of Exhibit C. Ordinance 1060 amended the Trip Caps within the 
General Development Plan and replaced and superseded Ordinances 941 and 1055 and 
retained Ordinance 932. The components/chapters of the General Development are 
comprised of the following: 

 
Chapter 1. The North West Rocklin General Development Plan “Zoning Map”, 
adopted as Exhibit A, and all amendments incorporated into and reflected on the 
Official Zoning Map of the City of Rocklin.  
 
Chapter 2. The “Conditions of Approval” adopted as Exhibit B;  
 
Chapter 3. The General Development Plan Zoning and Development Standards, 
adopted and referred to as Exhibit C, “Zoning and Development Standards”; and  
 
Chapter 4. The Public Facilities Financing and Phasing Plan, incorporated by 
reference as Chapter 4, adopted and/or amended through Ordinance 884, 898 
and superseded by Ordinance 932. The most current version of the Public 
Facilities Phasing and Finance Plan was adopted by Ordinance 932.  
 
B.  General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-0004) modifies 

Chapter 1 (Exhibit A) in specific locations known as Whitney Ranch/Sunset Ranchos 
Units 1A, 1B, 42, 44A, 44B and 55C and supersedes all prior versions of Chapters 2 
through 3 in the General Development Plan for North West Rocklin also referred to as 
Exhibits B through C in their entirety. 

Packet Pg. 49

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 2 of Attachment 1 
to Reso No. 

 
C. General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-0004) retains and 

incorporates by reference the North West Rocklin Annexation Area Public Facilities 
Financing Plan 2008 Update, prepared by Economic and Planning Systems, Inc. dated 
April 22, 2008, and previously adopted as Ordinance 932. 

 
D. The proposed General Development Plan Amendment and Rezone 

(PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) are consistent with the concurrent General Plan 
Amendment (GPA2017-0003) and implement the policies of the City of Rocklin's General 
Plan, including the Housing Element.  

 
E. The areas within the General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-

0004) are physically suited to the uses authorized in the proposed General Development 
Plan Amendment and Rezone. 

 
F. The proposed General Development Plan and Rezone (PDG2017-0004 and 

Z2017-0005) are compatible with the land uses existing and permitted on the properties 
in the vicinity. 

 
G.  The land uses, and their density and intensity, allowed in the proposed 

General Development Plan Amendment and Rezone (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 
are not likely to create serious health problems or create nuisances on properties in the 
vicinity. 

 
H. The City Council has considered the effect of the proposed General 

Development Plan Amendment and Rezone (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) on the 
housing needs of the region and has balanced those needs against the public service 
needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 
 

Section 2.  Authority. The City Council enacts this ordinance under the authority 
granted to cities by Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution. 
 

Section 3. Environmental. The proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project, 
including its related land use entitlements, was analyzed as required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a part of the North West Rocklin Annexation EIR, 
approved and certified by City Council Resolution No. 2002-230. Pursuant to Section 
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental review of the Whitney Ranch 
Phase III project is required, nor should be conducted, since the Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project is within the scope of the Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR which adequately 
describes these activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons: 

 
A.  No new significant environmental effects nor any substantial increase in 

the severity of previously identified significant effects will occur from the Phase III 
project; 

Packet Pg. 50

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 3 of Attachment 1 
to Reso No. 

  
B.  No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 

which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous 
EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects. 

 
C.  No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
previous EIR was certified as complete shows any of the following: 

 
i) That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous EIR or negative Declaration; 
 
ii) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 

severe than shown in the previous EIR;  
 
iii) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
iv) That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 

different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the environment, but the project proponents 
declined to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
Section 4. Severability. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase or 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  City Council hereby declares that it would 
have adopted the Ordinance and each section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, sub-sections, 
sentences, clauses, phrases or portions to be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

 Section 5. Effective Date.  Within 15 days of the passage of this ordinance, the 
City Clerk shall cause the full text of the ordinance, with the names of those City Council 
members voting for and against the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald.  In 
lieu of publishing the full text of the ordinance, the City Clerk, if so directed by the City 
Attorney and within 15 days, shall cause a summary of the ordinance, prepared by the 
City Attorney and with the names of the City Council members voting for and against 
the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald, and shall post in the office of the 
City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the ordinance, along with the names of 
those City Council members voting for and against the ordinance.  The publication of a 

Packet Pg. 51

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 4 of Attachment 1 
to Reso No. 

summary of the ordinance in lieu of the full text of the ordinance is authorized only 
where the requirements of Government Code section 36933(c)(1) are met. 
 
 INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rocklin held on 
____________________, 20___, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers: 
NOES:  Councilmembers: 
ABSENT: Councilmembers 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rocklin 
held on __________, 20__, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers:  
NOES:  Councilmembers:  
ABSENT: Councilmembers: 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:  
 
          ____________________________________ 
          Scott Yuill, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Barbara Ivanusich, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:  
Effective Date:  

 

Packet Pg. 52

Agenda Item #7.b.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 

 

Page 1 to Exhibit A 
To Attachment 1 of Reso No. 
 

Packet Pg. 53

Agenda Item #7.b.



P
acket P

g. 5
4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



 
EXHIBIT B 

Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 
 

Page 1 to Exhibit B 
To Attachment 1 of Reso No. 
 

 
Conditions of Approval for the North West Rocklin General Development Plan 

Packet Pg. 55

Agenda Item #7.b.



EXHIBIT B 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE 
NORTHWEST ROCKLIN GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

 
The following conditions of approval are adopted as a part of the Northwest Rocklin Area 
General Development Plan (“NWRA GDP” or “GDP”), and unless expressly stated 
otherwise, shall apply throughout the GDP Area.  The term “Subsequent Entitlements” 
shall mean discretionary and ministerial land development entitlements which are 
necessary or desirable for development of the GDP Area as contemplated by this GDP.  
Subsequent Entitlements include, but are not limited to, tentative and final parcel and 
subdivision maps, subdivision improvement agreements, conditional use permits, grading 
permits, and building permits. 
 
If inconsistencies occur between the provisions of the Conditions of Approval to the 
NWRA GDP and the Zoning and Development Standards of the NWRA GDP, the 
provisions of the Conditions of Approval shall control.  
 
A. GENERAL 
 

1. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements shall include field surveys 
which physically delineate the boundaries of wetlands, riparian, areas, 
archaeological sites, and open space areas on the site of the proposed 
project for verification by the City or other responsible agencies, unless a 
survey has already been conducted in a timely and acceptable manner. 

 
2. All projects shall be evaluated subject to the provisions of the Design 

Guidelines. (DR-2002-06; Resolution 2002-233) 
  

The Northwest Rocklin Design Guidelines and all amendments that may 
be adopted shall be incorporated by reference into the project’s Covenants, 
Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) and shall include language 
indicating that the Guidelines are available in the City of Rocklin 
Community Development Department office. 
 

3. The Sunset Ranchos Planning Area shall participate in any single-family 
residential design review process that is adopted by the City of Rocklin.  

 
B. LAND USE 
 

Projects proposed within the Highway 65 Corridor Planning Area shall be 
designed to provide sufficient right of way to promote logical and efficient 
vehicular circulation throughout the area and include design features to minimize 
noise and visual impacts on the project from the highway interchange 
improvements. 

Packet Pg. 56

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 2 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

C. TRANSPORTATION/CIRCULATION 
 

1. Development under Subsequent Entitlements shall be subject to payment 
of the regional transportation fees adopted by the South Placer Regional 
Transportation Authority (SPRTA). 

 
2. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements shall coordinate with the City 

and Placer County Transit (PCT) to ensure that transit services are in place 
as needed to serve demand from new development. 

 
3. Applications for tentative maps proposed for sites designated with a 

school overlay shall include a revised traffic study, as necessary, to ensure 
that the change to residential use will not violate City service level 
policies.  The study shall indicate any necessary traffic mitigation 
measures in future development plans to reduce impacts to less-than-
significant levels. 

 
4. Parcel size, location, and site design of school sites shall provide adequate 

parking for students, staff, faculty, and visitors to minimize on street 
parking and parking in residential neighborhoods. 

 
5. The median width for Whitney Ranch Parkway shall be 20 feet between 

the Whitney Ranch Parkway/SR 65 Interchange and University Avenue to 
accommodate a City Secondary Entryway Sign as adopted by the Rocklin 
City Council. 

 
6. The median width for Wildcat Boulevard shall be 14 feet to accommodate 

the placement of a City of Rocklin Minor Entryway Sign in the vicinity of 
the transition between Wildcat Boulevard and Lincoln Parkway.  

 
7. Bus turnouts shall be provided throughout the project area as determined 

by the City Engineer. 
 

8. Construction traffic associated with development of the Sunset Ranchos 
Planning Area shall utilize Highway 65 to the fullest extent possible to 
access the site. An alternative route that is acceptable to the City includes 
Highway 65 to Sunset Boulevard to West Stanford Ranch Road to Wildcat 
Boulevard. These routes are to be used by both heavy equipment and 
individual construction workers. Some limited construction access through 
Park Drive for major delivery of materials and equipment or other special 
activities may be permitted subject to approval in advance by the City of 
Rocklin Public Works Director. Information regarding these restrictions 
and requirements shall be included in all improvement plans and 
contractor agreements.  
 

 

Packet Pg. 57

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 3 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

D.   AIR QUALITY 
 

1. As a condition of City approval of any grading activity within the North 
West Rocklin Area, the applicant for grading approval shall first submit a 
construction emission/dust control plan to and receive approval by the 
Public Works Director, City Engineer, and the Placer County Air Pollution 
Control District (PCAPCD).  The plan shall specify measures to reduce 
dust pollution during all phases of construction. The measures shall be 
included as notes within the Grading or Improvement Plans for the project.  
The measures may include the following: 

 
a. Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 25 

m.p.h. or less. 
 
b. All grading operations shall be suspended when wind speeds 

exceed 25 m.p.h. 
 
c. All trucks leaving the site shall be washed off to eliminate dust and 

debris. 
 
d. All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean condition. 
 
e. All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 
 
f. If fill dirt is brought to the construction site, tarps or soil stabilizers 

shall be placed on the dirt piles to minimize dust problems. 
 
g. Water or dust palliatives shall be applied on all exposed earth 

surfaces as necessary to control dust.  Construction contracts shall 
include dust control treatment as frequently as necessary to 
minimize dust. 

 
h. No open burning of any kind shall be allowed. 
 
i. Contractors’ construction equipment shall be properly maintained 

and tuned during construction activity. 
 
j. Contractors shall use low emission mobile construction equipment 

where possible. 
 
k. Construction equipment exhaust emissions shall not exceed 

District Rule 202 Visible Emission Limitations. 
 
l. The prime contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive 

inventory (i.e., make, model, year, emission rating) of all the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment (50 horsepower or greater) that will 

Packet Pg. 58

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 4 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

be used an aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction 
project.  District personnel, with assistance from the California Air 
Resources Board, will conduct initial Visible Emission Evaluations 
of all heavy-duty equipment on the inventory list. 

 
m. Construction contracts shall stipulate that at least 20% of the 

heavy-duty off-road equipment included in the inventory be 
powered by CARB-certified off-road engines, as follows: 

 
   175 hp  750 hp  1996 and newer engines 
   100 hp  174 hp  1997 and newer engines 
     50 hp   99 hp  1998 and newer engines 
 
   In lieu of or in addition to this requirement, an applicant can use other 

measures to reduce particulate matter and nitrogen oxide emissions from 
their project through the use of emulsified diesel fuel and/or particulate 
matter traps.  The District shall be contacted to discuss this measure. 

 
2. The City shall not approve building permits for fireplaces in homes that do 

not have a primary heating source other than a fireplace. All fireplaces 
shall be plumbed for natural gas.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, wood 
burning fireplaces shall be prohibited in all residential dwelling units 
within the Whitney Ranch Phase II development.    

 
3. Tree planting programs shall include planting at least one tree per single 

family lot, for shade.  Multi-family and non-residential projects shall 
incorporate trees into parking lot areas.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
tree planting programs for Whitney Ranch Phase II should include 
planting at least two trees in the front yard of each dwelling unit. 

 
4. The requirements in this section 4 shall only apply to Whitney Ranch 

Phase II development: 
  

a.  To the extent feasible, all landscaping areas publicly installed or 
maintained or installed or maintained by a Homeowner’s 
Association, shall be equipped with automatic irrigations systems, 
including drip irrigation, to reduce the amount of water used.  

 
b.  All appliances installed by the homebuilder, such as dishwashers, 

shall be energy star rated. 
 
 c.  Each single-family home shall be equipped with a whole house 

fan. 
 

d. To the extent feasible, community buildings such as clubhouses 
and recreational facilities, shall be equipped with water-conserving 

Packet Pg. 59

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 5 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

plumbing fixtures such as sensor-activated low flow faucets and 
toilets.   

 
5. Commercial buildings shall be equipped with automated time clocks or 

occupant sensors to reduce energy loss. 
 
6. Residential subdividers shall record the following separate instrument with 

their final map(s): 
 

A document prepared by or on behalf of the subdivider for the education 
of all residents within the project addressing the following air quality 
concerns: 

 
a. Open burning, wood burning, and air pollution: problems and 

solutions. 
 
b. Transportation control measures: ride sharing, mass transit 

availability/schedules, computerized ride-matching services, and 
other measures designed to reduce both the use of single-
occupancy vehicles and vehicle miles traveled. 

 
7. Developers/subdividers shall landscape with native drought-resistant 

species, where appropriate.  
 
8. Low NOx hot water heaters shall be installed per PCAPCD regulations. 
 
9.  Builders shall install an exterior electrical outlet at the front and back of 

single-family dwellings and duplexes for the use of electric landscape 
maintenance equipment. 

 
10.  In any development served with natural gas, fireplaces within multi-family 

residential development projects shall be plumbed for natural gas, and 
wood-burning fireplaces shall be prohibited within those units. 

  
 11.  All wood burning stoves installed in single-family or multi-family units 

must be EPA certified. 
 

12.  Office, commercial and retail land uses shall include bicycle racks. 
 
13.    In any development served with natural gas, builders shall install natural 

gas lines at the rear of each single-family residential structure to 
encourage the use of natural-gas barbecues. 

 
14.  Applicants shall participate in the Placer County Air Pollution Control 

District’s Offsite Mitigation Program. Fees for single family residential 
units shall be collected at the time of small lot Final Map. Fees for multi-

Packet Pg. 60

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 6 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

family dwelling units shall be collected at the time of building permit 
issuance. 

 
15. In conjunction with submittal of a development application for any 

projects within the Highway 65 Corridor Planning Area in Northwest 
Rocklin that exceed the 2002 trip cap (as calculated using the trip 
generation rates provided in the May 2016 Final Transportation Impact 
Analysis for the Northwest Rocklin Area General Development Plan), the 
applicant shall prepare and submit an Air Quality Emissions Estimate 
identifying the project’s increase in estimated NOx and PM10 emissions 
from mobile sources as compared to those allowed under the 2002 trip 
cap.  The estimated increase in mobile source emissions shall remain at or 
below 20.7 percent for NOx and 17.7 percent for PM10.  If the emissions 
estimate identifies an increase beyond those identified above, the applicant 
shall submit an Air Quality Reduction Plan sufficient to reduce NOx 
and/or PM10 emissions to within the allowable emissions increases.  The 
measures included in the Air Quality Reduction Plan would be anticipated 
to focus on the reduction of mobile source emissions by including project 
elements that encourage alternative modes of transportation, promote non-
motorized transportation and result in the reduction of number of vehicle 
trips as well as vehicle trip lengths.  The Air Quality Reduction Plan may 
also include payment of mitigation fees into the PCAPCD’s Off-site Air 
Quality Mitigation Fund as a method of reducing NOx emissions.  
PCAPCD’s Off-site Air Quality Mitigation supports felt Fee program 
supports fleet modernizations, repowers, retrofits, and fleet expansions of 
heavy duty on- and off-road mobile vehicles/equipment; alternative fuels 
infrastructure or low emission fuel purchases; new or expanded alternative 
transit service programs; light-duty low emission vehicle (LEV) programs; 
public education; repower of agricultural pump engines, and other 
beneficial air quality projects.  Mitigation fees collected from land use 
developments by the PCAPCD are distributed through the District’s 
annual Clean Air Grant (CAG) Program, which would help to reduce 
regional NOx emissions.   

 
 2002 Trip Caps are presented in the following table for reference 

purposes. Current Trip Caps applicable to properties within the Highway 
65 Corridor Planning Area are contained Section 3.4.4 and Table 8 in 
Exhibit C of the North West Rocklin General Development Plan. 

Packet Pg. 61

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 7 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

2002 Highway 65 Corridor Trip Allocation By Development Areas 
 

 Dev. 
Area # 

Acres Zoning TRIPS 
(ADT) 

Potential Building 
Square Footage (in thousands) 

     BP Comm LI Total 
JBC 104 66.3 PD-BP/COMM 14,626 447 192 0 639 

105 23.6 OS 0 - - - - 
106 24.3 PD-COMM 6,982 70 164 0 234 

Subtotal 114.2  21,608 517 356 0 873 
Placer 
Ranch 

107 38.4 PD-COMM 8,313 151 161 0 312 
108 68.0 PD-BP/COMM 14,764 451 193 0 644 
109               15.7 OS 0 - - - - 
110 22.7 PD-BP 3,800 215 0 0 215 
111 2.3 OS 0 - - - - 

Subtotal 147.3  26,877 817 354  1,171 
William 
Jessup 

University 

112 19.6 OS 0 - - - - 
113 106.1 PD-LI 18,325 0 0 719 719 
114 30.1 PD-COMM 11,473 0 328 0 328 

Subtotal 155.8  19,798 0 328 719 1,047 
Atherton 

Tech 
115 81.8 PD-LI 28,760 39 0 91 130 
116 5.0 OS 0 - - - - 

Subtotal 86.8  8,760 39  91 130 
TOTAL  527.8   77,043                 1,373 1,038 810 3,221 

 
     ADT: Average Daily Traffic 
1 Includes traffic capacity for existing William Jessup University (assuming a 

student capacity of up to 1,200 students) within existing (2004) ring road. 
2 Includes traffic capacity for existing occupied 659,700 square foot light industrial 

and office buildings. Remaining traffic capacity for new development in Atherton 
Tech Center (last 3 undeveloped parcels) is 3,130 trips.   
 
 

E. NOISE 
 

1. The following items shall be conditions of construction activity and be 
included in the notes on the face of the Improvement Plans: 

 
a. All heavy construction equipment and all stationary noise sources 

(such as diesel generators) shall have manufacturer installed 
mufflers. 

 
b. Equipment warm up areas, water tanks, and equipment storage 

areas shall be located in an area as far away from existing 
residences as is feasible. 

 

Packet Pg. 62

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 8 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

c. Those engaged in construction activity shall comply with the City 
of Rocklin Construction Noise Compatibility Guidelines, including 
restricting construction-related noise generating activities within or 
near residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on 
weekdays and 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends to the 
satisfaction of the Public Works Director or Building Official. 

 
2. Upon review of an application for a Subsequent Entitlement, the 

Community Development Director shall determine the need for the 
applicant to prepare a noise analysis to determine the noise impacts to or 
generated by the proposed project.  Mitigation measures for noise impacts 
identified in the study shall be incorporated into or made conditions of the 
project.  Mitigation measures may include, but not be limited to, increased 
setbacks, site design alterations, residential design alterations, noise 
attenuation walls where appropriate, and special building materials, to the 
satisfaction of the City of Rocklin. 

 
3. Development of residential uses within the 60 dB or greater contour shall 

use setbacks, barriers, or other measures as necessary to ensure that 
exterior noise levels at first-floor outdoor activity areas do not exceed 
standards in the City of Rocklin General Plan, as demonstrated by the 
project-specific noise analysis.  Development shall also use building 
materials, systems (including heating and air conditioning that will allow 
residents to keep their windows closed) and/or other techniques necessary 
to ensure that interior noise levels do not exceed 45 dB. 

 
4. Development involving commercial loading docks, schools, playgrounds, 

and parks (except on the parcel identified as the High School site and the 
Community Park site addressed in the following condition) shall be sited 
and designed to ensure that noise levels at nearby residential areas do not 
exceed stationary noise standards utilized by the City.  An acoustical study 
may be required demonstrating compliance to the City prior to approval of 
the Subsequent Entitlements for this type of development, as determined 
by the Community Development Director. 

 
5. Development of athletic fields and recreation areas associated with the 

high school and community park sites shall utilize site design techniques 
to reduce impacts to surrounding residential development. Prior to final 
design of high school and community park athletic fields and associated 
recreation areas, a noise analysis with recommendations shall be 
conducted to ensure that noise impacts from future operation of those 
facilities are reduced to the maximum extent feasible. 

 
6. The design and construction of residential development projects adjacent 

to the High School and Community Park shall include solid noise barriers 
along the common boundaries. 

Packet Pg. 63

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 9 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

 
F.   PUBLIC UTILITIES 
 

1. Development shall adhere to standard PCWA requirements.  Applicants 
for Subsequent Entitlements shall enter into a Pipeline Extension 
Agreement with PCWA, as necessary, and provide all pipelines and 
facilities necessary to supply adequate amounts of water for domestic and 
fire protection purposes.  All system improvements shall be subject to 
PCWA approval. 

 
2. Subsequent Entitlements shall be conditioned to fund and install 

infrastructure required to provide for the wastewater conveyance needs for 
the proposed development.  Prior to construction of improvements outside 
the project boundaries, the applicant shall submit to the City Engineer a 
construction plan that outlines the construction limits, construction 
schedule, traffic detours, noise and dust suppression, resident notification, 
and emergency service notification as requested by the City. 

 
3. All other utilities, including but not limited to sewer, telephone, gas, and 

electricity, shall be provided to development under this GDP in 
accordance with the standards and requirements of the applicable provider. 

 
4. Utility installations within all primary and secondary streets shall include 

stubs necessary to serve properties that are anticipated to develop after the 
primary or secondary street has been installed. The intent is to avoid the 
need to cut/trench through the new road surface and frontage 
improvements at a later date.  

 
5. The planning and installation of public utilities within the public rights-of-

way shall take the planned location of future landscaping into 
consideration. Elimination of planned landscaping shall be avoided to the 
fullest extent possible.  

 
6. The 13-foot wide easement for the 36-inch water line located within the 

north side of the Whitney Ranch Parkway right-of-way shall not interfere 
with the overall implementation of landscaping and street tree installation. 
Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated during Landscape 
Improvement Plan approval to the satisfaction of the Community 
Development Director and the Director of Public Works.  

 
G. PUBLIC SERVICES 
  
 Fire 
 

Packet Pg. 64

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 10 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

1. Subsequent Entitlements, shall be conditioned on providing and 
maintaining appropriate access into open spaces or undeveloped portions 
of the property per City of Rocklin Fire Department requirements. 

 
2. Fire sprinkler systems shall be installed in structures constructed at a 

location outside of the service area of a funded fire station, as determined 
by the Rocklin Fire Chief.  This condition, if applicable, shall be 
implemented at the time of approval of the building permits for the 
structure.  

 
3. All portions of the exterior first floor of residential structures shall be 

within 150 feet of the public right-of-way or private street system to the 
satisfaction of the Fire Chief.  Structures not capable of meeting this 
requirement shall be considered a special hazard and fire sprinkler systems 
shall be installed.  This condition shall be implemented at the time of 
approval of the building permits. 

 
4. Radio repeater towers shall be installed as needed within the project site to 

the satisfaction of the Fire Chief and City Engineer.  Specific sites will be 
determined by the Fire Department, in conjunction with the approval of 
Subsequent Entitlements.   Installation of the towers shall be deemed a 
cost of providing fire protection and emergency services.  The towers shall 
be installed by City. 

 
 Parks 
 

5. In lieu of paying City’s neighborhood park fees, applicants for residential 
subdivisions in the Sunset Ranchos Planning Area shall dedicate land in 
fee to the City for neighborhood parks in substantial conformance with the 
Phasing Plan and General Development Plan, and shall improve 
neighborhood parks in conformance with the approved Park Master Plan 
for each site.  All parkland shall be free of any physical condition and any 
title encumbrances that would prevent or unreasonably restrict use as a 
park site.  Each tentative map shall be reviewed by the City to determine if 
a park site shall be included, as either an on-site or as an offsite 
improvement reasonably related to the subdivision, in conformance with 
the General Development Plan.  If a park site is to be included, the 
tentative map shall be conditioned on the Developer entering into the 
City’s standard form Subdivision Improvement Agreement Turn-Key Park 
to improve and dedicate the park site to the City.  The agreement shall 
establish the timing of the improvements and dedication, as well as the 
equipment, facilities, and landscaping in the park, to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Community Facilities. If a park site is located as an off-site 
requirement of the respective map, then the subdivider shall, at the 
direction of the City, dedicate and construct a minimum of 20 foot wide 
access road to the park site. The agreement shall be executed prior to 

Packet Pg. 65

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 11 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

recording the final map.  The improvement and dedication to the City of 
parkland under this condition shall be at no cost to the City. 

 
6. Plant materials used within the parks adjacent to open space shall be 

carefully chosen to make the parks appear as extensions of the native 
corridor.  Designs shall be by a licensed landscape architect and approved 
by the City.   Native trees, shrubs and groundcover materials shall be 
emphasized. 

 
H.   OPEN SPACE AND TRAILS 

 
1. An open space and conservation easement (as described in Government 

Code section 51070, et seq.) shall be recorded over the remaining portions 
of the general development plan zoned as OA (Open Area), for purposes 
of riparian area and creek protection. 

 
 The easement shall be in substantial compliance with the City's form 

Grant Of Open Space And Conservation Easement, and shall prohibit, 
among other things, grading, removal of native vegetation, deposit of any 
type of debris, lawn clippings, chemicals, or trash, and the building of any 
structures, including fencing; provided, that detention and/or retention 
basins and other improvements required by City may be permitted, and 
native vegetation may be removed as necessary for flood control and 
protection pursuant to a permit issued by the California Department of 
Fish and Game. 

 
2. An open space and conservation easement (as described in Government 

Code section 51070, et seq.) shall be recorded over those hillside portions 
of the GDP which are to be left in open space and are beyond the building 
limit lines for purposes of hillside and bluff protection.  The building limit 
lines shall be established as a part of the tentative map process.   

 
The easement shall be in substantial compliance with the City's form 
Grant of Open Space and Conservation Easement, and shall prohibit 
among other things, grading, removal of native vegetation, deposit of any 
type of debris, lawn clippings, chemicals or trash, and the building of any 
structures, including fencing. 

 
3. An open space management plan shall be prepared by project subdividers 

and approved by the City prior to recording of any final maps for the 
project.  The Open Space Management Plan shall include a Fuels 
Modification Plan which addresses the following: 

 
 The removed brush and trees (under 6-inches diameter at breast 

height) within all fuel breaks should be chipped.  

Packet Pg. 66

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 12 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

 All undeveloped lots shall be subject to the City’s Weed 
Abatement Program and follow established guidelines for fuel 
modifications.  

 Access points should be developed for open space areas, and the 
fuel break should have emergency vehicle access through the 
entire area. 

 
I.   PUBLIC SAFETY AND HAZARDS 
 

1. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements within these portions of the 
Highway 65 Corridor Planning Area that have not already been studied 
(i.e., Development Areas 104, 105, 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 
113, 114, 115, 116), shall include a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment as required by the Community Development Director to 
determine the potential for site contamination.  

 
2. If evidence of soil contamination, such as stained or odorous soils, or other 

evidence of hazardous materials is encountered during construction or 
development activities, work shall cease until an environmental 
professional, retained at the applicant’s expense, has evaluated the 
situation and identified necessary and appropriate follow-up actions.  As 
part of this process, the City shall ensure that any necessary investigation 
and/or remediation activities conducted in the project area are coordinated 
with Placer County Division of Environmental Health, and, if needed, 
other appropriate State agencies. 

 
3. If, during construction in the GDP Area, groundwater is encountered and 

dewatering activities are required, the water shall be analyzed by an 
environmental professional, retained at the applicant’s expense, to 
determine if the water contains unsafe levels of pesticides, herbicides, 
nitrates, or other contaminants.  Work shall not continue until results of 
the water analyses have been reported and the Placer County Division of 
Environmental Health has been informed of the results and has provided 
guidance. 

 
4. Applicants for Subsequent Entitlements shall implement the 

recommendations contained in the Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessments prepared for the three portions of the project site (Sunset 
Ranchos, Parcel K, and SR 65 Corridor) as a condition of development 
approval to ensure that the potential environmental conditions associated 
with the properties do not present a health and safety hazard to the 
environment, the site workers, or the public.  The recommendations 
include, but are not limited to, confirmation as to whether illegally applied 
pesticides, herbicides, or nitrates are present in soil and water on the 
property, investigation of potential heating oil tanks or hazardous building 
materials associated with on-site residences, and further investigation of 

Packet Pg. 67

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 13 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

trash pits at the development site.  Additional site investigations shall be 
coordinated with the Placer County Division of Environmental Health and 
any required remediation shall be completed per Conditions I-2 and I-3 
above.  

 
J.   VISUAL RESOURCES 
 

1. Light standards on commercial properties shall be placed to minimize 
adverse light and glare on adjacent residential properties. 

 
2. High intensity light producing uses, such as stadiums and ball fields, shall 

be located and oriented to minimize visual impacts on adjacent residential 
areas.  Lighting for stadiums and ball fields shall be shielded and designed 
to distribute light in the most effective and efficient manner, using the 
minimum amount of light to achieve the necessary illumination for the 
use. 

 
3. Lighting within residential and non-residential development projects shall 

be designed to the extent practicable to incorporate downcast lighting, 
shielding, and other measures commonly employed as “dark sky” 
provisions. Lighting on the outside of non-residential buildings shall 
consist of cut-off shoebox type lighting fixtures, or equivalent, and be 
mounted such that all light is projected directly toward the ground.  Light 
poles, other than those associated with street lights, the Community Park, 
and High School facilities, shall be a maximum of 20’ in height as 
measured from grade to the top of the light. Lighting design plans shall be 
approved by the Director of Community Development for compliance 
with this condition.  

Packet Pg. 68

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 14 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

K.   CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 

1. The following requirements shall be made conditions of approval of all 
Subsequent Entitlements and shall be included as notes within all 
improvement plans for development within the GDP area: 

 
a. If, during construction, the project applicant, any successor in 

interest, or any agents or contractors of the applicant or successor 
discovers a cultural resource (such as CA-PLA-616) that could 
qualify as either an historical resource or a unique archaeological 
resource, work shall immediately stop within 100 feet of the find, 
and both the City of Rocklin and a representative of the Indian 
Community shall be immediately notified.  Work within the area 
surrounding the find (i.e., an area created by a 100-foot radius 
emanating from the location of the find) shall remain suspended 
while a qualified archaeologist, retained at the applicant's expense, 
conducts an onsite evaluation, develops an opinion as to whether 
the resource qualifies as either an historical resource or a unique 
archaeological resource, and makes recommendations regarding 
the possible implementation of avoidance measures or other 
appropriate mitigation measures. Based on such recommendations, 
as well as any input obtained from the Indian Community within 
72 hours (excluding weekends and State and federal holidays) of 
its receipt of notice regarding the find, the City shall determine 
what mitigation is appropriate.  If the discovered cultural resource 
is neither a Native American artifact, a Native American site, an 
historical resource, nor a unique archaeological resource, the City 
shall not require any additional mitigation, consistent with the 
policies set forth in Public Resources Code sections 21083.2 and 
21084.1. 

 
 At a minimum, any Native American artifacts shall be respectfully 

treated and offered to the Indian Community for permanent storage 
or donation, at the Indian Community's discretion, and any Native 
American sites, such as grinding rocks, shall be respectfully treated 
and preserved intact.  In considering whether to impose any more 
stringent mitigation measures, the City shall consider the potential 
cost to the applicant and any implications that additional mitigation 
may have for project design and feasibility.  Where a discovered 
cultural resource is neither a Native American artifact, a Native 
American site, an historical resource, nor an unique archaeological 
resource, the City shall not require any additional mitigation, 
consistent with the policies set forth in Public Resources Code 
sections 21083.2 and 21084.1. 

 

Packet Pg. 69

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 15 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

b. If, during construction, the project applicant, any successor in 
interest, or any agents or contractors of the project applicant or 
successor discovers any human remains, the following steps should 
be taken: 

 
1) There shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the 

site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent human remains until: 

  
a) The project applicant or its successor in interest 

contacts the Placer County Coroner so that Coroner 
can determine whether any investigation of the 
cause of death is required, and 

 
b) If the Coroner determines the remains to be Native 

American:  
  

i. The Coroner shall contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission within 24 
hours (excluding weekends and State and 
federal holidays). After hearing from the 
Coroner, the project applicant or its 
successor in interest shall immediately 
notify the City of Rocklin and a 
representative from the Indian Community 
of the Coroner's determination, and shall 
provide the Indian Community the 
opportunity, within 72 hours thereafter, 
(excluding weekends and State and federal 
holidays) to identify the most likely 
descendant. 

 
ii. The Native American Heritage Commission 

shall identify the person or persons it 
believes to be the most likely descended 
from the deceased Native American. 

 
iii. The most likely descendent, as identified by 

either the Native American Heritage 
Commission or the Indian Community, may 
make recommendations to the landowner or 
the person responsible for the excavation 
work, for means of treating or disposing of, 
with appropriate dignity, the human remains 
and any associated grave goods as provided 

Packet Pg. 70

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 16 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

in Public Resources Code section 5097.98, 
or 

 
2) Subject to the terms of paragraph 3) below, where the 

following conditions occur, the landowner or his authorized 
representative shall rebury the Native American human 
remains and associated grave goods with appropriate 
dignity on the property in a location not subject to further 
subsurface disturbance. 

 
a) The Native American Heritage Commission is 

unable to identify a most likely descendent or the 
most likely descendent failed to make a 
recommendation within 24 hours (excluding 
weekends and State and federal holidays) after 
being notified by the Commission. 

 
b) The Indian Community is unable to identify a most 

likely descendent, or the most likely descendant 
identified by the Indian Community failed to make 
a recommendation within 72 hours (excluding 
weekends and State and federal holidays) after the 
project applicant or its successor notified the Indian 
Community of the discovery of human remains; or 

 
c) The landowner or its authorized representative 

rejects the recommendation of the descendant 
identified by the Commission, and the mediation by 
the Native American Heritage Commission fails to 
provide measures acceptable to the landowner. 

 
3) In the event that the Coroner determines that the remains 

are Native American in origin, and the Native American 
Heritage Commission and the Indian Community agree that 
the remains are of a person associated with the historic 
United Auburn Indian Community, the project applicant or 
its successor, if permitted by state law, shall provide the 
remains and any associated grave goods to the Indian 
Community with the understanding that the Indian 
Community will provide for burial with appropriate dignity 
at an appropriate location that will not be subject to future 
disturbance. 

 
2. During the review process for any land use entitlement involving property 

currently containing prehistoric resource PL-2, it shall be determined by 
discussions between the applicant and the City of Rocklin whether it is 

Packet Pg. 71

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 17 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

feasible to preserve the boulder in place. If in place preservation is 
selected a deed restriction shall be recorded for that site, in the name of the 
Indian Community, requiring the preservation of the site.  This deed 
restriction shall run with the land, and shall bind all successors in interest. 

 
Prior to grading within 50 feet of prehistoric resource PL-2, an open space 
area around the boulder of at least 100 feet in diameter shall be created to 
preserve the site, and provide public interpretation of the site through 
signage.  Some measure of protection, such as fencing, must be afforded 
to the deposit if it is present. 

 
3. If in-place preservation of prehistoric resource PL-2 is not possible, the 

project applicant shall consult with concerned Native Americans and 
move the boulder to another location where it can be preserved. A deed 
restriction would then be recorded for that site, in the name of the Indian 
Community, requiring the preservation of the site.  This deed restriction 
shall run with the land, and shall bind all successors in interest. An open 
space area around the boulder of at least 100 feet in diameter shall be 
created to preserve the site, and provide public interpretation of the site 
through signage. If a deposit is present at the time the boulder is moved, 
data recovery excavations shall be conducted in the area of its original 
location to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

 
L.   GEOLOGY, SOILS, AND SEISMICITY 
 

1. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements in areas with possible soil 
instability, earthquake faults or other geologic hazards shall include soils 
and/or geotechnical analysis of the proposed development.  Preliminary 
reports must be submitted during review of tentative map, use permit, or 
design review applications. Final reports are required to be submitted 
concurrent with improvement plans.  The geotechnical investigation shall 
be prepared by a professional engineer or geologist registered in the State 
of California in accordance with State regulations and to the satisfaction of 
the City. The City shall ensure recommendations pertaining to site 
preparation, construction, and building and roadway design are identified 
in the geotechnical report and are incorporated into each project design 
through the plan check and inspection process. 

 
2. If blasting activities are to occur in conjunction with site development, the 

contractor shall conduct the blasting activities in compliance with State 
and local regulations.  The contractor shall obtain a blasting permit from 
the City of Rocklin prior to commencing any blasting activities.  
Information submitted to obtain a blasting permit shall include a 
description of the work to be accomplished and a statement of necessity 
for blasting as opposed to other methods considered, including avoidance 
of hard rock areas, safety measures to be implemented, such as blast 

Packet Pg. 72

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 18 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

blankets, and traffic groundshaking impacts.  The contractor shall 
coordinate any blasting activities with police and fire departments to 
ensure proper site access control, traffic control, and public notification 
including the media and affected residents and businesses, as appropriate.  
Blasting specifications and plans shall include a schedule that outlines the 
time frame that blasting will occur to limit noise and traffic 
inconveniences. 

 
M.   HYDROLOGY, WATER QUALITY, AND DRAINAGE 
 

1. The application for the first Subsequent Entitlement in the Sunset Ranchos 
and Highway 65 Planning Areas shall include a master drainage plan for 
the undeveloped properties to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The 
master drainage plan(s) shall be based generally upon the stormwater 
detention system shown in the General Development Plan, and shall 
comply with all provisions of the GDP and adopted mitigation measures. 

 
2. The application shall also include a program for the operation and 

maintenance of all privately owned drainage facilities and improvements 
located outside of the public right-of-way (including all facilities and 
improvements described in this Section M.) to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Director. The program shall include monitoring the depth of 
sediment in detention facilities every two years or other time frame 
approved by the Public Works Director. If it is determined (through 
consultation with the Public Works Director) that sediment needs to be 
removed from detention facilities to ensure adequate stormwater capacity 
is available, the entity responsible for maintenance shall implement 
appropriate BMPs to protect terrestrial and aquatic resources and water 
quality to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. Sediments 
removed shall be tested for contaminants and disposed of according to 
laws and regulations in effect at that time.  Responsibility and financial 
obligations for implementation of the program shall be identified and 
included as part of the program, and shall include assignment of 
responsibility to HOA’s as appropriate. 

 
3. Mosquito control associated with privately-owned drainage facilities shall 

be required to be performed by the Homeowners' Association. 
 
4. An appropriate restriction shall be recorded over the detention and/or 

retention basin(s) to assure their availability and use for detention and 
water quality purposes in perpetuity. 

 
5. All Subsequent Entitlements shall be conditioned on the property owner 

entering into a written agreement with the City of Rocklin not to protest or 
oppose the establishment or formation of an improvement, assessment or 
similar district or area of benefit, or the levy or imposition of any 

Packet Pg. 73

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 19 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

assessment, fee, lien, tax or other levy, whether or not in connection with a 
district or area of benefit, for the purpose of flood and drainage control in 
the City of Rocklin.  The agreement shall also indemnify the City against 
claims arising from subdivider's construction of improvements or 
development of the subdivision and shall be recorded and binding on 
successors in interest of subdivider. 

 
6. On-site detention, where required, shall be provided to meet Placer County 

Flood Control and Water Conservation District (PCFCWCD) criteria set 
forth in Section VII of PCFCWCD’s Stormwater Management Manual 
(SWMM).  The SWMM requires, if on-site detention basins are to be used 
to mitigate downstream flooding effects due to project related increased 
peak flows, that the objective flow shall be taken as the estimated pre-
development peak flow rate less 10 percent of the difference between the 
estimated pre-development and post-development peak flow rates from the 
site.  This standard shall be used for storm frequencies of 2-year, 10-year, 
and 100-year storm events, but need not be greater than a 10 percent 
reduction.  In no case shall the objective flow be less than the flows 
indicated in Figure 7-1 of the SWMM.  However, in the event the results 
of stormwater runoff modeling indicate that on-site detention would 
exacerbate downstream flooding conditions when applying PCFCWCD 
numerical criteria, the City shall coordinate with the PCFCWCD to 
identify appropriate use, location, and sizing of project detention facilities 
and implement a solution that will ensure conformance with PCFCWCD 
standards. 

 
7. Installation and design of detention basins shall be in accordance with 

PCFCWCD’s SWMM and in conformance with the applicable master 
drainage plan.  The results of hydrologic modeling shall be used to 
confirm that the capacity of the on-site detention facilities is adequate to 
detain the stormwater runoff anticipated following development.  In 
concert with the stormwater system design, the capacity of off-site 
culverts or existing and/or planned regional detention facilities shall be 
evaluated to determine whether over-sizing is necessary to accommodate 
each development’s incremental contribution. 

 

Packet Pg. 74

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 20 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

8. Where development under a Subsequent Entitlement propose bridge 
footings or related structures at roadway crossings within the 100-year 
floodplains of the Orchard Creek and Pleasant Grove Creek tributaries, 
approval shall be conditioned in preparation of a hydraulic study shall be 
prepared to the satisfaction of the City Engineer to estimate potential 
changes in water surface elevations those locations.  Should the results of 
the study indicate water surface elevations will be increased at any 
location upstream or downstream of the proposed crossing, such that 
developed locations adjacent to floodplain boundaries would be subject to 
new or exacerbated 100-year flood hazards, the location and/or design of 
the bridge crossings shall be modified, as appropriate, to reduce the 
potential for increased water surface elevations. 

 
9. Application for Subsequent Entitlements within the State Route 65 

Corridor shall include supplemental drainage studies to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer to comply with Policy 3 of the Community Safety 
element of the Rocklin General Plan.  The supplemental studies shall use 
the best and most recent information available in drainage reports, and 
other relevant information as appropriate.  Conformance with section VII 
of PCFCWCD’s Stormwater Management Manual (SWMM) shall be 
incorporated into project designs. 

 
10. A storm water pollutant prevention plan (SWPPP), prepared in 

conformance with the State Regional Water Quality Control Board 
regulations, shall be a part of the drainage improvement plans for each 
development to control construction site runoff. 

 
Typical Best Management Practices/Best Available Technologies 
(BMPs/BATs) that could be used during construction of development 
projects in the GDP Area include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
Temporary facilities such as waddles, sandbags, and hay bales may be 
used during construction.  Temporary facilities are designed to help control 
dust and will capture a majority of the siltation resulting from construction 
activities prior to discharging into existing natural channels.  In addition, 
they will trap possible fuel and oil spills from construction equipment to 
prohibit contamination of surface flows or groundwater.  The construction 
contractor would be required to monitor and maintain all BMPs/BATs 
during construction to ensure they function properly.   

 
11. Appropriate BMPs/BATs shall be incorporated into project designs to 

reduce urban pollutants in runoff, consistent with goals and standards 
established under federal and State non-point source discharge regulations 
(NPDES permit) and Basin Plan water quality objectives.  Stormwater 
runoff BMPs selected from the Storm Water Quality Task Force 
(California Storm Water Best Management Practices Handbook, 1993), 

Packet Pg. 75

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 21 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

the Bay Area Stormwater Management Agencies Association Start at the 
Source Design Guidance Manual, or equally effective measures shall be 
identified prior to final design approval.  To maximize effectiveness, the 
selected BMPs/BATs shall be based on finalized site-specific hydrologic 
conditions, with consideration for the types and locations of development. 
Mechanisms to maintain the BMPs/BATs shall be identified. 

 
Typical BMPs and BATs that could be used at the Proposed Project 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
• Application of appropriate signage to all storm drain inlets 

indicating that they outlet to the natural drainageways; 
• Application of a street sweeping program to remove potential 

contaminants from street and roadway surfaces before they reach 
drainages; 

• Installation of oil and grit separators to capture potential 
contaminants which enter the storm drain system; 

• Minimize sources of concentrated flow by maximizing use of 
natural drainages to decelerate flows, collect pollutants and 
suspended sediment; 

• Establish vegetation in stormwater drainages to achieve optimal 
balance of conveyance and water quality protection characteristics; 

• Placement of velocity dissipaters, rip-rap, and/or other appropriate 
measures to slow runoff, promote deposition of waterborne 
particles, and reduce the erosive potential of storm flows; 

• Prompt application of soil protection and slope stabilization 
practices to all disturbed areas; 

• Use sedimentation basins to collect and temporarily detain storm 
water runoff to provide ample settling time before runoff is 
discharged; 

• Creation of storage basins consisting of depressed areas, usually 
lined, that are sized to hold storm runoff and settle out material 
(the facility usually has a type of outlet device that is above the 
bottom of the basin or a small rip rapped berm over which the 
treated water can flow); 

• Creation of a below-ground storage basin consisting of vertical or 
horizontal corrugated metal or HDPE pipes sized to allow the 
volume of water required to be treated to percolate into the ground; 

• Use of fossil filters consisting of small filters that are placed like 
troughs around the inside top drain inlets or at ditch outlets. 

• Creation of underground stormwater interceptors, which are 
underground tanks, similar to septic tanks, that are designed to 
allow material to settle out and also can have a grease trap to 
separate oil and petroleum products, prior to discharge; and 

Packet Pg. 76

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 22 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

• Use of rock-lined ditches, which are surface ditches that are lined 
with rock, with or without filter material, with the rock lining 
material designed to allow water to filter into the ground. 

 
Provisions for the maintenance and periodic inspection of permanent 
facilities shall be addressed in the program required by condition M.2., 
above.  These provisions shall include periodic inspection, cleaning, and 
the replacement of filter materials, as necessary, to retain the integrity of 
the BMP/BAT. 
 

12. All Subsequent Entitlements shall be conditioned so as to prohibit any 
development (including preliminary development activity on the site) that 
will result in a net increase in the volume of stormwater flows, as 
compared to undeveloped conditions, downstream of the GDP Area, until 
a regional retention facility designed to accommodate the increased flow is 
available to receive the flow.  To be “available to receive the stormwater 
flows” from the site of the development, the regional retention facility 
must be constructed and in operation, and the owner of the development 
site must have the right to use the facility on a permanent basis for this 
purpose.  Development which, through  onsite or offsite retention or 
detention or otherwise, does not result in a net increase in the volume of 
stormwater flows, as compared to undeveloped conditions, downstream of 
the GDP Area, shall not be subject to this prohibition. 

  
N.   LANDSCAPING 
 

1. Parking lot landscaping shall be designed to filter light and daytime glare 
from distant views, through the use of dense canopy shade trees, earth 
berms and continuous perimeter landscape plants.  Parking lots shall also 
include a minimum 15-foot wide perimeter landscaping area and/or earth 
berming along adjacent streets to assist in screening the views of parked 
cars. 

 
2. All street landscaping, whether publicly or privately owned, shall be 

irrigated by a permanent drip system or low water consumption system 
acceptable to the City Rocklin.  All street landscape areas shall be 
maintained by an adjacent commercial, business/professional, or industrial 
user, or a Homeowner's Association, placed into the City Landscape and 
Lighting District, or into a Community Facilities District, or similar 
financing district, as determined by the City. 

 
O.   BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
 

1. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements within the GDP Area, except the 
Sunset Ranchos Planning Area, shall include a special-status plant survey 

Packet Pg. 77

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 23 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

which shall be conducted during the appropriate blooming period for 
species expected to occur in the area. 

 
2. Unless otherwise specified in a mitigation plan approved by the City or 

appropriate resource agency, disturbed special-status plant populations 
shall be transplanted to an approved mitigation site and/or mitigation 
credits shall be purchased in an approved mitigation bank to ensure no net 
loss of rare plant populations. 

 
Transplanted populations will be monitored by a qualified 
biologist/botanist for a period of 5 years.  If there is greater than 80 
percent survival of transplanted individuals the mitigation will be 
considered a success.  Additional plants will be required if the 80 percent 
survival goal is not met. 

 
3. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements within the Highway 65 corridor 

Planning Area shall include wetland delineations on the land. 
 

4.  Subsequent Entitlements shall be appropriately conditioned to require 
avoidance of any net loss of seasonal wetlands and jurisdictional waters of 
the United States, or the bed, channel, or bank of any stream. Such 
avoidance may be achieved by implementing and complying with the 
provisions of the Clean Water Act, as administered by the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers, under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, and under 
Sections 1600-1607 of the California Fish and Game Code, as 
administered by the California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG), 
which includes obtaining all required permits from the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers and entering into a Streambed Alteration Agreement with 
CDFG and complying with all terms and conditions of those permits and 
agreements.   

 
Satisfaction of the conditions shall require the applicant to submit to the 
Community Development Director and the City Engineer verification 
from the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers and the California Department of 
Fish and Game that the development project meets all regulations and that 
the applicant has obtained all required permits relating to wetlands and 
waterways. 

 
5.  The following information shall be included as a note within the 

improvement plans for any development project within the Sunset 
Ranchos Planning Area: 

 
 Measures to protect VELB are already outlined in the Biological Opinion 

for the Sunset Rancho’s Project dated July 21, 2000 and amended on 
October 13, 2000 (Service File 1-1-00-F-0044, Corps File 199800668) as 

Packet Pg. 78

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 24 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

part of General Condition 11 of the Nationwide Permit No. 26 wetlands 
fill permit for that project.  These measures may include the following: 

 
All contractors and construction crews shall be briefed by a qualified 
biologist on the status of VELB (federally listed as threatened) and the 
need to protect its host plant, requirements to avoid damaging elderberry 
plants, and possible penalties for not complying with identified mitigation 
and monitoring measures.  All elderberry stems of at least 1.0 inch 
diameter at ground level that cannot be avoided during construction 
activities shall be transplanted to an USFWS-approved mitigation area.   

 
All transplanting of elderberry plants shall occur during the plants’ 
dormant season (November to mid-February) and follow the standards set 
forth in the USFWS Conservation Guidelines for the Valley Elderberry 
Longhorn Beetle (July 9, 1999).   

 
As elderberry shrubs do not occur within the Parcel K Planning Area or 
the Highway 65 corridor Planning Area, this condition shall not apply in 
those areas.   
 

 6. Prior to approval of improvement plans or grading activity, the applicant 
shall mitigate for the loss of Swainson’s Hawk foraging habitat by 
providing 0.5 acre of replacement Swainson’s Hawk habitat land for each 
acre of land to be developed. The mitigation may be in the form of 
conservation easements or fee title to an appropriate entity. The location of 
the habitat area is encouraged, but not required to be within Placer County. 
Habitats located within the north half of the Central Valley, from the 
Stanislaus River to Redding shall be deemed acceptable. Applicant shall 
verify that this condition has been met to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Director. 

 
7. Prior to construction on a development project within the GDP Area, the 

applicant, in consultation with the City of Rocklin and CDFG, shall 
conduct a pre-construction breeding-season (approximately February 15 
through August 30) survey of the development project site during the 
same calendar year that construction is planned to begin.  The survey shall 
be conducted by a qualified raptor biologist to determine if any birds-of-
prey are nesting on or directly adjacent to the development  project site.  
(No surveys are required if construction activities occur outside of the 
breeding season.)  

 
If phased construction procedures are planned for the development project, 
the results of the above survey shall be valid only for the season when it is 
conducted.  A new survey shall be conducted for construction occurring in 
subsequent seasons.  

 

Packet Pg. 79

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 25 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

A report shall be submitted to the City of Rocklin, following the 
completion of the raptor nesting survey that includes, at a minimum, the 
following information: 

 
A description of methodology including dates of field visits, the names of 
survey personnel with resumes, a list of references cited and persons 
contacted, and a map showing the location(s) of any raptor nests observed 
on the project site. 

 
If the survey does not identify any nesting raptor species on the project 
site, no further mitigation shall be required.  However, should any raptor 
species be found nesting on the project site, the following mitigation 
conditions 8 and 9, below, shall be implemented. 

 
8. The applicant, in consultation with the City of Rocklin and CDFG, shall 

direct construction activities to avoid all birds-of-prey nest sites located in 
the development project site during the breeding season while the nest is 
occupied with adults and/or young.  The occupied nest shall be monitored 
by a qualified raptor biologist to determine when the nest is no longer 
used.  Avoidance shall include the establishment of a nondisturbance 
buffer zone around the nest site.  The size of the buffer zone will be 
determined in consultation with the City and CDFG.  Highly visible 
temporary construction fencing shall delineate the buffer zone. 

 
9. If a legally-protected species nest is located in a tree designated for 

removal, the removal shall be deferred until after August 30th, or until the 
adults and young are no longer dependent on the nest site as determined 
by a qualified biologist. 

 
10. Applications for Subsequent Entitlements for vacant properties located 

with the Highway 65 Corridor Planning Area shall include surveys for 
federally listed vernal pool crustaceans completed during the appropriate 
active period, or alternatively, the applicant may assume presence of these 
species on the project site and mitigate accordingly. 

 
11. Approval of Subsequent Entitlements shall be conditioned to require no 

net loss of vernal pool crustaceans and their habitat.  This may be achieved 
through the Section 404/Section 7 Consultation permit process, in 
accordance with typical standards used by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service.  This requirement shall be implemented prior to approval of 
improvement plans or any land use entitlements. 

 
There are three options for mitigation of project-related impacts to vernal 
pool crustacean habitat. 

 

Packet Pg. 80

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 26 of Exhibit B 
to Ord. No. 1060 
  

 Option 1: The applicant shall establish an USFWS-approved 
mitigation bank.  The applicant shall reconstruct vernal pool crustacean 
habitat at a replacement ratio of 1:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat 
creation AND 2:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat preservation for each 
acre of vernal pool crustacean habitat impacted. 

 
The applicant shall permanently protect the agreed-upon acreage of vernal 
pool crustacean habitat within the mitigation bank via a USFWS-approved 
conservation easement, to be held by an USFWS-approved entity. 

 
Option 2:  The applicant shall pay into the USFWS vernal pool crustacean 
mitigation fund.  The replacement ratio would be 1:1 for vernal pool 
crustacean habitat creation AND 2:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat 
preservation for each acre of vernal pool crustacean habitat impacted. 

 
Option 3:  The applicant shall purchase vernal pool crustacean mitigation 
credits from an existing mitigation bank.  The replacement ratio would be 
1:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat creation AND 2:1 for vernal pool 
crustacean habitat preservation for each acre of vernal pool crustacean 
habitat impacted. 

 
Applicants shall submit to the Community Development Director and the 
City Engineer verification from the USFWS that the project meets all 
regulations and that the developer/subdivider has obtained all required 
permits relating to vernal pool crustacean habitat  

 
12. Temporary fencing shall be erected at locations determined by City 

Engineer during all construction operations, to prevent encroachment into 
riparian areas, woodland tree canopies, or other sensitive locations. 

Packet Pg. 81

Agenda Item #7.b.



EXHIBIT C 
Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision (PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005) 

 

Page 1 to Exhibit C 
To Attachment 1 of Reso No. 
 

 

Zoning and Development Standards 

Packet Pg. 82

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

 
NORTH WEST ROCKLIN 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT  PLAN 
EXHIBIT C TO PDG-99-02 ET AL / PDG2017-0004 and Z2017-0005 

 
 

NORTHWEST ROCKLIN  
 

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
 

By 
 

Community Development Department 
City of Rocklin 

California 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 

 
Sunset Ranchos Investors, LLC 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted and amended by Rocklin City Council Ordinance Nos. –   
858, 882, 884, 892, 898, 941, 991, 1000, 1014, 1041, 1055, 1060 and ##### 

 
 
 

   Final Approval Date 

Packet Pg. 83

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
Chapter One - Introduction 
1.1 Purpose of General Development Plan      4 
1.2 Plan Area Location and Description       6 
 
Chapter Two – Zoning Districts and Relationship to the Rocklin Municipal Code  
2.1 Relationship to the Rocklin Municipal Code      10 
2.2 Zoning Districts         10 
2.3  Zoning Boundaries         13 
 
Chapter Three – Permitted Land Uses and Development Standards    
3.1 Introduction          16 
3.2 Overview of Project Area        16 
3.3 Land Use Summaries         16 

3.3.1 Sunset Ranchos        16 
3.3.2 Parcel K         19 
3.3.3 Highway 65 Corridor        19 

3.4 Permitted Land Uses          
3.4.1 Residential Districts        21 
3.4.2 Non Residential Districts       22 
3.4.3 Special Use Regulations for Non Residential Zones    24 
3.4.4 Traffic Capacity        25 

3.5 Development Standards         
3.5.1 Residential Zones        28 
3.5.2 Special Regulations for Single-family Residential Zones   29 
3.5.3 Special Regulations for Multi-Family Residential Zones   33 
3.5.4 Non Residential Zones       34 
3.5.5 Special Regulations for Non Residential Zones    34 
3.5.6 Off Street Parking        35 

3.6 Parks and Open Space          
3.6.1 Parks          35 
3.6.2 Open Space         36 

3.7 Schools          38 
3.8 Circulation           

3.8.1 Interchanges         38 
3.8.2 Vehicular Circulation System       38 
3.8.3 Bikeway and Pedestrian Trail System     42 
3.8.4 Open Space Crossings       43 

3.9 Public Facilities and Services        44 
 
  

Packet Pg. 84

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

 
List of Figures 
 

1- Regional Map 
2- Vicinity Map 
3- Existing Site Conditions Map Before Annexation 
4- N.W.R.A. Zoning 
5- N.W.R.A. General Development Plan Development Areas 
6- N.W.R.A. Parks, Open Space and Trail Map 
7- N.W.R.A. Vehicular Circulation Map 
8- N.W.R.A. Roadway Cross-Sections 
9- N.W.R.A. Drainage Basins and Culverts 

 
List of Tables 
 

1 – Summary of Land Uses by Planning Area 
2 – Proposed Zoning by Acres, Dwelling Units and/or Square Footage 
3 – Sunset Ranchos Land Uses by Development Areas 
4 – Parcel K Land Uses by Development Areas  
5 – Highway 65 Corridor Land Uses by Development Areas 
6 – Permitted and Conditionally Permitted Uses in Residential Districts 
7 – Permitted and Conditionally Permitted Uses in Nonresidential Districts 
8 – Highway 65 Corridor Trip Allocation by Development Areas 
9 – Residential Development Standards 
10 – Development Standards for Non Residential Zones 
11 – Major Roadway Improvements 
12 – Service Providers 

Packet Pg. 85

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 4 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No.  
 

 
CHAPTER ONE - INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 Purpose of General Development Plan 

 
A General Development Plan (GDP) is a planning document that defines, in detail, the 
development criteria for a project area.  Chapter 17.60 of the Rocklin Municipal Code 
establishes the Planned Development process as a “means to provide for greater flexibility in 
environmental design than is provided under the strict application of the zoning and subdivision 
ordinances.”  With that intent, the North West Rocklin Area General Development Plan 
(“NWRA GDP”) has been crafted to allow the integrated development of the 1,871-acre project 
in a manner that will a) promote the development of developable areas and avoid sensitive 
environmental areas, b) encourage creative and innovative design by allowing flexibility in 
property development standards, c) encourage the preservation of open space, and d) 
accommodate various types of large scale, complex and phased development in the planning 
area.  More specifically, the NWRA GDP: 
 
1. Establishes the interrelationship among land uses in the plan area. 
 
2. Specifies permitted and conditionally permitted uses for all parcels and the intensity of 

the uses. 
 
3. Establishes development standards such as the lot sizes, building setbacks, and height 

limits.   
 
4. Identifies the width and general location of roadways necessary to serve the 

development 
 
5. Identifies the needs and supply sources of water, sewer, drainage, and other public 

service needs of the project.  
 
6. Provides guidance for the preparation of tentative maps, with regards to design features 

such as street alignments and cross-sections, lot size and lot orientation 
 
The GDP will serve as the regulatory land use document for the North West Rocklin area.  All 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance (Title 17 of the Rocklin Municipal Code) shall apply to this 
project unless otherwise specified in this GDP. 
 

Packet Pg. 86

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 5 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

  

Packet Pg. 87

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 6 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

1.2 Plan Area Location and Description 
 

The North West Rocklin Plan Area is approximately 1,871 acres located in the northwest corner 
of the City of Rocklin.  Rocklin is located in the County of Placer, about 20 miles northeast of 
the City of Sacramento.   
 
The North West Rocklin Plan Area is contiguous to SR 65 on the west and the Twelve Bridges 
Specific Plan area in the City of Lincoln on the north.  Within the City of Rocklin, the Whitney 
Oaks project is to the east with Sunset West and Stanford Ranch on the south.  West of the plan 
area is the Sunset Industrial Area in the County of Placer. 
 
The North West Rocklin Plan Area’s location within the regional setting is presented in Figure 
1 and a vicinity map is presented in Figure 2.  Figure 3 shows the existing site conditions at the 
time of the annexation, which influenced future land uses for the plan area. 
  

Packet Pg. 88

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 7 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 
Packet Pg. 89

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 8 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 
Packet Pg. 90

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 9 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

The North West Rocklin Area contains three distinct planning areas: Sunset Ranchos (aka 
Whitney Ranch), Highway 65 Corridor, and Parcel K. Table 1 presents a summary of proposed 
land uses in the three planning areas and Figure 2 shows their locations. 
 

Table 1 
Summary of Land Uses by Planning Area 

Planning Area Acreage Existing Use Dev. Unit Proposed Zoning and Use 
Sunset-Ranchos aka 
Whitney Ranch 

1,296.3 Single-family 
homes, 
Apartments, 
Condominiums,  
High School, 
parks 
 

1 to 69 Planned Development (PD) 
• up to  3,146SF dwelling units 
• up to  1,106 MF dwelling units 
• 17.3 acres ( 187,300 sq. ft.) 

commercial 
• 2 Elementary Schools (22.4 

ac.) 
• 1 Junior High School (19.9 ac.) 
• 1 High School (50.0 ac.) 
• 57.3 ac. Public Parks/ 
• 5.2 ac. Private Recreation 

Facilities 
• 199.8 ac. Open Space 

Highway 65 Corridor: 
• Atherton Tech 
 
 
• William Jessup 

University 
 
 

 
 

• Placer Ranch 
 
 
 
 

 
 

• JBC Investments 
 

 
 

• Core Roadways 

527.8 
81.8 ac. 
  5 ac. 
 
155.8 ac. 
 
 
 
 
 
147.3 ac. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
114.2 ac. 
 
 
 
23.7 ac. 

 
Light Industrial 
Open Space 
 
University and 
vacant land 
 
 
 
 
Vacant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vacant 

 
115 
116 
 
113 A 
113 B 
113 C 
114 
112 
 
107 A 
107 B 
108A 
108B 
110 
109/111 
 
106 
104 
105 

Planned Development (PD) 
Light Industrial (81.8 ac.) 
Open Space (5 ac.) 
 
Light Industrial ( 13.9 ac.)  
Light Industrial/MU (17.7 ac.) 
WJU Campus (74.5 ac.) 
Commercial (30.1 ac.) 
Open Space (19.6 ac.) 
 
Commercial (32.4 ac.) 
Commercial (6.0 ac.) 
Bus. Prof./Commercial ( 47.6 ac.) 
 174 SF dwelling units ( 20.4 ac) 
 196 SF dwelling units  (22.9 ac.) 
Open Space (18 ac.) 
 
Commercial (24.3 ac.) 
Bus. Prof./Commercial (66.3 ac.) 
Open Space (23.6 ac.) 
 

Parcel K 47 ac. Single-family 
residential 

 Developed 
• 109 SF dwelling units 
• Open Space (3.2 ac.) 

 
 
CHAPTER TWO – ZONING DISTRICTS AND RELATIONSHIP TO THE ROCKLIN 
MUNICIPAL CODE 
 

Packet Pg. 91

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 10 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

2.1 Relationship to the Rocklin Municipal Code 
 

All provisions of the Rocklin Municipal Code (R.M.C.) shall apply to this project unless 
otherwise specified in this General Development Plan.  Whenever there is a conflict between 
Title 16 and Title 17 of the R.M.C. and this General Development Plan, the provisions of the 
General Development Plan shall prevail. 
 

2.2 Zoning Districts 
 
To encourage a more creative and flexible approach to the use of land in this planning area, the 
General Development Plan identifies the zoning for Northwest Rocklin as a Planned 
Development (PD). 

 
The Northwest Rocklin General Development Plan will utilize the following zoning categories.   

 
PD-1.6 Residential – One-and-six tenths (1.6) dwelling units to the gross 

acre. 
Purpose: To provide for low density, single family-detached residential 

units, with minimum lot size of 11,000square feet. 
 
PD-2.1, 2.5C-3.3 Residential Cluster – Two-and-one tenths (2.1) through three-

and-three tenths (3.3) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for low density, single family-detached residential 

units, with minimum lot size of 7,000 square feet. 
 
PD-2.9C – 3.8C Residential Cluster – Two-and-nine tenths (2.9) through three-

and-eight tenths (3.8) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for low density, single family-detached residential 

units, with minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet.  This zoning 
category applies to parcels with extensive slope constraints.  
Smaller lot sizes allows slope areas to be preserved as permanent 
open space. 

 
PD-3A   Residential – Three (3) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for low density, single family-detached residential 

units, with minimum lot size of 11,000 square feet. 
 
PD-3B  Residential – Three (3) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: This designation shall apply to the Parcel K area next to Stanford 

Ranch. It will provide for low density, single family-detached 
residential units, with minimum lot size of 7,500 square feet.  

 
 
 
PD-3.5C – 5.4C Residential Cluster – Three-and-five tenths (3.5) through five-

and-four-tenths (5.4) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium density, single family detached and 

attached residential units, with minimum lot size of 4,000 square 
feet. This zoning category applies to parcels with extensive slope 

Packet Pg. 92

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 11 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

constraints.   Smaller lot sizes allows slope areas to be preserved 
as permanent open space. 

 
PD-4  Residential – Four (4) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium density, single family-detached 

residential units, with minimum lot size of 7,500 square feet.  See 
note (1). 

 
PD-4.2 - 5 Residential – Four-and-two tenths (4.2) through five (5) dwelling 

units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium density, single family detached and 

attached residential units, with minimum lot size of 6,000 square 
feet. 

 
PD-6.5 – 6.6 Residential – Six-and-five tenths (6.5) through six-and-six tenths 

(6.6) dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium density, single family detached or 

attached residential units, using traditional and non-traditional lot 
designs. A minimum l0ot size of 3,000 square feet is required. 

 
PD-7.3–10A Residential – Seven-and-three tenths (7.3) through  ten (10) 

dwelling units to the gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium density, single family detached or 

attached residential units, using traditional and non-traditional lot 
designs. A minimum lot size of 2,400 square feet is required. 

 
PD-8.7A Residential – Eight-and-seven tenths (8.7) dwelling units to the 

gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium high density, single family-detached or 

attached  residential units, using traditional and non-traditional lot 
designs.  A minimum lot size of 2,500 square feet is required. 

 
PD-10 - 12 Residential – Ten (10) through Twelve (12) dwelling units to the 

gross acre. 
Purpose: To provide for medium high density, single-family detached or 

attached, multi-family residential units, apartments, townhouses, 
condominiums, or cluster design.  

 
PD-18 – 20 Residential – Eighteen (18) through Twenty (20) dwelling units 

to the gross acre.  
Purpose: To provide for high density, multi-family attached residential 

units, apartments, townhouses, condominiums, or cluster design.  
 
PD-22+ Residential – Minimum Twenty-two (22) dwelling units to the gross 

acre.  
Purpose: To provide for high density, multi-family attached residential units, 

apartments, townhouses, condominiums, or cluster design.  This category 
is intended to help the City achieve its regional housing needs allocation.  

Packet Pg. 93

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 12 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Thus, the minimum density is set with no maximum cap. No project will 
be approved if the density is below 22 dwelling units per gross acre. 

 
PD-BP Business Professional 
Purpose: To provide opportunities for developing and operating professional and 

administrative offices. 
 
PD-COMM Commercial  
Purpose: To provide a large concentration and mix of retail and services to meet 

the needs of local residents and employees of the plan area.  Office uses 
will be limited to no more than 30% of the total building square footage. 

 
PD-NC Neighborhood Commercial 
 To provide a mix of retail and services to meet the needs of local 

residents.  Due to limited parcel size and proximity to single-family 
residential uses, uses in this district will be limited in types, intensity, and 
design compared to the community commercial district.  

 
PD-BP/COMM Business Professional/Commercial 
Purpose: To provide opportunities for developing and operating professional and 

administrative offices while allowing limited amount (maximum of 30% 
of site) retail commercial uses that are compatible with office uses. 

 
PD-LI Light Industrial  
Purpose: This district is intended primarily for light industrial uses such as 

manufacturing, assembly, research and development as well as limited 
office uses that are compatible with industrial uses and light Industrial 
land uses in a campus-like setting. 

 
SCHOOL School Facilities 
Purpose: To reserve land for the construction of future school facilities. These 

parcels will be reserved for purchase by the Rocklin Unified School 
District (RUSD). (1) 

 
Recreation Facility Private Recreation Facilities 
Purpose: To provide areas for private recreational facilities typically owned and 

operated by a community association or  Home Owners’ Association for 
exclusive use by property owners, tenants, and their guests. 

 
Park Park Facilities 
Purpose: To provide areas for passive and active recreational opportunities. These 

parcels will be dedicated to the City for park improvements and annexed 
into the City of Rocklin Parks CFD.  The Community park site will 
provide for more intense active recreation such as athletic complexes, 
swimming pools and lighted ball fields.  The park will attract users from 
throughout the City.  Neighborhood parks will serve the immediate 
neighborhood and will have less intensive recreation uses like play 
equipment and turf area. 

 

Packet Pg. 94

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 13 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 
OS Open Space 
Purpose: To preserve hillsides, streams, and other natural resources and buffer 

them from adjacent land uses. Storm water conveyance and detention 
will also utilize open space area. The open space corridors will preserve 
natural drainage ways, link public facilities via adjacent pedestrian trail, 
and create a unifying element to the plan. 

 
Note (1):  All proposed elementary school parcels have been designated with an 

underlying designation of PD-5. This would give notice that residential 
development could occur in the event the Rocklin Unified School District 
chooses not to use any of the sites for future school facilities.  

 
 The zoning designations, acreage and dwelling units for each project area 

are presented in Table 2. Figure 4 identifies the zoning that applies to the 
North West Rocklin Area. Figure 5 identifies the Development Areas 
referred to in this General Development Plan. 

 
 Subsequent amendments to zoning in the North West Rocklin Area are 

reflected on the City’s Official Zoning Map. That document shall be 
referred to in all instances as the official zoning exhibit for this General 
Development Plan. 

 
* The number of dwelling units and/or square footage reflected above is the maximum 

allowed based on zoning and for which infrastructure is designed or planned for.  Actual 
development yield may be less. 

  
 Square footage for the Highway 65 Corridor is tied to # of trips and will depend on mix of 

uses. See Chapter 3. 
 

2.3  Zoning Boundaries 
 
The boundaries of the zones described in this plan shall be as shown on the General 
Development Plan Zoning Map, as indicated on Figure 4. Where precise delineation of the zone 
boundary, such as prepared on a tentative map indicates the area included is actually different 
from the area shown on the General Development Plan Zoning Map, and there is a choice 
between land use categories to assign to the area affected by the boundary change, any 
adjustment in land use or dwelling unit density shall result in no net gain of units when totaling 
the two areas, and shall not result in an increase of more than 10% in any zone category.  

 
 
 
Figure 4 NWRA GDP Zoning Map 
 

Packet Pg. 95

Agenda Item #7.b.



DEVELOPMENT PLAN
ZONING MAP

FIGURE  4

LEGEND:

N.W.R.A. GENERAL

ENGINEERING & PLANNING
"EXCELLENCE"

UBORAUBORA
2901 DOUGLAS BOULEVARD, SUITE 285

ROSEVILLE, CA 95661  (916) 780-2500

P
acket P

g. 9
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



 

Page 14 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Figure 5 NWR GDP Development Areas 

Packet Pg. 97

Agenda Item #7.b.



ENGINEERING & PLANNING
"EXCELLENCE"

UBORAUBORA
2901 DOUGLAS BOULEVARD, SUITE 285

ROSEVILLE, CA 95661  (916) 780-2500

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
DEVELOPMENT AREAS

FIGURE  5

N.W.R.A. GENERALP
acket P

g. 9
8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



 

Page 15 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

CHAPTER THREE – PERMITTED LAND USES AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 

3.1 Introduction 
 
This chapter presents information regarding permitted uses and development standards 
associated with the zoning districts in the Northwest Rocklin Plan Area.  The requirements 
presented in this chapter are prescriptive, which means all projects must comply with them 
without any discretion.  In addition to these requirements, a set of Design Guidelines have been 
prepared which would provide guidance to property owners, architects, and developers in 
designing projects that are harmonious with the existing fabric of the project area and the City 
of Rocklin in general. 
 

3.2 Overview of Project Area 
 
The Sunset Ranchos planning area consists of predominantly residential development with 
associated parks and school sites, open space, and commercial areas to support the community’s 
population.  The site encompasses approximately 1,296.3 +/-  acres and is proposed for  3,146 
single-family lots,  1,106  multi-family units, one 50-acre high school site, one 19.9 acre junior 
high school two elementary school sites totaling 22.4 acres,  62.5 acres of park/recreational 
sites, 199.8 acres of open space, and  17.3 acres of commercial sites. 

 
Parcel K planning area consists of 44.1 acres of residential development up to a maximum of 
109 units and approximately 2.9 acres of open space. 
 
The Highway 65 Corridor planning area includes the Atherton Tech Center, which consists of 
existing office, business professional and industrial uses, the William Jessup University facility, 
and vacant undeveloped land zoned for similar land uses. Approximately 57 acres of the 
Highway 65 Corridor area is zoned for approximately 370 small-lot single-family residential 
units.  The Atherton Tech Center was approved for the construction of Light Industrial 
buildings and is almost built out. 
 

3.3 Land Use Summaries 
 

 3.3.1 Sunset Ranchos 
 

The Sunset Ranchos planning area is conceptually divided into 84 development areas for land 
use planning.  Each development area is identified on Figure 5 in Chapter 2. Table 3 lists the 
development areas within Sunset Ranchos with the corresponding proposed land use, zoning 
category, estimated acreage, maximum allowable number of dwelling units (# of DUs) and 
potential square footage. 

 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 99

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 16 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Table 3 
Sunset Ranchos Land Uses By Development Areas 

Development 
Unit  Land Use Acreage Zoning 

Max. 
Allowable 
Dw. Units* 

Square Ft. 
(‘000)* 

1A Residential 6.2 PD-12 74  
1B Open Space 2.1 Open Space   
2A Commercial 5.3 PD-Comm - 56.6 
2B Residential 13.2 PD-10A 132  
3 Commercial 12 PD-Comm - 130.7 
4 Residential 10.6 PD-20 212  
5 Residential 9.8 PD-18  171  
7 Open Space 8.9 Open Space -  
8 Residential 11.9 PD-20 238  
9 Residential 6.8 PD-20 136  
10 Residential 6.9 PD-20 138  
11 Residential 16 PD-5  70  
12 Residential 17 PD-5  74  
13 Residential 34 PD-5  153  
14 Neigh. Park 3.6 Park -  
15 Open Space 22.8 Open Space -  
16 Residential 23.1 PD-3.3 60  
17 Residential 20.6 PD- 6.6  135   
18 High School 50 High School -  
19 Open Space 30.2 Open Space -  
20 Residential 24 PD-3.3  59  

21 Comm. Park 40.3 Community Park -  

22 Residential 11.5 PD-4.2 48  

23 Residential 26.1 PD-5  92  

24 Open Space 7.1 Open Space -  

25 Residential 31.3 PD-5  134  

26 Residential 29.3 PD-3A  78  

27 Residential 27.8 PD-4  92  

28 Residential 16.2 PD-6.6  96  

29 School 12.1 K-6 School -  
30 Neigh. Park 3.2 Park -  
31 Residential 23.2 PD-4  79  
32 Open Space 9.4 Open Space -  
33 Open Space 9.1 Open Space -  
34 Open Space  21.1 Open Space -  
35 Open Space 25.6 Open Space -  
36 Open Space  35.8 Open Space -  
38 Open Space 14.7 Open Space -  
39 Open Space 0.9 Open Space -  
40 Open Space 14.2 Open Space -  

41A Residential  32.1 PD-2.4  77  
41B Residential  14.4 PD-5.1C  73  
41C Residential 10.2 PD-5.1C 52  

Packet Pg. 100

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 17 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Table 3 Contd. 

Development 
Unit  Land Use Acreage Zoning 

Max. 
Allowable 

Dw. Units* 

Square 
Ft. 

(‘000)* 
42 Residential 14.2 PD-5.1C 72  
43 Water Tank 3.8 Water Tank/PD-10 -  

 44A Residential 6 PD-5.1C 30  
44B Residential 12.6 PD-8 100  
45A Residential 9.4 PD-8 75  
45B Rec. Center 5.2 Private Rec. Facility -  
46A Residential 13.5 PD-4.2 56  
46B Residential 11.8 PD-3.7C 43  
46C Residential 6.9 PD-8.1 55  
46D Residential 6.9 PD-7.3 50  
46E Residential 5.6 PD-8.1 45  
47A Residential 15.4 PD-3.6C 55  
47B Residential 13.1 PD-3.2C 41  
48 Neigh. Park 5.5 Park -  
49 School 19.9 Jr. High Sch./PD-5 -  
50 Residential 12.8 PD-7.3 93  
51 Residential 19.1 PD-2.9C 55  

52A Residential 8.3 PD-7.3 60  
52B Residential 8.9 PD-6.5 57  
52C Residential 4.7 PD-7.3 34  
53 School 10.3 K-6 School/PD-5 -  
54 Neigh. Park 4.7 Park -  

55A Residential 12.6 PD-3.1 39  
55B Residential 11.8 PD-3.1 36  
55C Residential 1.5 PD-5 7  
56 Residential 9.9 PD-2.4 23  
57 Residential 14.2 PD-4.2 59  
58 Residential 7.3 PD-3.2C 23  
59 Residential 7.7 PD-3.6C 27  
60 Residential 4.6 PD-3.5C 16  

61A Residential 10.9 PD-5.3C 57  
61B Residential 12.3 PD-5.4C 66  
61C Residential 10.8 PD-8.3 89  
62 Residential 17.9 PD-2.5C 44  
63 Residential 11.4 PD-3.2C 36  

64A Residential 16.3 PD-4.1C 66  
64B Residential 14.9 PD-4.7C 70  
65 Residential 9.9 PD-2.1 20  
66 Residential 3.3 PD-2.8 9  

67A Residential 35.1 PD-2.4 84  
67B Residential 20.8 PD-1.6 33  
69 Residential 13 PD-3.8C 49  

Core Roads RW 80.9 - -  
Total   1,296.3   4,252 187.3 

 

Packet Pg. 101

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 18 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 3.3.2 Parcel K 
 
The Parcel K Planning Area is divided into 4 conceptual development areas for land use 
planning.  Each development area is identified on the proposed GDP Zoning Map (Figure 4) in 
Chapter 2. Table 4 lists the development areas with the corresponding proposed land use, 
zoning category, estimated acreage and potential number of dwelling units (# of DUs). 
 

Table 4  
Parcel K - Land Use by Development Areas 

Dev.  
Area # 

Use Zoning Acre. # of  
Dus 

* 
100 Residential PD-3B 43.1 109 
101 Open Space OS 1.2 - 
102 Open Space OS 1.7 - 
103 Residential PD-3.3 1 0 

     
Total   47  109 

* Dwelling unit numbers are based upon them 
 

 3.3.3 Highway 65 Corridor  
 
The Highway 65 Corridor Planning Area is divided into 14 conceptual development areas for 
land use planning.  Each development area is identified on the GDP Zoning Map (Figure 4).  
Table 5 lists the development areas within Highway 65 Corridor with the corresponding 
proposed land use, zoning designation and estimated acreage. Square footage is tied to the 
number of trips and will depend on the mix of uses that is proposed. (See section 3.4.4). 

Table 5 
Highway 65 Corridor Land Uses By Development Areas 

Dev.  
Area # 

 
Use 

 
Zoning 

 
Acres ** 

104 Office and Commercial PD-BP/COMM 66.3 
105 Open Space OS 23.6 
106 Commercial PD-COMM 24.3 

107 A Commercial PD-COMM 32.4 
107 B Commercial PD-COMM 6.0 
108A Office and Commercial PD-BP/COMM  47.6 
108B Residential PD-8.7A  20.4 
109 Open Space OS 15.7 
110 Residential PD-8.7A 22.9 
111 Open Space OS 2.3 
112 Open Space OS 19.6 

113 A Light Industrial PD-LI  13.9 
113 B Light Industrial / Mixed Use PD-LI 17.7 
113 C University Campus PD-LI 74.5 
114 Commercial PD/COMM 30.1 
*115 Light Industrial PD-LI 81.8 
116 Open Space OS 5.0 

Packet Pg. 102

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 19 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Core R/W ***Road R/W 23.7 
Subtotal   527.8 

 
*  This parcel (Atherton Tech) is almost built out. Total square footage for existing 

development is 659,700. 
** Acreage estimates have been prepared as part of the General Development Plan. The 

actual acreages may change slightly through mapping of the properties. 
*** Includes 5 acres of roadways within Atherton Tech.  

Packet Pg. 103

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 20 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No.  
 

3.4 Permitted Land Uses 
3.4.1 Residential Districts 

Table 6   Permitted and Conditionally Permitted Uses in Residential Districts 
Uses   1.6 2.1 – 

3.3 
2.5C  2.9C – 

3.8C 
3A 3B 3.5C – 5.4C 4 4.2 - 5 6.5 – 6.6 7.3 – 

10.A 
8.7A 10-12 18-

22+ 
Accessory uses & structure P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Apartments, Townhouses, 
Condominiums    

- - - - - - - 
 

- - - P P P P 

Community/Residential Care U U U U U U U U U U U U U U 

Day Care Facilities U U U U U U U U U U U U U U 

Rest Homes - - - - - - - - - U U U U U 

Mobile Home Park  - - - - - - - - - - - - U U 

Parks, Playgrounds U U U U U U U U U U U U U U 

Places of Assembly for 
Community Service 

U U U U U U U 
 

U U U 
 

U U U U 

* Private Recreation facility U U U U U U U U U U U U U U 

Utility Substation U U U U U U U U U U U U U U 

Schools, private elementary 
and secondary 

U U U U U U U 
 

U U U 
 

U U U U 

Schools, public elementary 
and secondary 

P P P P P P P 
 

P P P 
 

P P P P 

Secondary residential units P P P P P P P P P P P P P - 

Single family detached P P P P P P P P P P P P P - 

Duplex/Triplex - - - - - - - - - P P P P P 

* Private Recreation Facilities: Defined as recreational facilities typically owned and operated by a community association or homeowner’s association for 
exclusive use by property owners, tenants, and their guests.  Such facilities may include: club houses, swimming pools, and other similar recreational uses that do 
not involve public address systems or exterior lighting that is uncharacteristic for a residential development.  

 P = Permitted Use U = Conditionally Permitted Use  - = Not Permitted

P
acket P

g. 1
0

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 21 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No.  
 

3.4.2 Non Residential Districts 
 

Table 7 presents the permitted and conditionally permitted uses in non-residential 
districts. 
 

Table 7              
Permitted and Conditionally Permitted Uses in Non-residential Districts 

 
 
Uses 

Neigh. 
Comm 

 
Comm 

 
BP 

BP/ 
Comm 

Light 
Indust. 

     - 
Arcade/Billiard Parlor - U - U  
Automotive Dealership - U - U U 
Automotive Dealership (entirely indoor without            
repair) 

- P - P U 

Automotive Repair Shop (Light) - U - U U 
Automotive Repair Shop (Heavy) - - - - U 
Banking, Insurance, Financial P P P P P 
Broadcasting Studios - - - - U 
Business Support Services such as copy shops 
and mailing services 

P P P P P 

Car Wash (Stand alone or with a Gas Station) - U - U - 
Coin operated laundry or pick-up station for 
laundry or dry cleaner 

P P - P - 

Convenience Stores P P - P - 
Convenience store with gasoline sale - P - P - 
Contractors yard - - - - U 
Day Care Facilities U U U U U 
Delicatessen P P P P P 
Drive-through Facilities - P P P - 
Dry cleaners with on-site dry cleaning U U - U P 
Death care services, including mortuary and 
cremation service 

- - - - U 

Equipment rentals, indoor  - - - - P 
Equipment rentals, outdoor - - - - U 
Farm Equipment & Supply Sales - - - - U 
Gas Station - P - P U 
Hard Liquor Sales (off-premise sales) - P - P - 
Hospital - - - U - 
Hotel/Lodging - U U U - 
Indoor Sports and Recreation, Health and fitness 
Centers, Figure Salons 

- P U P U 

 
  

Packet Pg. 105

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 22 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 
Uses 

Neigh. 
Comm 

 
Comm 

 
BP 

BP/ 
Comm 

Light 
Indust. 

Light Manufacturing and processing - - - - P/U (3) 
Mail Order & Vending - - - - P 
Massage Parlors - U - U - 
Mini storage  - - - - U(7) 
Mobile Pushcart Vending Facility U U U U U 
Offices P P P P P 
Outdoor Dining (more than 4 tables or 8 chairs) U U U U U 
Personal Services (beauty/barber salon, dry 
cleaners, dance studio without alcohol sale etc.) 

 
P 

 
P 

 
- 

 
P 

 
- 

Pet shop, grooming services P P - P - 
Places of Assembly for Community Service - - P P U 
Plant Nurseries (stand alone or accessory to a 
department store)  

- P - P P 

Printing & Publishing - - - - P 
Public Utility Facilities U U U U P 
Research and Development - - - - P 
Restaurant, with or without bar P P P (6) P  
Restaurant ancillary to & within primary use P P P (6) P P 
Retail Sales (inside an enclosed building) 
except that adult/sex oriented sales shall be 
regulated by Section 17.79.020 of the Rocklin 
Municipal Code 

 
P 

 
P 

 
- 

 
P 

 
- 

Retail use, showroom, and training appurtenant 
to a permitted or conditionally permitted use 

P P - P P 

Schools, college & university - U U U U 
Schools, private elementary and secondary U U U U - 
Schools, public elementary and secondary  P P P P P 
Schools, specialized education & training, 
including trade schools 

- U P U U 

Sports facility or other outdoor public assembly - - - - U 
Theaters except that adult/sex oriented motion 
picture shall be regulated by Section 17.79.020 
of the Rocklin Municipal Code 

- U - U - 

Uses involving public address system - U U U U 
Uses that operate between 11 p.m. and 6 a.m. U P P P P 
Vehicle rental storage (outside) - - - - U 
Veterinary Clinic U U U U - 
Warehousing and Distribution - - - - P 
Wholesale Sales - - - - P 
Woodworking and Cabinet Shops - - - - U 

      
 
P = Permitted Use U = Conditionally Permitted Use - = Not Permitted 

 

Packet Pg. 106

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 23 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No.  
 

 
 3.4.3 Special Use Regulations for Non Residential Zones 
 
Permitted and conditionally permitted uses are subject to the following conditions and criteria: 
 
1. SIMILAR USE DETERMINATIONS 
 

The Community Development Director may determine certain uses or activities that are 
not explicitly stated above to be permitted or conditionally permitted uses provided the 
use or activity has characteristics that are similar to those of the uses listed above. 

 
2. MODIFICATIONS TO TRAFFIC CAPACITIES (TABLE 8) 

 
Maximum square footage for each development area shall be limited by the traffic 
capacity shown in Table 8. Additional square footage may be allowed if it can be 
demonstrated through a traffic analysis that intersections and roadway segments would 
operate acceptably. 

 
3. POTENTIAL NUISANCE FACTORS/USE PERMIT 
 

Uses which in the opinion of the Community Development Director, involve the potential 
to create odor, dust, noise, light, vibration or other nuisance factors, will be considered 
with a conditional use permit. 

 
4. OFFICE USES/PD-COMM 
 

Office uses in the PD-Comm. district shall be limited to no more than 30% of total 
building square footage. 

 
5. COMMERCIAL USES/PD-BP/COMM 
 

Commercial uses in the PD-BP/COMM. district shall be limited to no more than 30% of 
the land area within each applicable Development Area identified on the General 
Development Plan Zoning Map.  This condition specifically applies to Development Area 
104, and 108A. 

 
6. RESTAURANTS & DRIVE-THRUS/PD-BP 
 

Restaurant buildings or drive-through speaker boxes in the PD-BP district shall be 
located no closer than 300 feet to a residential property line. 

 
7. MINISTORAGES / DEVELOPMENT AREA 113 

 
Conditional use permit applications for mini-storage facilities will only be considered 
within Development Area number 113. 

Packet Pg. 107

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 24 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

3.4.4 Traffic Capacity 
 

The traffic impact study for the NWRA project as updated by the Final Transportation Impact 
Analysis for the Northwest Rocklin Area General Development Plan (May 5, 2016 – Fehr & 
Peers) assumes total average daily trips of  98,010 trips for the Highway 65 corridor planning 
area - consisting of development areas 104 through 116, including the undeveloped parcels in 
Atherton Tech.  (See Highway 65 Corridor Development Areas Map at the end of this Section). 
If all traffic and road improvements that are outlined the General Development Plan are 
constructed and modifications to specific intersections identified in the 2016 study are 
incorporated into and implemented through the City’s Capital Improvement Program and 
development intensity stays within levels assumed by the traffic study, roadway intersections and 
segments within the project area will operate within acceptable levels of service established by 
the General Plan.  To ensure that development intensity stays within levels assumed by the traffic 
study, future uses shall be required to demonstrate that the volume of traffic generated by each 
development does not exceed the Average Daily Traffic (ADT) shown for each development 
area in Table 8.   
 
Volumes shown in Table 8 may be exceeded only if a traffic study demonstrates that all 
intersections and roadway segments would operate acceptably with the increase. This may occur 
when other areas within the annexation area develop at intensities lesser than presumed in the 
GDP and traffic study.  

 
Traffic volumes for the 34.0 acres of commercial and 9.2 acres of business professional in the 
Sunset Ranchos planning area are included in the traffic counts for the Sunset Ranchos planning 
area.  As long proposed building square footage is consistent with or below levels identified in 
Table 2, no additional traffic analysis would be required. 

 
Consistent with the Traffic Impact Study, the following trip generation rates will be used for the 
purpose of establishing the base ADT limitation for a project within the Highway 65 Corridor 
Planning Area: 

 
Business Professional (Office)  17.7 daily trips per 1,000 square feet 
Commercial (Retail, Highway etc.) 35 daily trips per 1,000 square feet 
Light Industrial   7.6 daily trips per 1,000 square feet 
Single Family Residential   9.0 daily trips per dwelling unit 
Multi-Family Residential   6.5 daily trips per dwelling unit 
 

All uses will be subject to applicable use limitations of this GDP as well as the traffic limitations 
herein.  For example, in the PD-BP/COMM zone district, commercial uses cannot exceed 30% 
of the site. 
  

Packet Pg. 108

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 25 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

SAMPLE CALCULATION OF ALLOWED SQUARE FOOTAGE FOR A PARCEL 
USING TRAFFIC CAPACITY AND ZONING RESTRICTIONS. 
 
Development Area No.  104 
Zoning Designation: PD-BP/Comm. 
Acreage: 66.3 acres 
 
Step 1: 
Total Site acreage:  66.3 acres or 2,888,028 square feet 
Total Trips allocated   20,127 
 
Step 2 
Maximum allowed commercial 
(30% of site assumed at 25% FAR):  216,602 square feet 
 
Step 3 
Trip generation for maximum allowed commercial (@ 35 trips per 1,000 sq. ft.): 7,581 
trips 
 
Step 4 
Remainder of trips for parcel:  20,127  minus 7,581 =   12,546 trips 
 
Step 5 
Allowable square footage for Business Professional uses:  
12,546 trips divided by 17.7 (trip rate for BP uses) x 1,000 =  708,000 square feet 
 
In the above example: 
 
1. The use regulation (chapter 3.4.3) limits commercial uses in the BP/Comm Zone to 

30% of the site.  A 25% FAR is assumed for commercial development and 30% FAR 
assumed for office and light industrial. This limitation translates into a maximum of  
216,602 square feet for commercial uses. 

 
2. At 35 trips per 1,000 square feet, the maximum number of trips allocated for 

commercial uses is 7,581 trips. 
 
3. That leaves a remainder of  12,546  trips for the parcel.  That translates into 708,000 

square feet of development. 
 
4. Because there is no use limitation on other uses, the developer could elect to develop 

the entire 66.3 acres for office or other allowed use. 
 
The “Potential Building Square Footage” shown in Table 8 has been computed using 
the zoning limitations of chapter 3.4.3 and the traffic capacity of chapter 3.4.4.  The 
computation does not assume the maximum allowed commercial intensity in the PD-

Packet Pg. 109

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 26 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

BP/Comm Zone or the maximum allowed business-professional office in the PD-
Comm.  Zone.  Instead, the potential maximum development intensity is calculated 
for both commercial and office uses to fit under the traffic capacity caps.  It must be 
emphasized that this calculation is one of several possibilities for each parcel.  In the 
PD-Comm. zone for example, it is possible for the entire site to be developed as 
commercial.  In that case, the total building square footage would be smaller than 
what is shown in Table 8. 

  

Packet Pg. 110

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 27 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Table 8 
 Highway 65 Corridor Trip Allocation By Development Areas 

 

 Dev. 
Area # 

Acres Zoning TRIPS 
(ADT) 

Potential Building 
Square Footage (in thousands) 

     BP Comm LI Total 
JBC 104 66.3 PD-BP/COMM 20,127 708 216 0  924 

105 23.6 OS 0 - - - - 
106 24.3 PD-COMM 9,275 0 265 0  265 

Subtotal 114.2  29,402 708 481 0 1,189 
Placer 
Ranch 

 

107 A 32.4 PD-COMM 12,355 0 353 0 353 
107 B 6.0 PD-COMM 2,310 0 66 0 66 
108 A 47.6 PD-BP/COMM 14,452 508 156 0 644 
108 B 20.4 PD-8.7A  

(174 SF Units) 
1,566 N/A N/A N/A Converted to 

Single Family 
109               15.7 OS 0 - - - - 
110 22.9  PD-8.7A 

(196 SF Units) 
 

1,764 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
Converted to 
Single Family 

111 2.3 OS 0 - - - - 
Subtotal 147.3   

32,447 
 

508 
 

575 
  

1,083 
William 
Jessup 

University 

112 19.6 OS 0 - - - - 
113 A 13.9 PD-LI 2,711 0 0 356 356 
113 B 17.7 1 PD-LI 5,785 135 97 0 232 
113 C 74.5 PD-LI 

(WJU Campus) 
2 7,425 N/A N/A N/A See  Footnote 2 

114 30.1 PD-COMM 11,480 0 328 0 328 
Subtotal 155.8  27,401 135 425 356 916 

Atherton 
Tech 

115 81.8 PD-LI 3 8,760 39 0 91 130 
116 5.0 OS 0 - - - - 

Subtotal 86.8  8,760 39 0 91 130 
TOTAL  527.8   98,010                 1,390  1,481 447 3,318 

     ADT: Average Daily Traffic 
 

1 This site is designated as Mixed Use in the General Plan, therefore, Retail and Office 
development are allowed. Project specific zoning will be applied when a development 
project comes forward. 

2 Includes traffic capacity for existing and planned William Jessup University (assuming 
an ultimate student capacity of up to 3,300 students). 
 

3 Includes traffic capacity for existing occupied 659,700 square foot light industrial and 
office buildings. Remaining traffic capacity for new development in Atherton Tech 
Center (last undeveloped parcels) is 3,130 trips.   

  

Packet Pg. 111

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 28 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 
Highway 65 Corridor Development Areas Map 
 

Packet Pg. 112

Agenda Item #7.b.



                                                                                                                                           Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 29 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No.  
 

3.5 Development Standards 
  

Table 9 – Residential Development Standards 

 

Standard a 

PD-1.6 PD-2.1, 2.4, 
2.5C, 2.8, 3.1, & 
3.3  

PD-2.9C, 
3.2C, 3.3C, 
3.6C  3.7C & 
3.8C 

PD-3A PD-3B PD-3.5C, 4.1C, 
4.7C, 5.1C,  5.3C, 
& 5.4C 

PD-4 PD-4.2 
& 5 

PD-6.5 & 6.6  PD-7.3, 8, 
8.1, 8.3 
&10A 

PD-8.7A g PD-10, 12  PD-18 & 20 PD-22+ 
Minimum  

Max. units per gross acre 1.6 2.1-3.3  2.9 – 3.8 3 3 3.5 – 5.4 4 4.2 – 5 6 – 6.6 7.3 – 10 8.7 12 18-20 None 
Min. units per gross acre 1 1 1 1 1 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 8.5 8.5 15.5 22 
Min. lot area (sq. ft.) 11,000 7,000 6,000 11,000 7,500 4,000 7,500 6,000 3,000 2,400 2,500 2,000 2 acres 2 acres  
Min. lot width 
   Interior 
   Corner 

 
90’ 

100’ 

 
65’ 
70’ 

 
55’ 
60’ 

 
75’ 
80’ 

 
65’ 
70’ 

 
40’ 
45’ 

 
65’ 
70’ 

 
55’ 
60’ 

 
40’ 
45’ 

 
30’ 
40’ 

 
30’ 
30’’ 

 
20’ 
25’ 

 
70’ 
80’ 

 
70’ 
80’ 

Minimum lot depth b 100’ 100’ 100’ 100’ 100’ 80’ 100’ 100’ 80’ 70’ 60’ - - - 
Setbacks c 
   Front  
   Front Porch 
   Front entry Garage 
   Side, interior 
   Side, street f 
   Rear 
   Rear  Entry Garage 

 
25’ 
20’ 
20’ 
10’ 
15’ 
25’ 

 
20’ 
15’ 
20 
5’ 

10’ 
20’ 

 
20’ 
15’ 
20’ 
5’ 

10’ 
20’ 
5’ 

 
25’ 
20’ 
20’ 
10’ 
15’ 
25’ 

 
25’ 
20’ 
20’ 
5’ 

10’ 
25’ 

 
15’ 

11.5' 
20’ 
4’ 

10’ 
15’ 
5’ 

 
20’ 
15’ 
20 
5’ 

10’ 
20’ 

 
20’ 
15’ 
20’ 
5’ 

10’ 
20’ 
5’ 

 
12’ 

11.5’ 
20’ 
4’ 

10’ 
15’ 
4’ 

 
12’ 
10’ 
20’ 
4’ 

10’ 
4’ 
4’ 

 
8’ 
5’ 

18’ 
0’h 
10’ 
4’ 
4’ 

 
5’ 

N/A 
5’ 
0’ 

10’ 
 
 

 
20’ 
N/A 
N/A 
15’ 
15’ 
15’ 

 
20’ 
N/A 
N/A 
15’ 
15’ 
 15’ 

Max. lot coverage e 
 

 
40% 

 

 
50% 

 

 
50% 

 

 
45% 

 

 
40% 

 

 
55% 

 

 
50% 

 

 
50% 

 

 
60% 

 

 
60% 

 

 
70% 

 

 
 70% 

 
 70% 

 
70% 

Max. bldg. height d 
   Principal  bldg.  
   Accessory bldg. 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
30’ 
14’ 

 
35’ 
NA 

 
35’ 
14’ 

 
35’ 
NA 

 
35’ 
14’ 

 
50’ 
14’  

a Special development standard modifications may be permitted for non-traditional single family residential, senior, and affordable housing developments. See Sections 3.5.2 (11), 3.5.2 (13), and 3.5.2 (14)          
b  Also see Section 3.5.2 (1)  
c    Also see Sections 3.5.2(1), 3.5.2 (2), 3.5.2 (3), 3.5.2 (11), 3.5.2 (13) and 3.5.2 (14) 
d   Also see Sections 3.5.3 (1) 
e    Also see Sections 3.5.2 (4), 3.5.2 (11), 3.5.2 (13) and 3.5.2 (14).  
f  Street side setback for Lot 10 DP13A, Lot 1 DP 13B, Lot 1 DP 25, Lot 39 DP 31, Lot 40 DP 31 and Lot 79 DP 31 shall be 30 feet. This setback may be reduced at the discretion of the Community Development 

Director if it is determined that traffic calming features or landscape features will adequately lessen vehicle speeds in these locations and/or diminish the prominence of the portion of the residence facing the 
subdivision entry.   
DP = Development Parcel (Reference pertains to SD-2003-04) 

g  Sections 3.5.2 (2) and 3.5.2 (3) are not applicable in this zone district 
h  The minimum interior side setback shall be three (3’) feet.  An interior side setback of zero (0’) is permissible when a minimum six (6’) wide Use Benefit Easement has been established on the adjacent property to 

allow access for maintenance and ensure a minimum six (6’) setback between. 

P
acket P

g. 1
1

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



                                                                                                                                           Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 30 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No.  
 

 3.5.2 Special Regulations for Single-family Residential Zones 
 
The following additional regulations shall apply to single-family residential: 

 
1. PARCEL K and SUNSET RANCHOS PLANNING AREAS / ADJACENT TO 

STANFORD RANCH 
 

Residences constructed on lots within the Sunset Ranchos and Parcel K Planning 
Areas that are located immediately adjacent to Stanford Ranch, shall also be 
restricted to the following standards.  These standards supersede the standards 
contained in the chart in Section 3.5.1 where applicable. 

 
Rear Setback (primary structures in Parcel K only)(a) 60 feet 
Min. Lot Depth 125 feet 

 
a. Patio covers that are open on at least two sides shall be permitted to encroach 

within the 60 foot setback. 
 
2. VARIED FRONT YARD SETBACKS 
 

a) Varied front yard setbacks are required along all residential streets. However, 
the minimum setback must be met in all cases. This requirement shall not 
apply to non-traditional single family residential subdivision designs such as 
alley loaded, 3-packs or green court.   

 
b) Usable porches that are open on at least 2 sides and do not occupy more than 

50% of the front width of the house may project five (5) feet into the required 
front setback. To be considered “usable” and therefore, eligible for this 
provision, a porch must be a minimum of 5 feet deep and 10 feet long. 

 
3. GARAGE SETBACKS 
 

a)  Garage structures for single-family residences shall be setback a minimum 20 
feet from the street even if the building setback is less than 20 feet.  This 
excludes alleys and courtyards. 

 
b) The garage portion of a house may project five (5) feet into the required front 

setback, provided the garage door does not front the street.  The garage 
elevation that fronts the street and projects into the front yard must have 
architectural details other than a blank wall plane. Architectural details could 
include but are not limited to a combination of pop-outs, window features, 
planters, etc. 

 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 114

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 31 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

4. LOT COVERAGE CALCULATION 
 

Lot coverage calculations will not include porches open on at least 2 sides and 
located on the front or street side of the house. 
 

5. LANDSCAPING 
 
 The front and side yard landscaping for each lot shall be installed prior to final 

inspection of the structure to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. Said landscaping shall include at minimum one 15-gallon tree, one other 
tree, 5-gallon shrubs and turf to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. All landscaping installed after the final inspection shall be at the 
discretion of the property owner. 

 
6. BUILDING PAD 
 

The building pad for each primary structure shall, at minimum, extend a minimum 
of three (3) feet beyond the side walls of the primary structure to the toe or top of 
slope and minimum of ten (10) feet beyond the rear wall of the primary structure 
to the toe or top of the slope to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. 
 
 

7. RETAINING WALLS IN FRONT AND STREET SIDE YARDS 
 
 Individual retaining structures located in the front yard or street side yard shall not 

exceed 30 inches in height. The aggregate height of multiple retaining structures 
in the front yard and street side yard shall not exceed 5-feet and there shall be a 
minimum 24-inch bench between retaining structures to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Director. 

 
 

8. PARCEL K OPEN SPACE 
 

At least 20 percent of the Parcel K planning area shall be retained in open space. 
 
 
9. PARCEL K ROCK FORMATIONS 
 

The existing large rock formations located within the Parcel K planning area 
northwest of Kali Place shall be retained and preserved in open space. The open 
space designated to preserve these features shall be considered part of the total 
percentage of open space required for the planning area. (The open space and rock 
formations shall be placed within an HOA parcel or parcel dedicated to the City 
of Rocklin with appropriate funding mechanisms for maintenance). 

 

Packet Pg. 115

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 32 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

10. PARCEL K VEHICULAR ACCESS 
 

Primary vehicular access to future development within the Parcel K planning area 
shall be provided by at least two points of access. The access points shall consist 
of one street that intersects with Wyckford Boulevard and the extension of Kali 
Place. These facilities shall be open non-gated public streets. 

 
11. SETBACK MODIFICATION 
 
 The Planning Commission and/or City Council may modify the development 

standards for nontraditional single-family housing, such as zero lot lines and 
cluster housing, provided the overall density is not increased. 
 

12. GATES 
 
 Gates that restrict access to neighborhood park sites shall be prohibited or must 

remain open between 7 a.m. and 10 p.m.      
 
13. SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 Development standards for age-restricted senior housing (as defined by Civil 

Code Section 51.3 and the Federal Fair Housing Act of 1988) may be modified by 
up to 20%, including density increases. This modification is based on a) typical 
household size for this type of housing is less than 2 and b) trip generation for this 
type of housing is 4.6 trips per day compared to 9 trips per day for conventional 
single family.  This density increase may not be combined with State density 
bonus pursuant to section 65915 of the Government Code for the provision of 
affordable housing. 

 
14. AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 

Development standards for affordable housing units pursuant to State law and/or 
the City of Rocklin Housing Element may be modified by up to 20%.  Density 
increases shall be granted only in accordance with section 65915 of the 
Government Code. 

 
15. TRIANGULAR VISIBLITY AREA 
 

The “triangular visibility area” means the area at any corner formed by the 
intersection of two or more public streets. At the intersection of two residential 
streets, no accessory structure or fence is permitted within a triangle dimensioned 
twenty feet (20’) by twenty feet (20’), measured from the back of sidewalk.   In 
the case of separated sidewalks, the triangle shall be measured from front of 
sidewalk.  Landscaping and fences within the clear vision triangle shall be limited 
in a manner such that it does not hinder sight distance for vehicular or pedestrian 
traffic as determined by the Director of Public Works. 

Packet Pg. 116

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 33 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 
16. SALES OFFICE 
 

a)  The Community Development Director may approve the use of a 
temporary sales trailer, for a limited period of time, within the project 
area, subject to such standards and conditions as deemed necessary to 
ensure aesthetic qualities, public health, and safety. 

 
b) The Community Development Director may approve the use of one or 

more residences as model homes and the use of the garage of one model 
home as a sales office subject to such standards and conditions as deemed 
necessary to ensure aesthetic qualities, public health, and safety. Prior to 
approval of a final inspection for a model home the developer shall 
reconvert any garage used for sales office to a garage use to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

 
 3.5.3 Special Regulations for Multi-Family Residential Zones 
 
1. BUILDING HEIGHT INCREASES  
 The maximum height for principal buildings in the PD-18, PD-20 and PD-22+ 

zones shall be as listed in Table 9.  However, the maximum allowable height may 
be increased beyond the limits identified in Table 9 subject to justification 
provided and accepted as part of a Design Review approval.  
  
 

2. PRIMARY ACCESS DESIGN 
Private access drives shall be of circular design where possible and provide 
vehicular access at two or more points.  Access drives which have but one point 
of access shall not exceed one hundred fifty feet (150’) in length; however, such 
drives may exceed 150 feet in length if the design includes turnaround 
arrangements or “emergency only” access arrangements to the satisfaction of City 
of Rocklin. 

 
3. SECONDARY ACCESS DESIGN 

Secondary access drives for private driveways may be installed with a minimum 
full travel pavement of 20 feet, within which parking shall be prohibited by layout 
and design features which reasonably assure that no part of the access will 
potentially be used for on or off-street parking by normally conscientious drivers. 

 
4. FENCING ALONG STREETS 

Open type fencing, a minimum of 4 feet in height, shall be incorporated into the 
project when multi-family units front along a public road. The purpose of the 
fencing is to discourage residents from using the public road for on-street parking.  
The fence shall be sited parallel to the public roadway, with a minimum 5 feet 
setback. 

  

Packet Pg. 117

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 34 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

5. SECURITY 
Project design must incorporate security and safety considerations for occupants, 
including: fencing, gates, adequate lighting within public areas such as walkways, 
parking and play areas, location of children’s play areas and parking areas visible 
from dwelling units. 
 

6. LANDSCAPING 
Landscaping shall be required in all multi-family residential projects and granite 
boulders shall be incorporated into landscaped areas.  

 
 3.5.4 Non Residential Zones 

 
Table 11 

Development Standards for Non Residential Zones 
 NC C BP BP/C LI 
Max. Bldg. Height 30’ 30’ 30’ 30’ 30’ 
Max. Bldg. Height with Use 
Permit 

- 50’ 
(55’)* 

50’ 
(55’)* 

50’ 
(55’)* 

50’  
(55’)* 

Max. No of Stories 2 2 2 2 2 
Max. No of Stories with Use 
Permit 

- 4 4 4 4 

Max. Lot Coverage 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 
Setbacks from: 
  Highway 65 
6-lane Street 

  4 lanes or less 
  Multi-family (PD-20) 
  Single family (PD2-6.6) 
  Open Space/Park/School 
  Any property line 

 
- 
- 
20’ 
15’ 
25’ 
15’ 
10’ 

 
50’ 
25 
20’ 
15’ 
- 
15’ 
10’ 

 
50’ 
- 
20’ 
15’ 
- 
15’ 
10’ 

 
50’ 
- 
20’ 
15’ 
- 
15’ 
10’ 

 
50’ 
- 
20’ 
- 
- 
15’ 
10’ 

  * Applies to developments along Highway 65 only. 
 
 3.5.5 Special Regulations for Non Residential Zones 

 
1. LANDSCAPING / HIGHWAY 65 

Setback area adjacent to Highway 65 shall be landscaped to provide an attractive 
visual buffer to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  
Parking shall not be allowed in the setback area. 

 
2. LANDSCAPING/NON RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS 

Landscaping shall be required in all non-residential projects. Granite boulders 
shall be incorporated into landscaped areas.  

 
3. TRASH ENCLOSURES 

Packet Pg. 118

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 35 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Trash enclosure areas shall be fully screened by a combination of masonry walls 
with solid metal gates to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. 
 

4. OUTSIDE STORAGE 
 All outside storage areas shall be screened by a combination of fencing, masonry 

walls, and grade separation.  Outside storage without adequate screening is not 
permitted. 

 
 3.5.6 Off Street Parking 
  
The off street parking shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 
17.66 of the Rocklin Municipal Code.  
 

3.6 Parks and Open Space 
 
The plan designates 57.3 acres of public park, 6.7 acres of private recreation sites and 
199.8 acres of open space areas. 
 
 3.6.1 Parks  

 
The City of Rocklin General Plan and Subdivision Ordinance require dedication of park 
acreage in the amount of five (5) acres of parkland per thousand (1,000) population of 
residents of any new development.  Subdivisions of 50 parcels or more are required either 
to dedicate land for park purposes, to pay a dedication fee in lieu of land, or a 
combination of both to satisfy the development’s proportion of the adopted park acreage.  
The Sunset Ranchos planning area of the General Development Plan is zoned to 
accommodate up to 4,265 dwelling units. At 2.6 persons per dwelling unit, the area is 
projected to generate up to 11,089 persons. Approximately  55.45 acres of parkland will 
be required to serve future residents.  The plan designates 57.3 acres of public park and 
6.7 acres of private recreation sites. These include one community park site of 40.3 acres 
and four neighborhood park sites totaling 17 acres.  

 
The community park location provides a large contiguous site with relatively flat terrain 
suitable for intense recreational activity such as softball, soccer, and the construction of 
swimming pools and recreational buildings.  Other recreational activities and facilities 
may include walking, viewing, outdoor theatres, tot lots/playground, picnic areas and 
hard courts for basketball and tennis.  Restrooms and off-street parking will be provided.  
Lighting for security and night activities on the recreational fields will be installed at the 
discretion of the City. It is anticipated that competitive level lighting will be installed in 
the ball field areas. 
 
Neighborhood parks are intended to be the focal points of neighborhoods, sometimes in 
combination with elementary schools.  Two of the five neighborhood parks are adjacent 
to elementary school sites. The other three are “free-standing.” The neighborhood parks 
are planned to serve population within ¼ to ½ mile radius, and generally will not provide 

Packet Pg. 119

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 36 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

for off-street parking.  Recreational activities at these public parks may include the 
following: passive and active recreational interests, turf area for multi-use recreational 
activities, pre-school and school-aged/playgrounds, picnic areas, hard courts for 
basketball, and restrooms.   
Park design will be at the discretion of the Parks and Recreation Commission and the 
City Council. The park sites have General Plan designations of PQP and are zoned as 
Planned Development - Parks.  See Figure 6 for locations of parks. 
 
 3.6.2 Open Space 

 
The plan preserves open space areas, which provide numerous passive and active 
recreational opportunities for future residents.  The following areas have been identified 
for preservation and designated as open space: 

 
♦ Areas with steep slopes in excess of 25%. 
♦ All lands within the post development 100-year floodplain. 
♦ Lands within 50 feet from the edge of the bank of all perennial and intermittent 

streams and creeks providing natural drainage, and to areas consisting of riparian 
habitat. 

♦ Wetland resources associated with the area’s natural drainage ways.  
 

Open space corridors are designed to: 
 

a) Provide a buffer between land uses. 
b) Preserve special areas of riparian or other botanical habitat including those subject to 

the conditions of any Federal or State wetland preservation permit requirements. 
c) Provide a corridor for off-street pedestrian and bikeway circulation. 
d) Provide a visually unifying natural element. 
e) Encourage view corridors to points of orientation throughout the plan area; both for 

local, short range views to landmarks in the area, and long range views to the Sierra 
Nevada and Coast Range foothills. 

f) Provide land for on-site management of stormwater drainage. 
 

Development will be restricted in open space areas.  Open space areas may be configured 
as common-interest parcels under control of individual or master Homeowners 
Association(s) (HOAs) or dedicated to the City of Rocklin with some other mechanism 
for financing improvements and maintenance.  Unless otherwise noted for improvements 
such as road crossings, utilities and pedestrian and bike trail, these areas will remain 
undeveloped.  Open space areas are shown on Figure 6 - parks, open space and trail 
system map.   
 
A Fuel Modification Plan (FMP) will be prepared concurrently with any subsequent 
entitlement for development of land which includes or is adjacent to an open space area 
to address the interface between open space areas and urban uses.  The goal of the FMP is 
to reduce the potential for fire and contain the spread of fire.  It shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

Packet Pg. 120

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 37 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 
a) Access points as necessary into open space areas. 
b) Appropriate clearances around homes. 
c) Disposal of removed brush and trees within any firebreak area. 

Packet Pg. 121

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 38 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Figure 6 – Parks, Open Space and Trail Map 
 

Packet Pg. 122

Agenda Item #7.b.



ENGINEERING & PLANNING
"EXCELLENCE"

UBORAUBORA
2901 DOUGLAS BOULEVARD, SUITE 285

ROSEVILLE, CA 95661  (916) 780-2500

PARKS, OPEN SPACE
& TRAIL MAP

FIGURE  6

N.W.R.A.LEGEND:P
acket P

g. 1
2

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 39 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

3.7 Schools 
 
The plan provides a 50-acre high school site, one 19.9-acre junior high school and two 
elementary school sites totaling 22.4 acres.  The 2 elementary school sites are located 
next to neighborhood park sites to provide joint-use opportunities.  Consistent with City 
policy, public schools are allowed in all zoning designations in the City. 

 
3.8 Circulation 
 
The vehicular circulation system is designed to provide continuous access throughout the 
plan area, as well as connections to the existing community. The plan area’s roadway 
system also provides important regional roadway connections to SR 65, the City of 
Lincoln to the north, and through adjacent projects to Sierra College Boulevard. 

 
Non-vehicular circulation within the plan area consists of a system of sidewalks, bike 
lanes and pedestrian trails. These sidewalks, bike lanes and trails provide non-vehicular 
access between neighborhoods, to schools/parks and open space, to neighborhood 
commercial facilities as well as to employment centers. 
 

3.8.1 Interchanges 
 
Interchanges are planned at Sunset Boulevard/SR 65 and Whitney Ranch Parkway/SR 65 
intersections along the western boundary of the plan area. Funding for the future 
interchanges has been addressed in the financing plan for the GDP.  
 

3.8.2 Vehicular Circulation System 
 

The street system is organized in a hierarchy with three arterial streets carrying traffic to 
and throughout the plan area.  Whitney Ranch Parkway is an east-west connection 
between Highway 65 and the Whitney Oaks development. Wildcat Boulevard will 
connect the existing community with Twelve Bridges in Lincoln. West Oak Boulevard 
will be extended through the plan area to connect to Whitney Ranch Parkway. University 
Avenue, is a 4-lane north-south, divided arterial parallel to Highway 65 that will provide 
access to the Highway 65 Corridor properties. The location of University Avenue from 
Whitney Ranch Parkway to Sunset Boulevard through the William Jessup University site 
is conceptual.  Ultimate alignment will be determined at subsequent project approvals 
and will be based on criteria such as acceptable street radius, connectivity to established 
signalized intersections and other environmental constraints. Collector streets will 
provide access into individual neighborhoods.  Conceptual locations of collector streets 
along the arterial roads are shown on the Figure 7. Final alignments will be shown on 
subsequent Tentative Maps.   

 
Wyckford Boulevard and Kali Place will provide access to Parcel K.  These streets are 
currently stubbed to the Parcel K boundary. Under limitations defined in the North 
Rocklin Circulation Element, no more than 200 additional residential dwelling units shall 

Packet Pg. 124

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 40 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

be allowed to access Wyckford Boulevard. Parcel K proposes development of up to 131 
109 dwelling units consistent with the threshold established for Wyckford Boulevard.  

 
Each elementary school site will be provided with a minimum of two street frontages to 
facilitate traffic circulation.  A road may also be established on the east side of the high 
school to also facilitate circulation. Location and alignment of local streets will be shown 
on subsequent Tentative Maps.  
 
A summary of major road improvements is provided in Table 11.  Figure 7 shows the 
plan area’s arterial roadways, number of lanes and location of traffic signals.  Right-of-
way improvements for the roadways are shown in road cross-section on Figure 8. 

 
Table 11 

Major Roadway Improvements 
 
Roadway 

Right-
of-way 

# of 
Lanes 

Width Per 
Travel Lane 

Landscape 
Median 

Sidewalk 
Width 

Frontage 
Landscape 

Cross 
Section 

Whitney Ranch Parkway, 
from Hwy 65 to University 
Avenue. 

 
158’ 

 
6 

 
12’ 

 
20’ 

 
6’ 

 
25’ 

 
F 

Whitney Ranch Parkway, 
from – University Avenue 
to Wildcat Blvd. 

 
152’ 

 
6 

 
12’ 

 
14’ 

 
6’ 

 
25’ 

 
A 

Whitney Ranch Parkway, 
from Wildcat Blvd. to 
Painted Pony Dr., and 
portions of Wildcat Blvd. 

 
130’ 

 
4 

 
12’ 

 
14’ 

 
6’ 

 
27’ & 35’ 

 
C 

Whitney Ranch Parkway, 
from Painted Pony Dr. to 
Park Dr., and West Oak 
Blvd., north of Painted 
Pony  

 
140’ 

 
 

4 

 
 

12’ 

 
 

14’ 

 
 

6’ 

 
 

27’ & 35’ 

 
B 
G 

West Oak Blvd., south of 
Painted Pony  

130’ 4 12’ 14’ 6’ 21’ & 31’ H 

University Avenue 120’ 4 12’ 14’ 6’ 15’ B 
Typical Ind./Comm St 60’ 2 21’ - 6’ - D 

 Notes: 
• The 6 and 4-lane arterials are intended to function as non-frontage access roads 

except where driveway access to commercial areas or multi-family uses is needed. 
• All major intersections will have appropriate bus turnouts based on PCTA’s 

recommendations. 
• Whitney Ranch Parkway median width will be 20 ft. between the interchange and 

B Street to accommodate City secondary entryway sign. 
• Whitney Ranch Parkway, east of Painted Pony and West Oaks, north of Painted 

Pony, include additional shoulders (5’ minimum) which also serve as NEV lane in 
each direction of traffic. 

Packet Pg. 125

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 41 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Figure 7 – Vehicular Circulation Map 
  

Packet Pg. 126

Agenda Item #7.b.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 42 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

Figure 8 – Roadway Cross-Sections 
  

Packet Pg. 128

Agenda Item #7.b.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 43 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

3.8.3 Bikeway and Pedestrian Trail System 
 

The City’s General Plan includes an on-street and off-street bicycle plan that 
interconnects the entire community on a bikeway trail system.  Most of the major streets 
within the City have on-street bicycle lanes and pedestrian sidewalks. 
 
The GDP bike and pedestrian trail system expands the city’s bike/pedestrian access 
concept beyond the public street rights-of-way and into planned open space corridors 
connecting neighborhoods, schools, parks, open space, commercial, and recreational 
(passive and active) uses.   
 
This comprehensive community bike and pedestrian trail system is incorporated into the 
project design.  The trail system will enhance the neighborhood village design with an 
extensive network of interconnected pedestrian and bikeway trails on-street and off-street 
within the planned open space corridors. These amenities are designed to encourage 
human activities and interactions within the pedestrian/bikeway and open space corridors, 
resulting in a greater sense of community.  The network of trails and bike lanes will be 
fully accessible to the general public. 
 
The trail system design includes a transitional component and two internal components.  
The transitional component links the City of Rocklin standard from existing major 
arterial streets into the project site.  These segments will extend the Wildcat Boulevard, 
West Oaks Boulevard, and Park Drive standard on-street bike lanes and sidewalk 
improvements to points of transition in the North West Rocklin area where the internal 
trail system begins.  Street landscaping for the transitional component has been increased 
from the standard 15 feet from arterial roads to a total of 27 feet (including a 6’-wide 
sidewalk).  The landscaping will be designed to provide a 6’ wide landscape buffer from 
the roadway, a 6’ wide sidewalk, and a 15’ landscape strip between the sidewalk and 
private property.   
 
The two internal components include the community corridor and open space corridor 
trails.  The community corridor will be the centerpiece of the trail system.  The 
community corridor places both the sidewalk and the bike paths within a 35-38 foot 
landscape corridor located on one side and a single sidewalk within a 19-27 foot 
landscape corridor on the opposite side of the street.  The 35-38 foot wide corridor 
consists of a 10’-wide paved bicycle and pedestrian trail, and 25-28 foot of landscaping.  
These corridors provide connections between the GDP village core and the multi-family 
residential and commercial land use areas.  In addition, the trail will connect to the 
Whitney Oaks trail starting at the intersection of Park Drive and Whitney Oaks Drive.  To 
facilitate the transition between the on-street bike lanes and the community corridor, the 
corridor begins at signalized intersections.  The community corridor trail system is 
approximately four (4) miles long. 
 
The open space trail cross-section is a 10’wide combined bike and pedestrian trail with 2-
foot shoulders on each side of the trail.  Open space trails will be off-street facilities 
located generally, within or along open space corridors.  The open space trails will 

Packet Pg. 130

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 44 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

connect the 40-acre community park and neighborhood parks with residential areas, 
forming an off-street trail network.  This will provide for the easy movement of 
pedestrians between neighborhoods and encourage the use of this non-vehicular form of 
travel. Open space drainage crossings will also be provided as shown to facilitate access 
and connections to residential neighborhoods.  Approximately 3 miles of trails are 
provided within or along the open space corridors.  
 
Cross sections of the community corridor and open space trail designs are depicted in 
Figure 8.  

 
3.8.4 Open Space Crossings 

 
Non-vehicular and emergency vehicle access crossings of open space within the project 
area are shown in Figure 6. These crossings have been located to provide critical 
transportation linkage to development areas and access to public facilities such as 
schools, parks and detention basins.  The approved Army Corps of Engineers’ (ACOE) 
Nationwide permit allows open space crossings. Each crossing will be designed with 
minimal effects on wetland resources within the open space area and in accordance with 
conditions of the ACOE permit, as well as Streambed Alteration Agreements for each 
crossing.  
  

Packet Pg. 131

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 45 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

3.9 Public Facilities and Services 
 

The North West Rocklin Area General Development Plan will provide the entire 
infrastructure necessary to serve the needs of residents and users within the plan area. 
Services will be provided as follows: 
 

Table 12 
Service Providers 

 
Service Provider 
Water Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) 
Sewer South Placer Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) 
Drainage City of Rocklin 
Solid Waste Auburn-Placer Disposal 
Schools Rocklin Unified School District 
Power & Natural Gas P G & E 
Telephone Pacific Bell 

 
All facilities and services shall be constructed, dedicated, or provided in accordance with 
the General Plan, the Capital Improvement plan, the Rocklin Municipal Code and other 
required entitlements and permits. 
 
 
Figure 9 – Drainage Basins and Culverts is presented below.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Packet Pg. 132

Agenda Item #7.b.



Northwest Rocklin GDP 

Page 46 of Exhibit C  
to Ord No. 1060 

 

 
 
 
 

Figure 9 – Drainage Basins and Culverts 
 
 

Packet Pg. 133

Agenda Item #7.b.



AND CULVERTS

FIGURE  9

DRAINAGE BASINS

ENGINEERING & PLANNING
"EXCELLENCE"

UBORAUBORA
2901 DOUGLAS BOULEVARD, SUITE 285

ROSEVILLE, CA 95661  (916) 780-2500

LEGEND:

P
acket P

g. 1
3

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.b

.



RESOLUTION NO. PC- 2017- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A SMALL LOT  

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP 
 

(Whitney Ranch Phase III Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map / SD2017-0007) 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The proposed Whitney Ranch Phase III project, including its related 
land use entitlements, was analyzed as required by the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) as a part of the Northwest Rocklin Annexation Area EIR and associated 
Addendum, approved and certified by City Council Resolutions No. 2002-230 and 2008-
252, respectively. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21166 and Section 15162 
of the CEQA Guidelines, no further environmental review of the Whitney Ranch Phase III 
project is required, nor should be conducted, since the project is within the scope of the 
Northwest Rocklin Annexation Area EIR and associated Addendum which adequately 
describes these activities for purposes of CEQA for the following reasons:  
 

A. No new significant environmental effects nor any substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant effects will occur from the Phase III 
project;  

 
B. No substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 

which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous 
EIR or Addendum due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects. 

 
C. No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and 

could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
previous EIR or Addendum were certified as complete shows any of the following: 

 
i) That the project will have one or more significant effects not 

discussed in the previous EIR; 
 
ii) That significant effects previously examined will be substantially 

more severe than shown in the previous EIR;  
 
iii) That mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to 

be feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 

Packet Pg. 135

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 2 
of Reso No. 

iv) That mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 
different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects of the environment, but the project proponents 
declined to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
Section 2.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 

that: 
 

A. Tentative Subdivision Map (SD2017-0007) allows the subdivision of 
approximately 41.2 gross acres into 208 single-family residential lots, 15 lettered open 
space and landscape lots to be dedicated to the City, and 1 landscape lot to be retained 
by the HOA. 

 
B. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the approval of 

this subdivision on the housing needs of the region, and has balanced those needs 
against the public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental 
resources. 

 
C. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design, is 

consistent with the concurrent North West Rocklin Annexation Area General 
Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-0004) proposed for the property. 

  
D. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design, is 

consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses and programs in the City of 
Rocklin's General Plan as modified by the concurrent Whitney Ranch Phase III General 
Plan Amendment (GPA2017-0003). 

  
E. The site is physically suitable for the proposed type and density of 

development. 
 
F. The design of the subdivision is not likely to cause substantial 

environmental damage, nor will it substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or 
their habitat. 

 
G. The design of the subdivision will not cause serious public health 

problems. 
 
H. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict 

with easements acquired by the public at large for access through or use of the property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

 
I. The design of the subdivision provides, to the extent feasible, for future 

passive or natural heating and cooling opportunities. 

Packet Pg. 136

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 3 
of Reso No. 

 
 Section 3.  The tentative subdivision map (SD2017-0007) as depicted in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is recommended for 
approval by the City Council subject to the conditions listed below. Unless otherwise 
expressly stated, the subdivider is solely responsible for satisfying each condition, and 
each of these conditions must be satisfied prior to or concurrently with the submittal of 
each final map with the City Engineer for the purpose of filing with the City Council. 
 
The approved Exhibit A shall govern the design and construction of the project.  Any 
condition directly addressing an element incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling 
and shall modify the Exhibits. All other plans, specifications, details, and information 
contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable to the project and shall be 
construed as if directly stated within the condition for approval.  Unless expressly stated 
otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each condition prior to 
approval of each final map. 
 
A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 

 The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 
B. Conditions 
 
1. Phasing 

 
Development of this subdivision shall comply with Whitney Ranch Phase II 
Exhibit E – Phasing Narrative and Graphic of Resolution No. 2010-60, as well as 
the general phasing condition, Condition B.1.f. of Resolution 2008-255.  
(PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

 
2. Schools 
 

The following conditions shall be satisfied to mitigate the impact of the proposed 
development on school facilities (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
BUILDING): 

 

Packet Pg. 137

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 4 
of Reso No. 

a. At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to the 
Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code 
section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995, to the satisfaction of 
the Rocklin Unified School District. 

 
b.   The above condition shall be waived by the City Council if the applicant 

and the District reach agreement to mitigate the impacts on the school 
facilities caused by the proposed development and jointly request in 
writing that the condition be waived. 

 
3. Utilities 

 
a. Water – Water service shall be provided to the subdivision from Placer 

County Water Agency (PCWA) in compliance with all applicable PCWA 
standards and requirements. PCWA shall verify ability to serve the 
subdivision by signing off on the subdivision improvement plans.  All 
necessary easements shall be shown and offered (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) on or with the final map. All necessary 
improvements shall be included on the subdivision improvement plans. 
(PCWA, ENGINEERING) 

 
b. Sewer – Sewer service shall be provided to the subdivision from South 

Placer Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) in compliance with all applicable 
SPMUD standards and requirements. SPMUD shall verify ability to serve 
the subdivision by signing off on the subdivision improvement plans.  All 
necessary easements shall be shown and offered (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) on or with the final map. All improvements shall be 
included on the subdivision improvement plans. 

 
 Copies of any required permits from federal, state, and local agencies 

having jurisdiction over wetland/riparian areas, which may be impacted 
by the placement of the sewer system within the plan area, shall be 
submitted to SPMUD prior to approval of the sewer plan for the project. 
(SPMUD, ENGINEERING) 

 
c. Telephone, Gas, and Electricity – Telephone, gas and electrical service 

shall be provided to the subdivision from AT&T or other service providers 
and Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E). 

 
d. Postal Service – Mailbox locations shall be determined by the local 

postmaster.  A letter from the local postmaster verifying all requirements 
have been met shall be filed with the City Engineer. (ENGINEERING) 

 

Packet Pg. 138

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 5 
of Reso No. 

e. The project shall be included in the appropriate City financing districts as 
needed to most efficiently provide for public maintenance of public areas 
and features. (ENGINEERING, FINANCE) 

 
4. Fire Service 
 

a. Improvement plans shall show the location and size of fire hydrants and 
water mains in conformance with the standards and requirements of the 
Rocklin Fire Chief and Placer County Water Agency. (FIRE, PCWA) 
 

b. Proposed street names shall be reviewed and approved by the Rocklin 
Fire Chief. (FIRE) 

 
c. OptiCom and Knox Box devices shall be installed on access gates, as 

needed. The location and configuration of any access gates shall be 
approved by the Rocklin Fire Chief. (FIRE) 
 

d. Appropriate access into open space and/or undeveloped portions of the 
project shall be provided and maintained in accordance with Fire 
Department requirements. (FIRE) 

 
e. Fire Lane and No Parking designations in the private alleys of Unit 1A 

shall be to the satisfaction of the Rocklin Fire Chief. (FIRE) 
 
5. Drainage and Flood Control 

 
a. Development, through onsite or offsite retention or detention or 

otherwise, shall not result in a net increase in the volume of stormwater 
flows, as compared to undeveloped conditions downstream. 
Development (including preliminary development activity on the site) 
that will result in a net increase in the volume of stormwater flows, as 
compared to undeveloped conditions, downstream shall be prohibited 
until appropriate detention/retention facilities designed to accommodate 
the increased flow is available to receive the flow or on or off-site 
retention or detention is provided.  To be “available to receive the 
stormwater flows” from the site of the development, the 
detention/retention facility must be constructed and in operation, and 
the owner of the development site must have the right to use the facility 
on a permanent basis for this purpose. (ENGINEERING) 
 

b. The storm drainage plan shall be prepared and submitted prior to or 
concurrently with the subdivision improvement plans.  The plan shall 
contain the following: (ENGINEERING) 

 

Packet Pg. 139

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 6 
of Reso No. 

1) Provisions for detaining run off at pre-development levels; 
      

2)   Individual lot drainage, with individual lot drainage features, such 
as lined drainage swales, being included in the improvement 
plans;  

 
3)   Location and specifications of on-site or off-site 

detention/retention basins. 
 

c. All necessary drainage easements shall be shown and offered for 
dedication (or Irrevocable Offer of Dedication provided) on or with the 
final map. (ENGINEERING) 
 

   
d. Subdivider shall prepare a storm water pollutant prevention plan 

(SWPPP) for review and approval by the State Regional Water Quality 
Control Board as part of the project's drainage improvement plans. 
(ENGINEERING) 
 

e. Storm drainage inlets shall be stamped with City Engineer approved 
wording indicating that dumping of waste is prohibited and identifying 
that the inlets drain into the creek system. (ENGINEERING) 
 

f. Flat top drainage inlets will not be accepted unless approved by the City 
Engineer. Drainage inlets shall be placed at lot lines. Drainage inlets 
placed in front of driveways will not be accepted. (ENGINEERING) 
 

g. All drain pipe outfalls at detention/retention ponds shall be designed per 
City Engineer requirements. (ENGINEERING) 
 

h. All drainage outfalls must go through sand and oil separators or other 
water quality treatment system acceptable to the City. (ENGINEERING) 

 
i. As determined appropriate, some water quality treatment facilities can 

be storm drain inlet type storm water quality control structures. 
(ENGINEERING) 
 

j. Other appropriate permanent BMPs/BATs, such as those described in 
Condition M.11. in Exhibit B of the General Development Plan, shall be 
incorporated into project designs to reduce urban pollutants in runoff, 
consistent with goals and standards established under federal and State 
non-point source discharge regulations (NPDES permit) and Basin Plan 
water quality objectives. Stormwater runoff BMPs selected from the 
Storm Water Quality Task Force (California Storm Water Best 

Packet Pg. 140

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 7 
of Reso No. 

Management Practices Handbook, 1993), the Bay Area Stormwater 
Management Agencies Association Start at the Source Design Guidance 
Manual, the Sacramento Stormwater Quality Partnership Stormwater 
Quality Design Manual, the City of Rocklin’s Post-Construction Design 
Manual, or equally effective measures shall be identified prior to final 
design approval. To maximize effectiveness, the selected BMPs/BATs 
shall be based on finalized site-specific hydrologic conditions, with 
consideration for the types and locations of development. Mechanisms 
to maintain the BMPs/BATs shall be identified. 
 
Provisions for the maintenance and periodic inspection of permanent 
facilities shall be addressed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and 
the Director of Public Services. These provisions shall include periodic 
inspection, cleaning, and the replacement of filter materials, as 
necessary, to retain the integrity of the BMP/BAT. (ENGINEERING, 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES) 

 
6. Grading 

 
A grading plan and final geotechnical investigation/report shall be included with 
the subdivision improvement plans. The grading of the lots often involves a 
cut/fill situation that has the possibility to result in differential settlement. The 
geotechnical investigation/report shall specifically explore this issue and provide 
recommendations as applicable in the report to ensure that structures 
constructed on the lots do not experience significant differential settlement. The 
geotechnical investigation shall be prepared by a professional engineer or 
geologist registered in the State of California in accordance with State 
regulations and to the satisfaction of the City. The City shall ensure 
recommendations pertaining to site preparation, construction, and building and 
roadway design are identified in the geotechnical report and are incorporated 
into each project design through the plan check and inspection process. 
(ENGINEERING) 

 
7. Improvements/Improvement Plans 
 

Prior to any grading, site improvements, or other construction activities 
associated with this project improvement plans shall be prepared consistent 
with the exhibits and conditions incorporated as a part of this entitlement, and 
in compliance with all applicable city standards, for the review and approval of 
the City Engineer.  The project improvement plans shall include the following: 
(ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, PLANNING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, FIRE) 

 
a. The following subdivision improvements shall be designed and 

constructed and/or installed:  

Packet Pg. 141

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 8 
of Reso No. 

 
1) All on-site standard subdivision improvements, including streets, 

curbs, gutters, sidewalks, drainage improvements, utility 
improvements (including cable television trenching), fire hydrants 
and street lights which shall be the standards identified in Exhibit 
G of Resolution 2008-255 for Phase II, and the street sign poles 
and brackets shall match what was installed in Whitney Ranch 
Phases I and II. Curb types shall be per City Standards and City 
Engineer requirements. 
 
 

32) The following on-site special improvements: 
 

   Retaining Walls 
 

a) Individual lot side yard and rear yard retaining walls may 
be tan or grey segmental block or CMU if they are not 
visible from the public or private right-of-way or a public 
vantage point (such as trails). Retaining walls located 
within any street side yards shall be split face in 
appearance on the side exposed to public view. Wood 
retaining walls are not allowed in any locations where 
retaining walls are installed by the subdivider. 
 

b) All retaining walls within City public rights-of-way shall 
have a design to convey base of wall drainage such that no 
drain water will flow over the sidewalk. Each situation will 
be evaluated based on specific site characteristics. Possible 
solutions could include under sidewalk drains or 
connection to the adjacent street storm drain system.  
 

c) All retaining walls in individual lots within street side yards, 
side yards between individual lots and at the rear of lots 
other than those adjacent to open space shall contain 
drains with drain stub outs. All drain stub outs shall be as-
built to provide the home builder with accurate 
information so the home builder can connect the retaining 
wall drain to the lot drain system. 
 

d) Retaining walls adjacent to open space shall have seep 
drains at the heel of the retaining wall and may be piped 
to daylight to the open space. 

    

Packet Pg. 142

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 9 
of Reso No. 

   Streetlights 
 

e) Decorative residential and arterial street lights as used in 
Phases I and II shall be installed on all streets within the 
subdivision. Lighting installation and wiring shall comply 
with all applicable City standards. Replacement parts shall 
also be provided to the City to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Public Services. 
 

Street Sign Poles and Brackets  
 

f) Decorative street sign poles and brackets consistent with 
those installed in Whitney Ranch Phases I and II shall be 
installed on all streets within the subdivision. Replacement 
parts shall also be provided to the City to the satisfaction 
of the Director of Public Services. 

 
Walls and Fences 

 
g) All masonry walls shall be in substantial compliance with 

Exhibit A, with pilaster spacing no greater than 80 feet on 
center.  
 

h) Open space fencing shall be in substantial compliance with 
Exhibit A. 
 

i) All tubular steel fences and 50/50 combination walls shall 
be in substantial compliance with Exhibit A. Rust 
preventative shall be applied to all ornamental fencing. 
Ornamental fencing may be powder coated or coated with 
a zinc, inorganic zinc, or oil based primer with a poly-
urethane top coat to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Public Services. 
 

j) Standard post and cable fencing along open space 
boundaries and at interfaces between open space lots and 
public right-of-way with standard bollards shall be 
installed at access points to the City-owned open space 
preserve lots as required by Public Services and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Packet Pg. 143

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 10 
of Reso No. 

Utility Access Road, Unit 55C 
 

j) The 10 foot wide utility access road shall be constructed of 
an all-weather surface. Final location and design shall be 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and SPMUD.  

 
3) Landscaping 

 
a) Landscape and irrigation plans shall be included with the 

project improvement plans and shall comply with the 
following:  (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, PLANNING) 
 

 1) Landscaping shall be installed in substantial 
 compliance with Exhibit A.  

 
2) The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a 

landscape architect and shall include: 
 

i. A legend of the common and botanical 
names of specific plant materials to be 
used. The legend should indicate the size of 
plant materials. Groundcovers shall be 
planted at appropriate distances to achieve 
coverage at maturity, shrubs shall be a mini-
mum of 5 gallon, and trees a minimum of 
15 gallon and meet the minimum height 
specified by the American Standards for 
Nursery Stock. 

 
ii. A section diagram of proposed tree staking. 
 
iii. An irrigation plan including an automatic 

irrigation system. All street landscaping, 
whether publicly or privately owned, shall 
be irrigated by a permanent drip system or 
low water consumption system acceptable 
to the City Rocklin. Privately landscaped 
areas within Unit 44B shall be on water 
meters that are separate from the City’s 
water meter and irrigation systems. 

 
iv. Use of granite or moss rock boulders along 

the planting areas. 
 

Packet Pg. 144

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 11 
of Reso No. 

v. Certification by the landscape architect that 
the landscape plans meets the require-
ments of the Water Conservation in 
Landscaping Act. Government Code §65591, 
et seq. 

 
vi. Certification by the landscape architect that 

the soil within the landscape area is suitable 
for the proposed landscaping and / or 
specify required soil treatments and 
amendments needed to ensure the health 
and vigor of landscape planting. 
 

3) All landscaping improvements shall be constructed 
and/or installed prior to submitting the final map 
for filing with the City Council, unless the 
subdivider executes the City’s standard form 
subdivision landscaping agreement and provides 
the financial security and insurance coverage 
required by the subdivision landscaping 
agreement, prior to or concurrent with submitting 
the final map. 

 
4) The subdivider shall maintain the landscaping and 

irrigation systems for one year from the date the 
landscaping is accepted by the City, without reim-
bursement. The subdivider shall apply for and 
obtain an encroachment permit to do any 
maintenance in the public right-of- way until such 
time as the City takes over maintenance of the 
landscaping. 

 
b. Improvement plans for all subdivision improvements shall conform with 

the City's Standard Specifications then in effect, and shall be submitted to 
and reviewed and approved by the City Engineer.  Approval by the City 
Engineer shall be valid for a period of two years.  If substantial work has 
not been commenced within that time, or if the work is not diligently 
pursued to completion thereafter, the City Engineer may require the 
improvement plans to be resubmitted and/or modified to reflect changes 
in the standard specifications or other circumstances.  
 

c. All improvements shall be constructed and/or installed prior to 
submitting the final map with the City Engineer for the purpose of filing 
with the City Council, unless the subdivider executes the City's standard 

Packet Pg. 145

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 12 
of Reso No. 

form subdivision improvement agreement and provides the financial 
security and insurance coverage required by the agreement, prior to or 
concurrent with submitting the final map with the City Engineer.  
 

d. Improvement plans shall contain provisions for dust control, revegetation 
of disturbed areas, and erosion control, in conformance with the 
requirements of the City Engineer.  If an application for a grading permit 
is made prior to execution of a subdivision improvement agreement, it 
shall include an erosion control plan approved by the City Engineer and 
shall be accompanied by financial security to ensure implementation of 
the plan.  

 
e. All rights-of-way for public roads associated with the subdivision 

improvements shall be offered for dedication in fee on the final 
subdivision map. 

 
f. The following lots shall be dedicated via an Irrevocable Offer of 

Dedication (IOD) to the City of Rocklin for open space, 
detention/retention facilities, drainage facilities, and landscape purposes: 

 
 - Unit 1A (Lots A, B, and C) 
 - Unit 42 & 44A (Lots A, B, C, D, and E) 
 - Unit 44B (Lots A, B, C, D, E, and F) 
 - Unit 55C (Lot A) 
 

g. The following shall be included in the project notes on the improvement 
plans: 
 
1) Prior to commencement of grading, the subdivider shall submit a 

construction emission/dust control plan for approval by the City 
Engineer, Public Services Director, and the Placer County Air 
Pollution Control District (District).  The plans shall specify 
measures to reduce dust pollution during all phases of 
construction. 

 
2) Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 25 

m.p.h. or less. 
 

3) All grading operations shall be suspended when wind speeds 
exceed 25 m.p.h. 

 
4) All adjacent paved streets shall be swept during construction. 
 

Packet Pg. 146

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 13 
of Reso No. 

5) All trucks leaving the site shall be washed off to eliminate dust 
and debris. 

 
6) All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean condition. 
 
7) All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 
 
8) If fill dirt is brought to the construction site, tarps or soil 

stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to minimize dust 
problems. 

 
9) Water or dust palliatives shall be applied on all exposed earth 

surfaces as necessary to control dust.  Construction contracts shall 
include dust control treatment as frequently as necessary to 
minimize dust. 

 
10) Construction equipment shall be properly maintained and tuned. 
 
11) Low emission mobile construction equipment shall be utilized 

where possible. 
 
12) Open burning is prohibited. 

 
13) Construction equipment exhaust emissions shall not exceed 

District Rule 202 Visible Emission Limitations. 
 

14) The prime contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive 
inventory (i.e., make, model, year, emission rating) of all the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment (50 horsepower or greater) that 
will be used an aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction 
project.  District personnel, with assistance from the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB), will conduct initial Visible Emission 
Evaluations of all heavy-duty equipment on the inventory list. 
 

15) Construction contracts shall stipulate that at least 20% of the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment included in the inventory be 
powered by CARB-certified off-road engines, as follows: 

 
175 hp to 750 hp 1996 and newer engines 

 100 hp to 174 hp 1997 and newer engines 
 50 hp to 99 hp  1998 and newer engines 
 

In lieu of or in addition to this requirement, an applicant can use 
other measures to reduce particulate matter and nitrogen oxide 

Packet Pg. 147

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 14 
of Reso No. 

emissions from their project through the use of emulsified diesel 
fuel and/or particulate matter traps. The District shall be 
contacted to discuss this measure. 
 

16) All heavy construction equipment and all stationary noise sources 
(such as diesel generators) shall have manufacturer-installed 
mufflers. 
 

17) Equipment warm up areas, water tanks, and equipment storage 
areas shall be located in an area as far away from existing 
residences as is feasible. 
 

18) Those engaged in construction activity shall comply with the City 
of Rocklin Construction Noise Compatibility Guidelines, including 
restricting construction-related noise generating activities within 
or near residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on 
weekdays and 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends or matching 
any subsequent changes in City policy to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer or Building Official. 
 

19) Construction traffic associated with development of the Whitney 
Ranch Phase III areas shall utilize Whitney Ranch Parkway from 
the west to access the sites. This route is to be used by both heavy 
equipment and individual construction workers. Limited 
construction access on West Oaks Boulevard between Whitney 
Ranch Parkway and Painted Pony Lane may be permitted for 
major delivery of materials and equipment or other special 
activities subject to approval in advance by the City of Rocklin 
Public Services Director. Information regarding these restrictions 
and requirements shall be included in all improvement plans and 
contractor agreements.   
 

20) If evidence of soil contamination, such as stained or odorous soils, 
or other evidence of hazardous materials is encountered during 
construction or development activities, work shall cease until an 
environmental professional, retained at the applicant’s expense, 
has evaluated the situation and identified necessary and 
appropriate follow-up actions. As part of this process, the City 
shall ensure that any necessary investigation and/or remediation 
activities conducted in the project area are coordinated with 
Placer County Division of Environmental Health, and, if needed, 
other appropriate State agencies. (Placer County Division of 
Environmental Health) 
 

Packet Pg. 148

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 15 
of Reso No. 

21) If, during construction in the Phase III area, groundwater is 
encountered and dewatering activities are required, the water 
shall be analyzed by an environmental professional, retained at 
the applicant’s expense, to determine if the water contains unsafe 
levels of pesticides, herbicides, nitrates, or other contaminants. 
Work shall not continue until results of the water analyses have 
been reported and the Placer County Division of Environmental 
Health has been informed of the results and has provided 
guidance. (Placer County Division of Environmental Health) 

22) The Phase I Environmental Site Assessment prepared for the 
project site (Sunset Ranchos) shall be implemented to ensure that 
the potential environmental conditions associated with the 
properties do not present a health and safety hazard to the 
environment, the site workers, or the public. The 
recommendations include, but are not limited to, confirmation as 
to whether illegally applied pesticides, herbicides, or nitrates are 
present in soil and water on the property, investigation of 
potential heating oil tanks or hazardous building materials 
associated with on-site residences, and further investigation of 
trash pits at the development site.  Additional site investigations 
shall be coordinated with the Placer County Division of 
Environmental Health and any required remediation shall be 
completed. (Placer County Division of Environmental Health) 

23) If blasting activities are to occur in conjunction with site 
development, the contractor shall conduct the blasting activities 
in compliance with State and local regulations.  The contractor 
shall obtain a blasting permit from the City of Rocklin prior to 
commencing any blasting activities.  Information submitted to 
obtain a blasting permit shall include a description of the work to 
be accomplished and a statement of necessity for blasting as 
opposed to other methods considered, including avoidance of 
hard rock areas, safety measures to be implemented, such as 
blast blankets, and traffic groundshaking impacts.  The contractor 
shall coordinate any blasting activities with police and fire 
departments to ensure proper site access control, traffic control, 
and public notification including the media and affected residents 
and businesses, as appropriate.  Blasting specifications and plans 
shall include a schedule that outlines the time frame that blasting 
will occur to limit noise and traffic inconveniences. 

24) a. If, during construction, the project applicant, any 
successor in interest, or any agents or contractors of the 

Packet Pg. 149

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 16 
of Reso No. 

applicant or successor discovers a cultural resource (such 
as CA-PLA-616) that could qualify as either an historical 
resource or a unique archaeological resource, work shall 
immediately stop within 100 feet of the find, and both the 
City of Rocklin and a representative of the Indian 
Community shall be immediately notified.  Work within 
the area surrounding the find (i.e., an area created by a 
100-foot radius emanating from the location of the find) 
shall remain suspended while a qualified archaeologist, 
retained at the applicant's expense, conducts an onsite 
evaluation, develops an opinion as to whether the 
resource qualifies as either an historical resource or a 
unique archaeological resource, and makes 
recommendations regarding the possible implementation 
of avoidance measures or other appropriate mitigation 
measures. Based on such recommendations, as well as any 
input obtained from the Indian Community within 72 
hours (excluding weekends and State and federal holidays) 
of its receipt of notice regarding the find, the City shall 
determine what mitigation is appropriate.  If the 
discovered cultural resource is not a Native American 
artifact, a Native American site, an historical resource, or a 
unique archaeological resource, the City shall not require 
any additional mitigation, consistent with the policies set 
forth in Public Resources Code sections 21083.2 and 
21084.1. 

At a minimum, any Native American artifacts shall be 
respectfully treated and offered to the Indian Community 
for permanent storage or donation, at the Indian 
Community's discretion, and any Native American sites, 
such as grinding rocks, shall be respectfully treated and 
preserved intact.  In considering whether to impose any 
more stringent mitigation measures, the City shall consider 
the potential cost to the applicant and any implications 
that additional mitigation may have for project design and 
feasibility.  Where a discovered cultural resource is neither 
a Native American artifact, a Native American site, a 
historical resource, nor a unique archaeological resource, 
the City shall not require any additional mitigation, 
consistent with the policies set forth in Public Resources 
Code sections 21083.2 and 21084.1. 

 

Packet Pg. 150

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 17 
of Reso No. 

b. If, during construction, the project applicant, any 
successor in interest, or any agents or contractors of the 
project applicant or successor discovers any human 
remains, the following steps should be taken: 

 
1)  There shall be no further excavation or disturbance 

of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected 
to overlie adjacent human remains until: 

   
a) The project applicant or its successor in 

interest contacts the Placer County Coroner 
so that the Coroner can determine whether 
any investigation of the cause of death is 
required, and 

 
b) If the Coroner determines the remains to be 

Native American:  
  

i. The Coroner shall contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission 
within 24 hours (excluding 
weekends and State and federal 
holidays). After hearing from the 
Coroner, the project applicant or its 
successor in interest shall 
immediately notify the City of 
Rocklin and a representative from 
the Indian Community of the 
Coroner's determination, and shall 
provide the Indian Community the 
opportunity, within 72 hours 
thereafter, (excluding weekends and 
State and federal holidays) to 
identify the most likely descendant. 

 
ii. The Native American Heritage 

Commission shall identify the person 
or persons it believes to be the most 
likely descended from the deceased 
Native American. 

 
iii. The most likely descendent, as 

identified by either the Native 
American Heritage Commission or 

Packet Pg. 151

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 18 
of Reso No. 

the Indian Community, may make 
recommendations to the landowner 
or the person responsible for the 
excavation work, for means of 
treating or disposing of, with 
appropriate dignity, the human 
remains and any associated grave 
goods as provided in Public 
Resources Code section 5097.98, or 

 
2) Subject to the terms of paragraph 3) below, where 

the following conditions occur, the landowner or 
his authorized representative shall rebury the 
Native American human remains and associated 
grave goods with appropriate dignity on the 
property in a location not subject to further 
subsurface disturbance. 

 
a) The Native American Heritage Commission 

is unable to identify a most likely 
descendent or the most likely descendent 
failed to make a recommendation within 24 
hours (excluding weekends and State and 
federal holidays) after being notified by the 
Commission. 

 
b) The Indian Community is unable to identify 

a most likely descendent, or the most likely 
descendant identified by the Indian 
Community failed to make a 
recommendation within 72 hours (excluding 
weekends and State and federal holidays) 
after the project applicant or its successor 
notified the Indian Community of the 
discovery of human remains; or 

 
c) The landowner or its authorized 

representative rejects the recommendation 
of the descendant identified by the 
Commission, and the mediation by the 
Native American Heritage Commission fails 
to provide measures acceptable to the 
landowner. 

 

Packet Pg. 152

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 19 
of Reso No. 

3) In the event that the Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American in origin, and the 
Native American Heritage Commission and the 
Indian Community agree that the remains are of a 
person associated with the historic United Auburn 
Indian Community, the project applicant or its 
successor, if permitted by state law, shall provide 
the remains and any associated grave goods to the 
Indian Community with the understanding that 
the Indian Community will provide for burial with 
appropriate dignity at an appropriate location that 
will not be subject to future disturbance. 

 
25) a. All heavy construction equipment and all stationary noise 

sources (such as diesel generators) shall have 
manufacturer installed mufflers. 

 
b. Equipment warm up areas, water tanks, and equipment 

storage areas shall be located in an area as far away from 
existing residences as feasible. 
 

c. Those engaged in construction activity shall comply with 
the City of Rocklin Construction Noise Compatibility 
Guidelines, including restricting construction-related noise 
generating activities within or near residential areas to 
between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays and 8:00 
a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends, to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Public Services or the Building Official. (PUBLIC 
SERVICES, BUILDING) 
 

26) Temporary fencing shall be erected at locations determined by 
the City Engineer during all construction operations to prevent 
encroachment into riparian areas, woodland tree canopies, or 
other sensitive areas, as needed. 

 
8. Biological Resources 

 
a. The project shall avoid any net loss of seasonal wetlands and 

jurisdictional waters of the United States, or the bed, channel, or bank of 
any stream. Such avoidance may be achieved by implementing and 
complying with the provisions of the Clean Water Act, as administered by 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, under Section 404 of the Clean Water 
Act, and under Sections 1600-1607 of the California Fish and Game Code, 
as administered by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) 

Packet Pg. 153

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 20 
of Reso No. 

(previously Department of Fish and Game), which includes obtaining all 
required permits from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and entering into 
a Streambed Alteration agreement with CDFW and complying with all 
terms and conditions of those permits and agreements. 
 
Satisfaction of the conditions shall require the applicant to submit to the 
Economic and Community Development Director and the City Engineer 
verification from the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers and the CDFW that the 
development project meets all regulations and that the applicant has 
obtained all required permits relating to wetlands and waterways. 

 
b. The following information shall be included as a note within the 

improvement plans:  
 
Measures to protect Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle (VELB) are 
outlined in the Biological Opinion for the Sunset Rancho’s Project dated 
July 21, 2000 and amended on October 13, 2000 (Service File 1-1-00F-
0044, Corps File 199800668) as part of General Condition 11 of the 
Nationwide Permit No. 26 wetlands fill permit for that project. These 
measures may include the following: 
 
All contractors and construction crews shall be briefed by a qualified 
biologist on the status of VELB (federally listed as threatened) and the 
need to protect its host plant, requirements to avoid damaging 
elderberry plants, and possible penalties for not complying with 
identified mitigation and monitoring measures. All elderberry stems of at 
least 1.0 inch diameter at ground level that cannot be avoided during 
construction act ivies shall be transplanted to an USFWS-approved 
mitigation area. 
 
All transplanting of elderberry plats shall occur during the plants’ 
dormant season (November to mid-February) and follow the standards 
set forth in the USFWS Conservation Guidelines for the Valley Elderberry 
Longhorn Beetle (July 9, 1999). 

 
c. Prior to construction, the applicant, in consultation with the city of 

Rocklin and CDFW, shall conduct a pre-construction breeding-season 
(approximately February 15 through August 30 September 15) survey of 
the development project site during the same calendar year that 
construction is planned to begin. The survey shall be conducted by a 
qualified raptor biologist to determine if any birds-of-prey are nesting on 
or directly adjacent to the development project site. (No surveys are 
required if construction activities occur outside of the breeding season.) 

 

Packet Pg. 154

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 21 
of Reso No. 

If phased construction procedures are planned for the development 
project, the results of the above survey shall be valid only for the season 
when it is conducted. A new survey shall be conducted for construction 
occurring in subsequent seasons. 
 
A report shall be submitted to the City of Rocklin, following the 
completion of the raptor nesting survey that includes, at a minimum, the 
following information: 
 
A description of methodology including dates of field visits, the names of 
survey personnel with resumes, a list of reference cited and person 
contacted, and a map showing the location(s) of any raptor nests 
observed on the project site. 
 
If the survey does not identify any nesting raptor species on the project 
site, no further mitigation shall be required. However, should any raptor 
species be found nesting on the project site, the following mitigation 
conditions shall be implemented: 

 
1) The applicant, in consultation with the City of Rocklin and CDFW, 

shall direct construction activities to avoid all birds-of-prey nest 
sites located in the development project site during the breeding 
season while the nest is occupied with adults and/or young. The 
occupied nest shall be monitored by a qualified raptor biologist to 
determine when the nest is no longer used. Avoidance shall 
include the establishment of a nondisturbance buffer zone around 
the nest site. The size of the buffer zone will be determined in 
consultation with the City and CDFW. Highly visible temporary 
construction fencing shall delineate the buffer zone. 

 
2) If a legally-protected species nest is located in a tree designated 

for removal, the removal shall be deferred until after August 30th, 
or until the adults and young are no longer dependent on the nest 
site as determined by a qualified biologist. 

 
d. The project shall avoid any net loss of vernal pool crustaceans and their 

habitat. This avoidance may be achieved through the Section 
404/Setcion7 Consultation permit process, in accordance with typical 
standards used by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. This requirement 
shall be implemented prior to approval of improvement plans or any land 
use entitlements. 
 
There are three options for mitigation of project-related impacts to 
vernal pool crustacean habitat: 

Packet Pg. 155

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 22 
of Reso No. 

 
--Option 1:  The applicant shall establish an USFWS-approved mitigation 
bank. The applicant shall reconstruct vernal pool crustacean habitat at a 
replacement ratio of 1:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat creation AND 
2:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat preservation for each acre of 
vernal pool crustacean habitat impacted. 
 
The applicant shall permanently protect the agreed-upon acreage of 
vernal pool crustacean habitat within the mitigation bank via a USFWS-
approved conservation easement, to be held by an USFWS-approved 
entity. 
 
--Option 2:  The applicant shall pay into the USFWS vernal pool 
crustacean mitigation fund. The replacement ratio would 1:1 for vernal 
pool crustacean habitat creation and 2:1 for vernal pool crustacean 
habitat preservation for each acre of vernal pool crustacean habitat 
impacted. 
 
--Option 3:  The applicant shall purchase vernal pool crustacean 
mitigation credits from an existing mitigation bank. The replacement 
ratio would be 1:1 for vernal pool crustacean habitat creation and 2:1 for 
vernal pool crustacean habitat preservation for each acre of vernal pool 
crustacean habitat impacted. 
 
Applicants shall submit to the Economic and Community Development 
Director and the City Engineer verification from the USFWS that the 
project meets all regulations and that the developer/subdivider has 
obtained all required permits relating to vernal pool crustacean habitat. 
 

9. Landscaping Maintenance Agreement 
 

Prior to approval of a final map the subdivider shall enter into an agreement with 
the City of Rocklin providing for the maintenance of landscaping within the 
public right-of-way. The agreement shall stipulate that the HOA shall maintain 
the irrigation system and all plant materials in that area to the satisfaction of the 
Public Services Director. The agreement shall also indemnify the City against 
claims arising from developer’s activities and shall be recorded and binding on 
successors in interest of the developer. (ENGINEERING) 

 
10. Improvements in the Public Right-of-Way 

 
The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for all improvements within 
the public right-of-way and/or other lands owned by the City of Rocklin. 
Applicant shall post a performance bond and labor and materials payment bond 

Packet Pg. 156

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 23 
of Reso No. 

(or other equivalent financial security) in the amount of 100% of the cost of the 
improvements to be constructed in the public right-of-way as improvement 
security to ensure the faithful performance of all duties and obligations required 
of applicant in the construction of the improvements. Such improvement 
security shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  Such security shall be 
either a corporate surety bond, a letter of credit, or other instrument of credit 
issued by a banking institution subject to regulation by the State or Federal 
government and pledging that the funds necessary to carry out this Agreement 
are on deposit and guaranteed for payment, or a cash deposit made either 
directly with the City or deposited with a recognized escrow agent for the 
benefit of the City. (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
11. Subdivision Design – Special Conditions 
 

a. In Unit 44B the landscape median in public Road D shall have plants and 
irrigation installed to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director and the Public Services Director. Plants shall 
include drought tolerant shrubs and groundcovers in compliance with 
PCWA requirements and to the satisfaction of the Public Services 
Director. (PCWA, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
b. In Lot A of Unit 55C adjacent to the sidewalk there shall be installed an 

amenity area generally consistent with those installed in Phase II Unit 41 
at the open space/road interface on Hitching Rail Street and Dusty Stone 
Drive, as shown in Exhibit A. Access to the SPMUD maintenance road 
shall be controlled with either standard post and cable fencing or with 
standard metal open space fencing, set back 10 feet from the back of 
sidewalk, including collapsible bollards or a gate, to the satisfaction of the 
Public Services Director, the Fire Chief, and SPMUD. (PUBLIC SERVICES, 
FIRE, SPMUD)  

 
c. Landscape lots at arterial and secondary intersections shall have accent 

trees planted in the area between the back of sidewalk and the 
champhered masonry wall, in groups of two or three, consistent with 
Phases I and II, and the mix of shrubs and groundcovers in the landscape 
lots shall be to the satisfaction of the Public Services Director and the 
Economic and Community Development Director. (PUBLIC SERVICES, 
PLANNING) 

 
d. Prior to recordation of the final map for Unit 55C, the extension of Lazy 

Trail Drive between Painted Pony Lane (Unit 55A) and Hidden Ranch Loop 
(Unit 57) shall be constructed on the improvements plans, If not already 
constructed with either of the adjacent Units 55A and/or 57. 
(ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

Packet Pg. 157

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 24 
of Reso No. 

12. Open Space -- Common Areas -- Maintenance 
 

Prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final map the Subdivider 
shall provide for the ownership and maintenance of those portions of the project 
to be commonly owned and / or maintained by the residents of the subdivision 
as specified herein through formation of a homeowner's association. The 
documents creating the homeowner's association shall meet the following 
requirements and minimum provisions:  (ENGINEERING, CITY ATTORNEY, 
PLANNING) 

 
a. Define the following portions of the subdivision to be common areas 

jointly owned and / or maintained by the residents of the subdivision: 
 

-- Unit 1A (Alleys A through K) 
-- Unit 44B (Lot G) 

 
b. Assignment to the homeowner's association responsibility for the 

maintenance of common areas and commonly maintained areas including 
but not limited to: fencing, walls, and signage; landscaping; private utility 
services; outdoor lighting; private alleys; recreational areas and facilities 
including trails, benches and other amenities; detention and drainage 
facilities that are not maintained by the City.  

 
c. Assignment to the homeowner's association responsibility to monitor and 

report to the Economic and Community Development Director of the City 
of Rocklin on activities and violations of any of these conditions, easement 
restriction, or any other ordinance, rule or regulation of the City occurring 
within the common area. 
 

d. A statement that the City may, at its option, cause the maintenance 
responsibilities set forth in the documents creating the homeowners 
association to be performed and assess (lien) the cost to the homeowner's 
association in the event the project is not maintained in accordance with 
the approved plans.  (RMC §17.60.040) 

 
e. A statement expressly prohibiting modification or deletion of any portion 

of the homeowner’s association documents which specifically address City 
conditions of approval, City requirements, or termination of the HOA in its 
entirety, without the express written consent of the City. 

 
f. The documents creating the homeowner's associations/cost centers shall 

be reviewed and approved by the City Attorney for compliance with the 
conditions of approval stated in this Resolution prior to recordation. 

Packet Pg. 158

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 25 
of Reso No. 

13. Parks 
 
Community Park Fees shall be paid as required by implementation of the North 
West Rocklin Public Facilities Financing and Phasing Plan.  (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING, PLANNING, FINANCE) 

 
14. Air Quality 

 
a.  Residential subdividers shall record the following separate instrument 

with their final map(s): (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 

A document prepared by or on behalf of the subdivider for the education 
of all residents within the project addressing the following air quality 
concerns: 

 
1) Open burning, wood burning, and air pollution: problems and 

solutions. 
 

2) Transportation control measures: ride sharing, mass transit 
availability/schedules, computerized ride-matching services, and 
other measures designed to reduce both the use of single-
occupancy vehicles and vehicle miles traveled. 

   
b.  The Subdivider(s) shall participate in the Placer County Air Pollution 

Control District’s (PCAPCD) Offsite Mitigation Program. Fees for single-
family residential units shall be collected at the time of each respective 
small lot Final Map. (ENGINEERING, PCAPCD) 

 
15. Monitoring 

 
Prior to recording of the first final map or any grading on the property, the 
subdivider shall deposit with the City of Rocklin the current fee to pay for the 
City’s time and material cost to administer the Mitigation Monitoring Program. 
The Economic and Community Development Director shall determine if and 
when additional deposits must be paid for administering the Mitigation 
Monitoring Program, including additional deposits on subsequent phase final 
maps.  These amounts shall be paid prior to recording subsequent final maps on 
this project. (PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

 
16. Lighting 
 

Lighting shall be designed to the extent practicable to incorporate downcast 
lighting, shielding, and other measures commonly employed as “dark sky” 

Packet Pg. 159

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 26 
of Reso No. 

provisions. Lighting shall be reviewed by the Director of Economic and 
Community Development for compliance with this condition. (PLANNING) 

 
17. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 
 

Within 30 days of approval of the tentative subdivision map or tentative parcel 
map by the City, the subdivider shall execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved 
by the City Attorney’s Office, to indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold 
harmless the City of Rocklin and its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action, or proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul 
an approval of the subdivision or parcel map by the City’s planning commission 
or City Council, which action is brought within the time period provided for in 
Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify the 
subdivider of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will cooperate in 
the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless waived by the City, no 
further processing, permitting, implementation, plan checking or inspections 
related to the subdivision or parcel map shall be performed by the City if the 
Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed within 30 days.  (CITY 
ATTORNEY) 

 
18. Effective Date 
 

Pursuant to Government Code section 66452.6, this approval shall be valid for a 
minimum term equal to remaining term of the Development Agreement for the 
project (Ordinance 859 as amended), or for a period of thirty-six (36) months, 
whichever is longer, but in no event for a shorter period than the maximum 
period of time permitted by the Subdivision Map Act. (PLANNING, 
ENGINEERING) 
 

19. Concurrent Approvals 
 

Approval of this small lot tentative subdivision map (SD2017-0007) is contingent 
upon City Council approval of the General Plan Amendment (GPA2017-0003), 
General Development Plan Amendment (PDG2017-0004), and Rezone (Z2017-
0005) being processed concurrently. (PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

Packet Pg. 160

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 27 
of Reso No. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2017, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Whitney Ranch Phase 3\Meeting Packets\PC 10-17-17\04 Whitney Ranch P3 SD2017-
0007 PC Reso 10-17-17 - final.doc 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 161

Agenda Item #7.c.



 

Page 1 to Exhibit A 
To Reso No. 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Whitney Ranch Phase III - Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map  

(SD2017-0007) 
 

Packet Pg. 162

Agenda Item #7.c.



SD2017-0007

P
acket P

g. 1
6

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.c.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

Staff Report 
  

STANFORD PLAZA PHASE 1C 
 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2017-0009 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL2017-0006 

 
 

October 17, 2017 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Subject to the recommended conditions of approval, staff recommends the Planning 
Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009 and DL2017-0006) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
DESIGN REVIEW (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DL2017-0006) 
 
Proposal 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Parcel Map (DL2017-0009) to 
divide a vacant 1.79-acre site within the Stanford Plaza retail development into two lots 
(Parcel 1 = 0.75 acres; and Parcel 2 = 1.04 acres) and a Design Review (DR2017-0009) to 
construct two buildings and associated parking lot and landscaping. 
 
 

Packet Pg. 191

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 2  
 
Location 
 
The subject property is located on the southwest corner of Sunset Boulevard and Pebble 
Creek Drive.  The Assessor Parcel Number (APN) is 364-090-019. See Figure 1.  

 
Figure 1. Project Location 

 
 
 
Owner/ Applicant 
 
The applicant is Borges Architectural Group. The property owner is Eureka Development 
Co.  
 
Site Characteristics 
 
The project site is a part of the larger Stanford Plaza Shopping Center, approved by the 
Planning Commission in April 2005. The rest of the center, located to the south of the 
project site, was constructed shortly after approval. The project site is bounded by 
Sunset Boulevard on the east, Coppervale Drive on the west, and an extension of Pebble 

Packet Pg. 192

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 3  
 
Creek Drive (identified as Copper Court on some maps) on the north. The site has been 
rough graded and is generally flat with no significant vegetation remaining. See Table 1 
for surrounding uses. 

 

Table 1.  Surrounding Uses 

 Current Use Current General Plan / Zoning 

Project 
Site 

Vacant remainder of 
existing shopping center 

 
Retail Commercial (RC)   

Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) 
 

North Coffee kiosk 

Business Professional/Commercial/Light 
Industrial (BP/COMM/LI)   

Planned Development Light Industrial/Business 
Professional/Commercial / (PD-LI/BP/COM) 

South Existing Shopping Center Retail Commercial (RC) 
Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) 

East Existing Shopping Center Retail Commercial (RC)  
Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) 

West Single-Family Residential Medium High Density Residential (MHDR) 
Planned Development Residential 9/ac (PD-9) 

 

Background 
 
The project site is located within the boundaries of the Sunset West General 
Development Plan, which was approved by the City Council in 1996. The property was 
created as result of the concurrent large lot tentative subdivision map for the Sunset 
West area. 
 
The original subdivision (Sunset West Lot 58) was approved on April 5, 2005. The project 
was a Design Review (DR-2004-15), Use Permit (U-2004-11) and Tentative Parcel Map 
(DL-2004-12) to allow the construction and operation of a shopping center consisting of 
eight buildings totaling approximately 110,000 square feet of building area, associated 
parking, landscaping, and signage, and to allow the division of five existing lots into eight 
lots on approximately 11 acres. See Figure 2.   
 
Since the original approval, three of the buildings have been constructed on 
approximately 3.7 acres in the southern portion of the site, at the intersection of Sunset 

Packet Pg. 193

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 4  
 
Boulevard and Stanford Ranch Road. Photos of the existing building have been included 
as Attachment 1.  
 

Figure 2.  Approved Sunset West Lot 58 (Stanford Plaza) 

 
 

In 2008, a Design Review (DR-2004-15A) was approved to modify the original approval 
to allow construction of an approximately 14,000 square foot neighborhood market 
building (Fresh and Easy) in a portion of the property previously approved for two 
commercial buildings. The market was never constructed and the entitlements have 
since expired. This project proposes to construct two buildings within this 1.79-acre 
area. 
 
The 5.5-acre remainder of the originally-approved project, located to the west of the 
developed shopping center, was also modified in 2015. The Sunset at Stanford Ranch 
Subdivision (SD2014-0004) was approved for the development of a single-family 
residential development of 47 lots on this portion of the site. This subdivision is 
currently under construction.  
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 194

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 5  
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The project site is designated as Retail Commercial (RC) on the General Plan. The site is 
located within the Sunset West General Development Plan, and is zoned and Planned 
Development Commercial (PD-C). These designations are designed to implement the 
city’s general plan policies of providing land designated for retail stores, professional 
offices, supportive commercial uses and the like for the convenience of the public and in 
mutually beneficial relationships to each other. The proposed project would allow for 
the construction of two commercial buildings. Staff has analyzed the proposed project 
and finds that it is consistent with the Rocklin General Plan, the Sunset West General 
Development Plan, and the provisions of the Rocklin Municipal Code.   
 
Tentative Parcel Map 
 
The project proposes to subdivide the 1.79-acre property into two lots. Parcel 1 would 
be 0.75 acres and Parcel 2 would be 1.04 acres. The proposed lot sizes are consistent 
with the Sunset West General Development Plan and with surrounding properties 
within the center, as well as all other applicable requirements. 
 
Design Review 
 
General Site Layout 
 
The project site is comprised of a single parcel that forms a roughly rectangular site. The 
proposed site layout integrates seamlessly with the layout of the constructed portions 
of the shopping center. Through the shopping center, the project site has access to 
Pebble Creek Drive, Sunset Boulevard, and Stanford Ranch Road. See Figure 3 for the 
proposed site layout. 
 
Reciprocal access and parking easements between the constituent parcels were 
required as part of the original project to ensure the shopping center functions properly. 
A condition has been included in the draft resolution for approval of the Tentative Map 
to ensure that reciprocal access and parking easements are recorded over and between 
each of the parcels comprising the subdivision and to the other parcels within the 
shopping center prior to or concurrent with the recording of the final map.  
 
Both proposed buildings feature drive-thru aisles which would allow stacking of eight 
vehicles. These aisles have been reviewed to ensure that they can adequately meet the 
required turn movements within the shopping center, as well as any other applicable 
codes or regulations. It has been determined that both drive-thru lanes are consistent 
with City standards. 

Packet Pg. 195

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 6  
 

Figure 3.  Proposed Site Layout 

 
 
Project Architecture 
 
The project site is not located within one of the City’s adopted Architectural Districts, 
and is therefore subject only to the architectural requirements of the Citywide Design 
Review Guidelines and the Municipal Code. 
 
The project plans provide for the construction of two commercial buildings. Building A, 
to be located on proposed Parcel 1, would be a 2,791 square foot drive-thru restaurant. 
It has tentatively been identified by the applicant as a Popeye’s Louisiana Chicken. 
Building B, to be located on proposed Parcel 2, would be a 5,000 square foot retail 
building with a drive-thru end cap. No tenant has been identified for this building.  
 
The architectural design of both buildings is intended to complement and blend with 
that of the rest of the development to create an attractive and upscale shopping center. 
The buildings would both utilize a cream base color, with an off white trim. In addition, 
the buildings would utilize green, red, and orange accent colors, which would be similar 
to the color palettes used on the existing buildings within the center. 
 
Both proposed buildings would feature parapet walls with varied roof heights. Building 
A includes a dark green decorative metal railing, which would provide articulation to the 
upper portion of the northwest elevation and also serve as the canopy above the drive-
thru window. Along this same elevation, as well as on the reverse elevation, vinyl 
shutters, painted with the same dark green, would be added to break the plain of the 
wall. The building also would feature a stone veneer wainscoting at the base of the 
building.  

Packet Pg. 196

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 7  
 
Building B would feature a decorative tile band, consistent with other buildings within 
the shopping center. It also features columns projecting out from the store front, 
awnings, stone veneer wainscoting, and other features which are designed to add 
architectural interest to the building.  
 
Given that the proposed structures generally utilize the same architectural style, 
materials, and general color scheme as the other buildings in the shopping center, staff 
believes that the project will blend with and enhance the shopping center project. 
  
Traffic/Circulation 
 
The proposed project will not result in any significant changes to the on or off site traffic 
circulation beyond those anticipated by the shopping center approvals in 2005. No 
changes, improvements, or modifications to the existing street improvements and / or 
the approved on site circulation system are needed or required as a part of this project.  
 
Parking 
 
As discussed previously, reciprocal access and parking easements between the 
constituent parcels are required to ensure the shopping center functions properly. 
Therefore, parking demands and inventory shall be discussed cumulatively, rather than 
only for the two proposed buildings.  
 
Within the shopping center, there are three existing buildings, which total 
approximately 33,530 square feet of floor area. Based on the Municipal Code parking 
requirements of 5 spaces per 1,000 square feet, the existing buildings require 168 
parking spaces. The proposed project would add two buildings which total 
approximately 7,800 square feet of floor area. Based on the parking ratio, this would 
require an additional 39 parking spaces. Therefore, the total required parking for the 
shopping center is 207 stalls.  
 
The project would provide for a total of 220 stalls within the shopping center (149 
regular, 64 compact, and 7 accessible stalls). This exceeds the parking requirement for 
the center by approximately 6%. Staff therefore supports the proposed parking plan for 
the project.  
 
Signage 
 
Project signage will be required to be consistent with the approved Uniform Sign 
Program for the Stanford Plaza Shopping Center. Any signage shown on the building 
elevations is included for locational and illustrative purposes only.  
 

Packet Pg. 197

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Stanford Plaza Phase 1C 
October 17, 2017 
Page 8  
 
Landscaping 
 
Landscaping is proposed around the perimeter of the site, around the building, and 
interspersed throughout the parking lot. The landscape plan provides for the use of a 
variety of trees, shrubs and groundcovers, such as Eastern Redbud, Australian Willow, 
and Crape Myrtle trees, and should provide for an attractive appearance that blends 
well with the landscaping approved for the remainder of the Shopping Center site.   
 
The applicant has proposed to place 15 container plantings around the entry and along 
Sunset Boulevard to further enhance the project’s appearance. Staff has included 
conditions of approval to ensure that the container plantings provide for a mix of plant 
materials and are provided with automatic irrigation systems.  
 
The parking lot is required to be shaded by tree planting at a distribution that achieves 
50% shading of the paved area at maturity (15 years). Parking lot trees are required to 
be large canopy trees to maximize the amount of shade produced by the tree. The 
project has included shade calculations as part of its plan submittal, which states that 
the calculated total tree shade for the site would be 12,509 total square feet at maturity 
throughout the 22,841 square feet of paving area. This would provide a shade total of 
55%, which exceeds City requirements by 5%. Based on the information described 
above, staff supports the proposed project landscaping.  
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The development of two retail commercial buildings as described above is exempt 
pursuant to Class 32 of the CEQA Guidelines. Class 32 exemptions consist of projects 
characterized as in-fill development, which are consistent with the applicable general 
plan policies and zoning designation; occur within city limits on a project site of no more 
than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses; has no value as habitat for 
endangered, rare, or threatened species; would not result in any significant effects 
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and can be adequately served by all 
required utilities and public services. The project, as proposed, complies with all of these 
requirements and is therefore exempt. A Notice of Exemption has been prepared and is 
recommended for approval.  
 
Attachments 
 

1. Photos – Existing Shopping Center  

Packet Pg. 198

Agenda Item #8.



ATTACHMENT 1 – Existing Shopping Center 

 

 

 

 

 
Packet Pg. 199

Agenda Item #8.



 

 

 

 

 

Packet Pg. 200

Agenda Item #8.



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

(Stanford Plaza Phase 1C/ DR2017-0009 and DL2017-0006) 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the Stanford Plaza 
Phase 1C project (DR2017-0009 and DL2017-0006) (“Project”) and determined that it is exempt from 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to California Code of Regulations 
Section 15332 – Infill Development Projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. Based on the review and determination of the Environmental Coordinator, the 

Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds that the Project is exempt from review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
Section 2. A Notice of Exemption is approved for the Project. 
 
Section 3. Upon approval of the Project by the Planning Commission, the Environmental 

Coordinator may file the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk of Placer County and, if the 
Project requires a discretionary approval from any state agency, with the State Office of Planning and 
Research, pursuant to the provisions of Section 21152(b) of the Public Resources Code and the State 
EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant thereto. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ________, 2017, by the following call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:   
NOES:  Commissioners:   
ABSENT: Commissioners:   
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:   
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary 

 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 201

Agenda Item #8.a.



 
 

 
 

 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

 
 

TO: County Clerk, County of Placer FROM: City of Rocklin 
 2954 Richardson Blvd.  ECD Department 
 Auburn, CA  95604-5228  3970 Rocklin Road 
   Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Project Title: Stanford Plaza Phase 1C/ DR2017-0009 and DL2017-0006 
 
Project Location - Specific:  The subject site is located on the southwest corner of Sunset Boulevard & 
Pebble Creek Drive.  APN 364-090-019. 
 
Project Location - City: Rocklin, CA; County: Placer 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: The project will divide a vacant 1.79-
acre site into two lots and construct two buildings and associated parking lot and landscaping. 
Building A would be a 3,600 square foot drive-through restaurant and Building B would be a 5,000 
square foot retail building with a drive-through end cap. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  City of Rocklin  
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: The applicant is Borges Architectural Group, Attn: 
Rocelyn Pilar, 1478 Stone Point Drive, Ste. 350, Roseville, CA 95661, (916) 782-7200. The property 
owner is Eureka Development Company. 
 
Exempt Status (Check one) 

_x_ Categorical Exemption (California Code of Regulations Sec. 15300 et seq.): 15332 Infill 
Development Projects. 

 
Reasons why the project is exempt: The project involves constructing two buildings and associated 
parking lot and landscaping, as further described above. Class 32 exemptions consist of projects 
characterized as in-fill development meeting the conditions described below:  
 
1. The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general 

plan policies as well as the zoning designation and regulations. 

The project site is designated in the General Plan as Retail Commercial (RC). The purpose of the RC 
designation is to: 

 

Packet Pg. 202

Agenda Item #8.a.



 
 

A.  To provide appropriately located areas for retail stores, professional offices, supportive 
commercial uses and amusement uses in a concentrated area for the convenience of the public 
and in mutually beneficial relationships to each other. 

B. To provide areas suitable for retail and service establishments intended to meet daily 
convenience needs of residential areas. 

C. To provide areas for highway traveler services and uses normally associated with travelers and 
vacationers. 

The property’s zoning is Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) which allows for commercial 
uses which implement the goals and policies contained within the General Plan for Retail 
Commercial development. 

2. The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than five acres 
substantially surrounded by urban uses. 

The project site is located within the city limits on a property that is currently 1.79 +/- gross acres 
in size. The site is substantially surrounded by urban uses, included but not limited to, retail 
commercial and residential development. 

3. The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 

The site has been previously graded, is currently vacant and is mostly surrounded by other 
developed properties. No rare, endangered, or threatened species are known or suspected to exist 
on the project site. Most of the surrounding vicinity has been developed in an urban fashion. Given 
the above, the site is not considered to have any significant value as a habitat for any endangered, 
rare, or threatened species. 

4. Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air 
quality, or water quality. 

Approval of the project would allow new retail commercial development on the site. Adjacent land 
is mostly developed and existing infrastructure was sized and installed to accommodate such 
development. Traffic and air quality effects from the current use of this site are consistent with 
those that were anticipated in the City’s General Plan EIR. Significant noise and water quality 
effects are not anticipated with the development of retail commercial buildings. 

5. The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

The project site is located within an existing urbanized area where infrastructure was sized and 
installed to accommodate permitted uses in the area. 

 
The development of two retail commercial buildings as described above is consistent with the 
exemption class descriptions noted above and is exempt pursuant to Class 32 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 
Contact Person: Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 
 
Date received for Filing:    
 
Signature:    
 Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 

Packet Pg. 203

Agenda Item #8.a.



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION PC-2017- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW 

 
(Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A.  Design Review (DR2017-0009) approves the development of two retail 
commercial buildings totaling approximately 7,800 square feet, including site design, 
landscaping, and architecture, on an approximately 1.79-acre site; the remaining vacant 
property within a previously-entitled and mostly constructed Stanford Plaza  Shopping 
Center. Assessor’s Parcel Number 364-090-019. 
 

B. A Notice of Exemption has been approved for this Project via Planning 
Resolution No. PC-2017-__. 
 
 C. The design of the site is compatible with surrounding development, 
natural features and constraints. 
 
 D. The height, bulk, area, color scheme and materials of the buildings and 
structures are compatible with surrounding development. 
 
 E. The buildings and structures have been oriented with consideration 
given to minimizing energy consumption and maximizing use of natural lighting. 
 
 F. Adverse light and glare impacts upon adjoining properties have been 
eliminated or reduced to a less than significant level by consideration and modification 
of the location and height of light standards, orientation of exterior lighting fixtures, 
and conditioning the project to use light fixtures that will direct light downward. 
 
 G. The dimensions, placement, and design of the signs are compatible with 
the existing shopping center, as well as the surrounding development and environment. 
 
 H. The landscaping design is compatible with existing shopping center and 
the surrounding development and has been designed with provisions for minimizing 
water usage and maintenance needs. 
 
 I. The parking design, including ingress and egress traffic patterns, is 
compatible with the surrounding development and the public street patterns. 
 

Packet Pg. 204

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No.  

 J. The design of the site and buildings or structures is consistent with the 
goals, policies, and land use designations in the General Plan and with all zoning 
standards, regulations, and restrictions applicable to the property. 
 
 Section 2. The Design Review for the (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-
0009) as depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein, is hereby approved subject to the conditions listed below. Unless expressly 
stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each condition prior 
to occupancy of the structure. The approved Exhibit A shall govern the design and 
construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element incorporated 
into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other plans, 
specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically 
applicable to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the condition 
for approval. Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for 
satisfying each condition prior to issuance of the building permit. The agency and/or 
City department(s) responsible for ensuring implementation of each condition is 
indicated in parenthesis with each condition. 
 
 A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 
 B. Conditions 
 
1. Utilities 
 

a. All utilities, including but not limited to water, sewer, telephone, gas, 
electricity, and conduit for cable television shall be provided to the 
project in compliance with all-applicable standards and requirements of 
the applicable provider. (APPLICABLE UTILITY) 

Packet Pg. 205

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No.  

b. The applicant shall install un-painted, split face CMU masonry trash 
enclosures with decorative masonry caps and solid metal gates, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. The 
locations and designs of the trash enclosures shall provide for a 
minimum clear width and gate opening of 11 feet, a minimum interior 
depth of 16 feet (to accommodate two trash bins and a grease rendering 
container) and gates designed to clear adjacent curbing, to the 
satisfaction of Ecology Auburn Placer. (PLANNING, RECOLOGY AUBURN 
PLACER) 

 
c.  Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the project shall be included in the 

appropriate City financing districts, as needed, to most efficiently provide 
for public maintenance of public landscaping, improvements such as 
sound walls, and provision of new or enhanced services such as street 
lighting to the satisfaction of the City Finance Manager. It is anticipated 
the project will be required to annex into CFD #1. (FINANCE, BUILDING, 
PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
2. Schools 
 

The following conditions shall be satisfied to mitigate the impact of the 
proposed development on school facilities (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
BUILDING): 
 
a. At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to 

the Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code 
section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995, to the satisfaction 
of the Rocklin Unified School District. 

 
b.   The above condition shall be waived by the City Council if the applicant 

and the District reach agreement to mitigate the impacts on the school 
facilities caused by the proposed development and jointly request in 
writing that the condition be waived. 

 
3. Fire 
 

a. Improvement plans shall show the location and size of fire hydrants and 
water mains in conformance with the standards and requirements of the 
Rocklin Fire Chief and PCWA. (PCWA, ENGINEERING, FIRE) 

 
4. Improvements / Improvement Plans 
 

Prior to any grading, site improvements, or other construction activities 
associated with this project improvement plans shall be prepared consistent 
with the exhibits and conditions incorporated as a part of this entitlement, and 

Packet Pg. 206

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 4 of 
Reso. No.  

in compliance with all applicable city standards, for the review and approval of 
the City Engineer.  
 
Improvement plans shall be valid for a period of two years from date of approval 
by the City Engineer. If substantial work has not been commenced within that 
time, or if the work is not diligently pursued to completion thereafter, the City 
Engineer may require the improvement plans to be resubmitted and/or 
modified to reflect changes in the standard specifications or other 
circumstances.  
 
The project improvement plans shall include the following: 
 (ENGINEERING, PLANNING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 
a. A final Stormwater Control Plan and a detailed grading and drainage plan 

prepared by a registered civil engineer, in substantial compliance with 
the approved project exhibit(s) and in accord with the City of Rocklin 
Post-Construction Manual. The grading and drainage plan shall include 
the following: 

 
i) Stormwater Management  

 
1) Prior to issuance of improvement plans, to ensure 

compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System MS4s General Permit and the 
regulations and orders of the State Water Resources 
Control Board, the applicant shall prepare and implement 
a Stormwater Management Facility Operation and 
Maintenance Plan for the on-site treatment systems and 
hydromodification controls, if any, or acceptable 
alternative to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and the 
Environmental Services Manager. All specified treatment 
systems and hydromodification controls shall be privately 
owned and maintained on a regular basis to ensure proper 
performance.  (BUILDING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 

2) Prior to issuance of improvement plans, unless waived by 
the City Engineer and Environmental Services Manager, 
the developer shall grant a Stormwater Management 
Compliance Easement over the project site to the City of 
Rocklin, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. The 
Stormwater Management Compliance Easement shall be 
recorded with the County Clerk’s office and a copy of the 
recorded document shall be provided to the 
Environmental Services division. Said easement shall 

Packet Pg. 207

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 5 of 
Reso. No.  

provide for the following: (ENGINEERING, CITY ATTORNEY, 
BUILDING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 
i. Grant site access to City employees for the purpose 

of performing operations and maintenance 
inspections of the installed treatment system(s) 
and hydromodification control(s) (if any). 

ii. Grant site access to City employees for the purpose 
of performing operations and maintenance work 
on the installed treatment system(s) and 
hydromodification control(s) (if any) in the event 
that that the Director of Public Services 
determines, based upon the inspection results, 
that said work is not being performed adequately 
and has or will compromise the system’s ability to 
function as required. 

iii. A statement that the City may, at its option, cause 
the operational and maintenance responsibilities 
set forth in the Stormwater Management Facility 
Operation and Maintenance Plan to be performed 
and place a special assessment against the project 
site to recover the costs to the City in the event 
the project is not operated and maintained in 
accord with the approved Stormwater 
Management Facility Operation and Maintenance 
Plan.  (RMC §8.30.150). 

3) All storm drainage inlets shall be stamped with City 
Engineer approved wording indicating that dumping of 
waste is prohibited and identifying that the inlets drain 
into the creek system. 

4) Site design measures for detaining run off at pre-
development levels, including location and specifications 
of on-site or off-site detention basins, if any. 

5) Individual lot drainage management areas including 
individual drainage features, such as lined drainage 
swales. 

6) The developer shall prepare a Storm Water Pollutant 
Protections Plan (SWPPP) for review and approval by the 
State Regional Water Quality Control Board as part of the 
project’s drainage improvement plans. 

 ii) Prior to the commencement of grading operations, and if the 
project site will not balance with respect to grading, the 

Packet Pg. 208

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 6 of 
Reso. No.  

contractor shall identify the site where any excess earthen 
material shall be deposited. If the deposit site is within the City of 
Rocklin, the contractor shall submit a report issued by a technical 
engineer to verify that the exported materials are suitable for the 
intended fill and show proof of all approved grading plans. Haul 
routes to be used shall be specified. If the site requires importing 
of earthen material, then prior to the commencement of grading 
operations, the contractor shall identify the site where the 
imported earthen material is coming from and the contractor 
shall submit a report issued by a technical engineer to verify that 
the imported materials are suitable for the intended fill and show 
proof of all approved grading plans. Haul routes to be used shall 
be specified. (ENGINEERING) 

 
iii) If at any time during the course of grading or construction 

activities evidence of the existence of old wells, septic systems or 
other similar features is encountered, work shall be halted within 
100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be 
notified. The City Engineer shall make a determination as to the 
nature of the feature (or features), the appropriate size for a 
buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on 
the balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should 
be notified and involved in addressing and/or remediation of the 
feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 
applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to 
assess and characterize the feature and to determine appropriate 
remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be 
completed and documented to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to 
completion of grading/construction in the affected area. 

 
b. All on-site standard improvements, including but not limited to:  

 
i) Paving, curbs (including concrete curbs to contain all landscape 

areas adjacent to vehicle parking areas or travel lanes), gutters, 
sidewalks, drainage improvements, irrigation improvements 
(main lines and distribution where located under paved areas), 
utility improvements, parking lot and site lights, fire hydrants, 
retaining walls, fences, pilasters, enhanced pavement treatments, 
trash enclosures, etc.  

 

Packet Pg. 209

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 7 of 
Reso. No.  

ii) All necessary easements for drainage, access, utilities, etc. shall 
be shown and offered for dedication (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) with the improvement plans.  

 
iii) To the extent possible underground facilities such as but not 

limited to electrical, gas, water, drainage, and irrigation lines shall 
be located outside of or to the edge of areas designated for 
landscaping so as to minimize impacts to the viability of these 
areas.  

 
iv) Rough grading, erosion control, and hydroseeding (with a drought 

tolerant mix of wild flowers and grasses), as deemed appropriate 
by the City Engineer, for all areas disturbed by grading of the 
project site but not developed. 

 
c. A detailed parking lot striping plan designed per City standards, which 

indicates all parking spaces, aisles, entrances, and exits in substantial 
conformance with Exhibit A. (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 

 
d. Prior to any grading or construction activities including issuance of 

improvement plans, the developer shall submit a design-level soil 
investigation for the review and approval of the City Engineer and Chief 
Building Official that evaluates soil and rock conditions, particularly the 
potential for expansive soils. The professional engineer that prepared the 
soil investigation shall recommend appropriate roadway construction 
and foundation techniques and other best practices that are to be 
implemented by the project during construction. These techniques and 
practices shall address expansive soils or other geological concerns 
requiring remediation, including but not limited to:  

 
• Recommendations for building pad and footing construction; 
• Use of soil stabilizers or other additives; and 
• Recommendations for surface drainage. 

 
e. Provisions for dust control, re-vegetation of disturbed areas, and erosion 

control, in conformance with the requirements of the City of Rocklin, 
including but not limited to the following (which shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans): 
 
i) The prime contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive 

inventory (e.g., make, model, year, emission rating) of all the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment (50 horsepower or greater) that 
will be used in aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction 
project.  If any new equipment is added after submission of the 
inventory, the prime contractor shall contact the District prior to 

Packet Pg. 210

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 8 of 
Reso. No.  

the new equipment being utilized. At least three business days 
prior to the use of subject heavy-duty off-road equipment, the 
project representative shall provide the District with the 
anticipated construction timeline including start date, name, and 
phone number of the property owner, project manager, and on-
site foreman. 
 

ii) During construction the contractor shall utilize existing power 
sources (e.g., power poles) or clean fuel (e.g., gasoline, biodiesel, 
natural gas) generators to minimize the use of temporary diesel 
power generators. 

 
iii) During construction, the contractor shall minimize idling time to a 

maximum of 5 minutes for all diesel powered equipment. 
 

iv) Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 15 
mph or less. 

 
v) All grading operations shall be suspended when fugitive dust 

emissions exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for having an individual who 
is CARB-certified to perform Visible Emissions Evaluations (VEE).  
This individual shall evaluate compliance with Rule 228 on a 
weekly basis. 

 
vi) Fugitive dust emissions shall not exceed 40% opacity and shall not 

go beyond the property boundary at any time. If lime or other 
drying agents are utilized to dry out wet grading areas, the 
developer shall ensure such agents are controlled so as not to 
exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations. 

 
vii) The prime contractor shall be responsible for keeping adjacent 

public thoroughfares clean of silt, dirt, mud, and debris, and shall 
“wet broom” the streets (or use another method to control dust 
as approved by the individual jurisdiction) if silt, dirt mud or 
debris is carried over to adjacent public thoroughfares. 

 
viii) The prime contractor shall suspend all grading operations when 

wind speeds (including instantaneous gusts) are excessive and 
dust is impacting adjacent properties. 

 
ix) The contractor shall apply water or use other method to control 

dust impacts offsite.  Construction vehicles leaving the site shall 
be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being 
released or tracked off-site. 

Packet Pg. 211

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 9 of 
Reso. No.  

 
x) All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean 

condition. 
 

xi) Chemical soil stabilizers, vegetative mats, or other appropriate 
best management practices, in accordance with manufacturers’ 
specifications, shall be applied to all-inactive construction areas 
(previously graded areas which remain inactive for 96 hours). 

 
xii) All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 

 
xiii) If fill dirt is brought to or exported from the construction site, 

tarps or soil stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to 
minimize dust problems. 

 
xiv) Water shall be applied to control fugitive dust, as needed, to 

prevent impacts offsite. Operational water trucks shall be onsite 
to control fugitive dust. Construction vehicles leaving the site 
shall be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being 
released or tracked off-site. 

 
xv) Processes that discharge 2 pounds per day or more of air 

contaminants, as defined by California State Health and Safety 
Code Section 39013, to the atmosphere may require a permit.  
Developers / Contractors should contact the PCAPCD prior to 
construction or use of equipment and obtain any necessary 
permits. 

 
xvi) In order to minimize wind driven dust during construction, the 

prime contractor shall apply methods such as surface 
stabilization, establishment of a vegetative cover, paving, (or use 
another method to control dust as approved by the City).  

 
xvii) Construction equipment exhaust emissions shall not exceed 

Placer County APCD Rule 202 Visible Emission limitations.  
Operators of vehicles and equipment found to exceed opacity 
limits are to be immediately notified by APCD to cease operations 
and the equipment must be repaired within 72 hours. 

 
xviii) Open burning of any kind shall be prohibited.  All removed 

vegetative material shall be either chipped on site or taken to an 
appropriate recycling site, or if a site is not available, a licensed 
disposal site. 

 

Packet Pg. 212

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 10 of 
Reso. No.  

xix) Any diesel powered equipment used during project construction 
shall be Air Resources Board (ARB) certified. 

 
f. The following noise conditions shall be included in the notes on the face 

of the improvement plans: (ENGINEERING) 
 
i) All “self-powered” construction equipment and stationary noise 

sources (e.g. pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be equipped 
with noise control devices (e.g. mufflers). (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING) 
 

i) Equipment “warm-up” areas, water storage tanks, equipment 
storage areas, and stationary noise-generating machinery (e.g. 
pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be located away from the 
existing residences and other sensitive noise receptors to the 
extent feasible. (ENGINEERING, BUILDING) 
 

ii) All phases of project development shall be subject to the City of 
Rocklin Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting 
construction-related noise generating activities within or near 
residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on 
weekdays, between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends. The 
Economic and Community Development Director may grant 
exceptions to the Construction Noise Guidelines if, in the opinion 
of the Economic and Community Development Director, special 
and unusual circumstances exist that make strict adherence to 
the Construction Noise Guidelines infeasible. (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING) 

 
g. The following cultural resource condition shall be included in the project 

notes on the improvement plans, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer: 
 
If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of 
shell, charcoal, animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, 
structure/building remains) is made during project-related construction 
activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted and 
a qualified professional archaeologist, the Environmental Services 
Manager and the Native American Heritage Commission shall be notified 
regarding the discovery. The archaeologist shall determine whether the 
resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique 
paleontological resource) and shall develop specific measures to ensure 
preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to the resource if it 
cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, logistics, technological 
considerations, the location of the find, and the extent to which 

Packet Pg. 213

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 11 of 
Reso. No.  

avoidance and/or preservation of the find is consistent or inconsistent 
with the design and objectives of the project. Specific measures for 
significant or potentially significant resources would include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, preservation in place, in-field documentation, 
archival research, subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of 
measure necessary would be determined according to evidence 
indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner consistent 
with CEQA guidelines for preserving or otherwise mitigating impacts to 
archaeological and cultural artifacts.  
 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human 
remains, there shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site 
or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human 
remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) 
and (2) of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98, has occurred. If any human remains are discovered, all work 
shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the County Coroner 
shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and 
Safety Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall also be 
notified. If the remains are Native American, the Coroner will notify the 
Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will inform a most 
likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the 
landowner appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, 
and the landowner shall comply with the requirements of AB2641 
(2006). (ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, ENGINEERING) 
 

5. Landscaping 
 
 a. Final landscape plans shall be provided by the developer and approved 

by the Director of Economic and Community Development. The 
landscape plans shall comply with the following requirements: 
(PLANNING) 

 
i) The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect 

and shall include: 
 

1) A legend of the common and botanical names of specific 
plant materials to be used. The legend should indicate the 
container size of plant materials, the size at maturity, and 
include a graphic symbol for each plant type: 

 
Shrubs shall be a minimum of five (5) gallon and trees a 
minimum of fifteen (15) gallon and meet the minimum 
height specified by the American Standards for Nursery 

Packet Pg. 214

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 12 of 
Reso. No.  

Stock. Groundcover spacing shall be sufficient to achieve 
adequate cover upon establishment of the plants. 
 

2) A section diagram of proposed tree staking. 
 
3) An irrigation plan including an automatic irrigation system. 

The plan shall include drip irrigation wherever possible. 
 
4) Documentation and verification that the proposed parking 

lot landscaping will achieve 50% shading at maturity (15 
years from planting) or project plans shall be modified to 
provide for 1 parking lot shade tree to be located every 5 
parking spaces, to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director. 

 
b. The parking lot lighting plan shall be designed to accommodate shade 

trees and provide for illumination of the parking areas. Light standards 
and underground utilities shall be located such that required parking lot 
shade trees can still be planted. 
 

c. All landscaping shall be installed and the landscape architect shall certify, 
in writing, that the landscaping and irrigation system have been installed 
in full compliance with the approved plans prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. (PLANNING) 

 
6. Landscaping Maintenance Agreement 
 

a. Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, the property owner 
shall enter into an agreement with the City of Rocklin providing for 
the maintenance of landscaping within the public right-of-way along 
Sunset Boulevard. The agreement shall stipulate that the City of 
Rocklin shall maintain the irrigation system and the property owner 
shall maintain all plant materials. The agreement shall also indemnify 
the City against claims arising from developer’s activities and shall be 
recorded and binding on successors in interest of the developer. 
(ENGINEERING / PUBLIC WORKS) 

 
7. Architecture 
 

a. All wall-mounted mechanical equipment and conduit shall be color-
matched to the adjacent building color to minimize its visibility, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(PLANNING) 

 

Packet Pg. 215

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 13 of 
Reso. No.  

b. The back or rear of any parapet wall that may be visible from an adjacent 
right-of-way or property shall be painted the same color as the front of 
the parapet wall to provide a more finished appearance. (PLANNING) 

 
c. The architecture of the buildings, including finishes and details, shall be 

in substantial conformance with Exhibit A. (PLANNING) 
 
8. Lighting 

 
The lighting design plan shall be approved by the Economic and Community 
Development Director for compliance with this condition. (PLANNING) 
 
a. All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed to avoid adverse glare 

on adjacent properties and to incorporate “dark sky” provisions. Cut-off 
decorative lighting fixtures, or equivalent, shall be used for parking lot 
and building mounted lighting and mounted such that all light is 
projected directly toward the ground. 

 
b. The photometric plan shall be reviewed and revised if needed to avoid 

“hot spots” under the parking lot lights and to eliminate light spill over 
the property lines that exceeds 0.1 foot candles. 

 
c. Light poles shall be a maximum of 20 feet in height as measured from 

grade to the top of the light fixture itself. 
 
9. Signs 

 
Project signage shall be consistent with the approved Uniform Sign Program for 
the Stanford Plaza Shopping Center. Any signage shown on the building 
elevations is included for locational and illustrative purposes only. (PLANNING) 
 

10. Screening of Mechanical Equipment 
 

a. All mechanical equipment, whether ground- or roof -mounted, shall be 
screened from view from all public rights-of-way and the design of the 
screening shall be in harmony with the architectural design of the 
building, to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
11. Air Quality 

 
a. Electrical receptacles shall be installed in the exterior walls of the 

building(s) in this project to promote the use of electrical landscaping 
equipment. (BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 

Packet Pg. 216

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 14 of 
Reso. No.  

b. Low nitrous oxide (NOx) natural gas hot water heaters shall be installed if 
gas hot water heaters are to be used in this project. (BUILDING, 
PLANNING) 

 
12. Security 
 

a. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall prepare a security 
plan for review by the Rocklin Police Department, and shall provide the 
Rocklin Police Department with the names and telephone numbers of a 
responsible party to contact. (PLANNING, POLICE) 

 
b. Prior to occupancy of each building, the property owner shall obtain and 

maintain at all times, an Alarm System Permit for each security system 
installed and operated in the center, if any, in accord with the 
requirements of Chapter 9.44 of the Rocklin Municipal Code.  (POLICE) 

 
13. Phasing 

 
If the project is to be phased, a phasing plan showing the sequence of site 
improvements shall be submitted for review and approval by the Economic and 
Community Development Director. The Economic and Community Development 
Director may condition the phasing to ensure each phase shall function 
independently. Landscaping along the entire street frontage may be required for 
design continuity and consistency of plant growth. (PLANNING, BUILDING) 

 
14.  Special 
 

a. All conditions and provisions of Conditional Use Permit U-2004-11 
approved for the Sunset West Lot 58 shopping center, of which this 
project is a portion, via Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2005-43, 
are applicable to this project. This includes the delivery hour restrictions 
of Condition #4.a. (PLANNING) 
 

b. Prior to occupancy of either building, the striping on Coppervale Drive 
and Pebble Creek Drive shall be refreshed. (BUILDING, TRAFFIC, 
PLANNING) 

 
c. The project shall comply with the latest Caltrans RSP A88A Standard. 

(PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 

16. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 
 

Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the developer shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to 
indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its 

Packet Pg. 217

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 15 of 
Reso. No.  

agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the 
City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an approval of the entitlement by the 
City’s planning commission or City Council, which action is brought within the 
time period provided for in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City 
will promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and 
the City will cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 
waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, plan 
checking or inspections related to the subdivision or parcel map shall be 
performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed 
within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 
 

17. Validity 
 
a. This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless 

prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension 
has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
b. This entitlement shall not be considered valid and approved unless and 

until the concurrent Tentative Parcel Map (DL2017-0006) has been 
approved. (PLANNING) 

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this        day of               , 2017, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 218

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No.  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009 
 

Packet Pg. 219

Agenda Item #8.b.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DR2017-0009



P
acket P

g. 2
2

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
3

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
3

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
3

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
3

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
APPROVING A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

 
(Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DL2017-0006) 

 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 
 
 A. Tentative Parcel Map (DL2017-0006) allows an approximately 1.79-acre site to 
be subdivided into two (2) commercial parcels (APN 364-090-017). 
 
 B. A Notice of Exemption has been approved for this Project via Planning 
Resolution No. PC-2017-__. 
 
 C. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the approval of this 
subdivision on the housing needs of the region, and has balanced those needs against the 
public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 
 

D. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 
improvement, is consistent with the zoning classification on the property, Planned 
Development Commercial (PD-C). 
 
 E. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 
improvement, is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses, and programs in the 
City of Rocklin's General Plan. 
 
 F. The site is physically suitable for the proposed type and density of development. 
 
 G. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements is not likely to 
cause substantial environmental damage, nor will it substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 
 
 H. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not cause serious 
public health problems. 
 
 I. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict with 
easements acquired by the public at large for access through or use of the property within the 
proposed subdivision. 

Packet Pg. 234

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No.  

 J. The design of the subdivision provides, to the extent feasible, for future passive 
or natural heating and cooling opportunities. 
 
 Section 2. The tentative parcel map (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DL2017-0006) as 
depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is hereby 
approved, subject to the conditions listed below. The approved Exhibit A shall govern the 
design and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element 
incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other plans, 
specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable 
to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the condition for approval. 
Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each 
condition prior to approval of the final map. 
 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government Code 
§66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the date of 
approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest regarding any of the 
fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements, or other exaction contained in this 
notice, complying with all the requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be 
legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions   
 
1. Reciprocal Easements 

 
a. A reciprocal access and parking easement, or its legal equivalent in a form 

acceptable to the City Attorney, shall be recorded over and between each of the 
parcels comprising the subdivision and to the other parcels in the Sunset West 
Lot 59 shopping center (APN 364-090-015, 018, 019, and 023) prior to or 
concurrent with the recording of the final map. (CITY ATTORNEY, ENGINEERING) 

 
2. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 

 
Within 30 days of approval of the tentative parcel map by the City, the subdivider shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to indemnify, 
defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, 
void or annul an approval of the subdivision or parcel map by the City’s planning 
commission or City Council, which action is brought within the time period provided for 

Packet Pg. 235

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No.  

in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify the 
subdivider of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will cooperate in the 
defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless waived by the City, no further 
processing, permitting, implementation, plan checking or inspections related to the 
subdivision or parcel map shall be performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement 
has not been fully executed within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
3. Validity 
 

This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless prior to that 
date a final map has been recorded or a time extension has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this          day of                      , 2017, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
 
NOES:  Commissioners:  
 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 236

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
To Reso. No.  

EXHIBIT A 
 

STANFORD PLAZA PHASE 1C TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP / DL2017-0006 
 

Map 
 
 

 
 

Packet Pg. 237

Agenda Item #8.c.



P
acket P

g. 2
3

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DL2017-0006



 
 
 
 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

 
VILLAGES AT CIVIC CENTER – ROCKLIN CIVIC CENTER  

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, PDG2017-0005 
 
 

October 17, 2017 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff finds this project to be consistent with the General Plan and the Zoning 
designations applicable to the project site and recommends approval of the following: 
  
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE  ROCKLIN CIVIC 
CENTER GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, ORDINANCES 745 AND 899, TO MODIFY 
CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS WITHIN THE PD-8 ZONE DISTRICT  (Villages at Civic 
Center – Rocklin Civic Center (PDG2017-0005) 
 
Proposal 
 
This application is a request for approval of a General Development Plan Amendment to 
amend the development standards applicable to the RD-8 zone of the Rocklin Civic 
Center General Development Plan (Ordinance 745 and amended by Ordinance 899). 
 
Owner/Applicant 
 
The applicant and owner is Greg Judkins of Riverland Homes, Inc.   
 
General Site Information 
 
The subject property is comprised of the existing Rocklin Civic Center General 
Development Plan area. See Figure 1. 
  

Packet Pg. 239

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center 
October 17, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

Figure 1 – Project Area Map 
 

 
 

Packet Pg. 240

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center 
October 17, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
In September 1996, City Council approved a Rezone and adoption of a General 
Development Plan for the Rocklin Civic Center (Ordinance 745). In September, 2005, the 
Rocklin Civic Center General Development Plan was amended via Ordinance 899 in 
conjunction with the approval of the Villages at Civic Center. That project provided for 
the creation of single family lots fronting on Lost Avenue and Evelyn Way and a multi-
family townhouse project off of Ruhkala Road. Entitlements for the project included a 
Tentative Subdivision Map to create the proposed lots and a Design Review to approve 
the design of the townhouses. 
 
Due to the recession and other factors the project has not been developed to date.  
While the tentative subdivision map remains valid the design review for the townhouses 
has expired. The first City-approved time extension for the tentative map was approved 
by the Council on September 26, 2017. Riverland Homes, Inc. recently purchased the 
project and is looking to move the project forward. As a part of that effort, they have 
been working with neighbors and the City for approval of minor substantial compliance 
changes to the tentative subdivision map. Concurrently, they have requested 
modifications to the development standards applicable to the RD-8 zone of the Civic 
Center General Development Plan area to allow for greater flexibility in the design of 
the townhouse.  They have elected to move forward with a request for revisions to the 
RD-8 development standards in order to obtain certainty as to the standards that the 
townhome project will have to comply to.   
 
The City Council recently adopted Architectural Districts and the majority of the Civic 
Center General Development Plan area is included in the Quarry District. Both the 
townhomes and the single family homes along Lost Avenue developed as a part of the 
Villages at Civic Center project will now require design review approval. After the City 
Council takes final action on this proposed development standards amendment, the 
proponent will move forward with development of designs for both the townhomes and 
the single family homes to be submitted for review and approval. 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
General Plan 
 
The site is currently designated in the City’s General Plan as Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) and Mixed Use (MU). The General Development Plan Amendment is consistent 
with the General Plan in that there would be no change to the density or uses allowed in 
the PD-8 zone. 
 
Zoning 
 
The RD-8 (PD-8) zone would remain consistent with the current General Plan 
designation with no change to the density or uses allowed, and would continue to 

Packet Pg. 241

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center 
October 17, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
require that homes in the RD-8 zone be built in attached clusters of two to six units, but 
certain development standards would be modified to allow greater flexibility for home 
designs and give developers greater ability to respond to market demands when 
designing attached single family homes. The proposed amendment would remove a 
requirement for 50% of the units to be single story, correct an error regarding minimum 
versus maximum lot size, and require driveways to have a maximum length of 5 feet or 
not less than 18 feet (instead of 20 feet). See Attachment 1 for the proposed text 
revisions delineated by underline for new text and strikeout for removed text.  
 
Findings and Conclusions 
 

• Staff supports the request to remove the maximum of 8 foot driveway length 
applicable only to the previously approved Villages at Civic Center Tentative 
Subdivision Map and the request for a reduced minimum driveway length of 18 
feet from 20 feet in conjunction with the maximum length of 5 feet remaining. In 
recent years, the 5 feet maximum or 18 feet minimum driveway length standard 
has been applied consistently throughout the City for small lot detached and 
attached (e.g. townhome) single family zoning. Most recently, this driveway 
length standard was approved for Sierra Pine Subdivision (PD-8). This 
modification will encourage a greater variety of offsets as home plans with 
different features are developed and located on lots, thereby providing more 
flexibility and a greater variation of the house façades and the streetscape while 
discouraging parking on a short driveway (between 5 and 18 feet) where vehicles 
are likely to overhang the public right-of-way or internal path of travel. 

 
• Staff supports the requested removal of the requirement for a maximum of 50% 

of the units within the overall project area and within a cluster of units to be two 
stories. This modification responds to the demand for single family homes with 
larger square footage on relatively small lots. Further, this restriction has not 
been applied in any other General Development Plans within the City. 

 
• Staff recommends correcting the typographical error that was made to the Lot 

Size standard with the approval of Ordinance 899. In Ordinance 745, the Lot Size 
standard was Minimum Lot Area of 1,500 square feet. Ordinance 899 changed 
the lot size to 1,200 square feet and inadvertently changed ‘Minimum’ to 
‘Maximum’ as evidenced by the discussion in the staff report, which described 
reducing the minimum lot size from 1,500 square feet to 1,200 square feet to 
better accommodate the housing product proposed for Villages at Civic Center 
project. 
 

• The requested modifications would make the Rocklin Civic Center Plan more 
consistent with other similar zone districts throughout the City; encourage 

Packet Pg. 242

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center 
October 17, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 

creative and more efficient approach to the use of land; maximize the choice in 
the type of housing available in Rocklin; and provide a means for creativity and 
flexibility in design while providing adequate protection of the environment and 
of the health, safety, and comfort of the residents of the City.  

 
Environmental Determination 
 
The proposed revisions to the Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center General 
Development Plan are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not result in a direct 
or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they 
authorize the construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the 
environment. Therefore, this action is exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 
15061(b)(3) and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines.  
 
 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Rocklin Civic Center Amendment to the General Development 

Plan underline and strikeout version 
 
 
Prepared by Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Villages-Civic Center Plan PDG Amendment\Meeting Packets\PC - 10-17-17\01 
Villages-Civic Center Plan Amend PDG2017-0005 PC SR - final.docx 

Packet Pg. 243

Agenda Item #9.



ATTACHMENT 1 
Rocklin Civic Center 

Amendment to General Development Plan 
 
The Rocklin Civic Center Plan is proposed to be amended as follows, using underline to 
indicate new text and strikeout to indicate text being removed: 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-RESIDENTIAL (RD-8) 
 
The PD-R (RD-8) single family townhouse areas along Ruhkala Road will be regulated by 
chapter 17.60 of the Zoning Ordinance. This area shall also observe the following 
development standards. 
 

Maximum Dwelling Units per 
Acre 

8 

Housing Type Units must be attached in 
clusters of two to six units 

Maximum Height  
Primary Structures (A 
maximum of 50% of the 
units within the overall 
project area and within a 
particular cluster of units 
are allowed to be two 
stories. A cluster of units is 
defined as on(e) building 
with 2 to 6 attached 
dwelling units.) 

30 feet-2 stories 

Accessory Structures 14 feet 
Maximum Minimum Lot Size 1,200 square feet 
Maximum Total Project (Lot) 
Coverage 

50% 

Minimum Lot Width 30 feet interior 
35 feet corner lots 
(20 feet 8 inches)** 

Minimum Setbacks  
Front Garage (from interior 
street or driveway) 

Maximum of 5 feet or not 
less than 20 18 feet 
(Max of 8 feet) ** 

Front Dwelling Unit (from 
interior street or driveway) 

5 feet 

Project Perimeter 20 feet 
Between Buildings 20 feet 

Minimum Setback to a 
Designated Quarry* 

25 feet 

 
* Applicable quarries are those quarries depicted on the Project Area Boundary Map, 
Figure 2. 
** Applicable only to Tentative Subdivision Map (SD-2004-08) 
 

P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Villages-Civic Center Plan PDG Amendment\Meeting Packets\PC - 10-17-17\01a Villages-
Civic Center Plan Amend PDG2017-0005 ATT 1 - final.docx 

Packet Pg. 244

Agenda Item #9.



RESOLUTION NO. PC- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING 
APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ROCKLIN CIVIC CENTER GENERAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, ORDINANCES 745 AND 899, TO MODIFY CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS WITHIN THE PD-8 ZONE DISTRICT  

 
(Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center / PDG2017-0005) 

 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 

A. The proposed revisions to the Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center 
General Development Plan are not “projects” under CEQA because they do not result in a 
direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, nor do they 
authorize the construction of any new structures or other physical changes to the 
environment. Therefore, this action is exempt under sections 15060(c)(2) and (3), 
15061(b)(3) and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
B. The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Civic Center General Development 

Plan would modify certain development criteria applicable to homes built in the RD-8 (PD-
8) zone district, superseding the RD-8 development standards of Ordinances 745 and 899. 

 
 C. The area is physically suited to the uses authorized in the proposed general 
development plan amendment. 
 
 D. The proposed general development plan amendment and rezoning is 
compatible with the land uses existing and permitted on the properties in the vicinity. 
 
 E.  The land uses, and their density and intensity, allowed in the proposed 
general development plan amendment are not likely to create serious health problems or 
create nuisances on properties in the vicinity. 
 
 F. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the proposed 
general development plan amendment on the housing needs of the region and has 
balanced those needs against the public service needs of its residents and available fiscal 
and environmental resources. 
 

G. The requested modifications would make the Rocklin Civic Center Plan 
more consistent with other similar zone districts throughout the City; encourage a creative 
and more efficient approach to the use of land; maximize the choice in the type of housing 
available in Rocklin; and provide a means for creativity and flexibility in design while 
providing adequate protection of the environment and of the health, safety, and comfort of 
the residents of the City. 

Packet Pg. 245

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 2 
Reso No. 

 
 Section 2. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin hereby recommends City 
Council approval of the general development plan amendment in the form as shown on 
Attachment 1, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2017, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 246

Agenda Item #9.a.



ATTACHMENT 1 

Page 1 of Attachment 1 
To Reso No. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING 
APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ROCKLIN CIVIC CENTER GENERAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, ORDINANCES 745 AND 899, TO MODIFY CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS WITHIN THE PD-8 ZONE DISTRICT  

 
(Villages at Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center / PDG2017-0005) 

 
 

 The City Council of the City of Rocklin does ordain as follows: 
 

 Section 1.   Findings.  The City Council of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 

 
A. The proposed amendment to the Rocklin Civic Center General Development 

Plan would modify certain development criteria applicable to homes built in the RD-8 (PD-
8) zone district, superseding the RD-8 development standards of Ordinances 745 and 899. 

 
 B. The area is physically suited to the uses authorized in the proposed general 
development plan amendment. 
 
 C. The proposed general development plan amendment is compatible with 
the land uses existing and permitted on the properties in the vicinity. 
 
 D.  The land uses, and their density and intensity, allowed in the proposed 
general development plan amendment are not likely to create serious health problems or 
create nuisances on properties in the vicinity. 
 
 E. The City Council has considered the effect of the proposed general 
development plan amendment on the housing needs of the region and has balanced those 
needs against the public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and 
environmental resources. 
 
 F. The requested modifications would make the Rocklin Civic Center Plan 
more consistent with other similar zone districts throughout the City; encourage a creative 
and more efficient approach to the use of land; maximize the choice in the type of housing 
available in Rocklin; and provide a means for creativity and flexibility in design while 
providing adequate protection of the environment and of the health, safety, and comfort 
of the residents of the City. 
  

Packet Pg. 247

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 2 of Attachment 1 
To Reso No. 

 
Section 2.  Authority. The City Council enacts this ordinance under the 

authority granted to cities by Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution. 
 
Section 3. Environmental. The proposed revisions to the Villages at Civic 

Center – Rocklin Civic Center General Development Plan are not “projects” under CEQA 
because they do not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in 
the environment, nor do they authorize the construction of any new structures or other 
physical changes to the environment. Therefore, this action is exempt under sections 
15060(c)(2) and (3), 15061(b)(3) and 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
Section 4. Severability. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase 

or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  City Council hereby declares that it would 
have adopted the Ordinance and each section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, sub-sections, 
sentences, clauses, phrases or portions to be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
Section 5.   Effective Date. Within 15 days of the passage of this 

ordinance, the City Clerk shall cause the full text of the ordinance, with the names of those 
City Council members voting for and against the ordinance, to be published in the Placer 
Herald.  In lieu of publishing the full text of the ordinance, the City Clerk, if so directed by 
the City Attorney and within 15 days, shall cause a summary of the ordinance, prepared by 
the City Attorney and with the names of the City Council members voting for and against 
the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald, and shall post in the office of the City 
Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the ordinance, along with the names of those City 
Council members voting for and against the ordinance.  The publication of a summary of 
the ordinance in lieu of the full text of the ordinance is authorized only where the 
requirements of Government Code section 36933(c)(1) are met. 

 
 

  
 INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rocklin held on 
____________________, 20___, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers: 

NOES:  Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers 
 
  

Packet Pg. 248

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 3 of Attachment 1 
To Reso No. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Rocklin held on __________, 20__, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers:  

NOES:  Councilmembers:  

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:  

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:  
Effective Date:  

 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Villages-Civic Center Plan PDG Amendment\Meeting Packets\PC - 10-17-17\02 Villages-
Civic Center Plan Amend PDG2017-0005 PC Reso - final.docx 
  

Packet Pg. 249

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 4 of Attachment 1 
To Reso No. 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Rocklin Civic Center  
Amendment to General Development Plan 

 
 The Rocklin Civic Center Plan is amended as follows: 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-RESIDENTIAL (RD-8) 
 
The PD-R (RD-8) single family townhouse will be regulated by chapter 17.60 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. This area shall also observe the following development standards. 
 
 

Maximum Dwelling Units per 
Acre 

8 

Housing Type Units must be attached in 
clusters of two to six units 

Maximum Height  
Primary Structures 30 feet-2 stories 
Accessory Structures 14 feet 

Minimum Lot Size 1,200 square feet 
Maximum Total Project (Lot) 
Coverage 

50% 

Minimum Lot Width 30 feet interior 
35 feet corner lots 
(20 feet 8 inches)** 

Minimum Setbacks  
Front Garage (from interior 
street or driveway) 

Maximum of 5 feet or not 
less than 18 feet  

Front Dwelling Unit (from 
interior street or driveway) 

5 feet 

Project Perimeter 20 feet 
Between Buildings 20 feet 

Minimum Setback to a 
Designated Quarry* 

25 feet 

 
* Applicable quarries are those quarries depicted on the Project Area Boundary Map, 
Figure 2. 
** Applicable only to Tentative Subdivision Map (SD-2004-08) 

Packet Pg. 250

Agenda Item #9.a.


	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION
	1. Meeting called to order at
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	4. Minutes
	a. October 3, 2017 Minutes
	[10.03.17  PC Minutes.pdf]


	5. Correspondence
	6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items

	CONSENT ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	7. WHITNEY RANCH PHASE III SUBDIVISION
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, GPA2017-0003
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, PDG2017-0004
REZONE, Z2017-0005
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, SD2017-0007 

This application is a request for approval of a General Plan Amendment, a General Development Plan Amendment, a Rezone, and a Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map to modify various land use designations and zoning, and to further subdivide five existing parcels totaling approximately 41.2 acres into 208 single-family residential lots, twelve lettered lots for landscaping, access, and utilities.

The project area is comprised of five Units within the existing Whitney Ranch Phase 1 and Phase 2 development areas specifically: Unit 1, APN 017-171-030, the northwest corner of Wildcat Blvd & Bridlewood Dr.; Unit 42, 017-177-011,  the southeast corner of Painted Pony Ln. and Whitney Ranch Parkway; Units 44A & 44B, APN 017-174-045, the northeast corner of Old Ranchhouse Road & Whitney Ranch Parkway;  and Unit 55C, and a portion of APN 017-182-018, northeast of the terminus of Painted Pony Ln.

An Environmental Impact Report for the North West Rocklin Annexation (Sunset Ranchos) project was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council through Resolution No. 2002-230 and an Addendum to the Northwest Rocklin Annexation EIR was approved in 2008 per City Council Resolution 2008-252. The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes.

The owner is Sunset Ranchos Investors, LLC; the applicant is Ubora Engineering & Planning.

	[_01 Whitney Ranch P3 SD2017-0007 PC  SR 10-17-17 - final.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council  Approval of a Resolution Amending the General Plan Land Use Designations for Multiple Sites in the Whitney Ranch / Sunset Ranchos Planning Area (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / GPA2017-0003)
	[_02 Whitney Ranch P3 Reso GPA2017-0003 - final.pdf]

	b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council Approval of an Ordinance Approving the Twelfth Amendment to the North West Rocklin Annexation Area General Development Plan, Replacing and Superseding Ordinance 1060 and Retaining Ordinance 932, and Rezoning Multiple Sites in the Whitney Ranch / Sunset Ranchos Planning Area (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / PDG2017-0004 And Z2017-0005)
	[_03 Whitney Ranch P3 PC  Reso PDG2017-0004-Z2017-0005 - final.pdf]

	c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending City Council Approval of a Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map (Whitney Ranch Phase III Subdivision / SD2017-0007)
	[_04 Whitney Ranch P3 SD2017-0007 PC Reso 10-17-17 - final.pdf]


	8. STANFORD PLAZA PHASE 1C
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2017-0009
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL2017-0006

This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Parcel Map to divide a vacant 1.79-acre site within the Stanford Plaza retail development into two lots (Parcel 1 = 0.75 acres; and Parcel 2 = 1.04 acres) and a Design Review to construct two buildings and associated parking lot and landscaping. The subject property is located on the southwest corner of Sunset Boulevard and Pebble Creek Drive.  APN 364-090-019.

A review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) has determined that a Categorical Exemption is the appropriate level of environmental review for this project, pursuant to Section 15332 - Infill Development Projects.

The applicant is Borges Architectural Group.  The property owner is Eureka Development Company.

	[01 SR- Stanford Plaza Phase 1C w-att.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009 And DL2017-0006)
	[03 Reso NOE - Stanford Plaza Phase 1C.pdf]

	b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DR2017-0009)
	[04 Reso DR - Stanford Plaza Phase1C w-exh A.pdf]

	c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Tentative Parcel Map (Stanford Plaza Phase 1C / DL2017-0006)
	[06 Reso DL - Stanford Plaza Phase 1C w-exh A.pdf]


	9. VILLAGES AT CIVIC CENTER (CIVIC CENTER PLAN) 
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, PDG2017-0005

This application is a request for approval of an amendment to the Civic Center General Development Plan to modify certain development standards applicable in the Planned Development Residential, 8 units per acre (RD-8) zone.  The subject property is made up of seven parcels totaling approximately 12.45 gross acres generally located east of Ruhkala Road, west of Lost Avenue, and north of Evelyn Avenue. Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs) 010-191-029, -032, -048, -049, -077 and 010-260-038 and -048.

A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council through Resolution No. 2005-306. The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes.

The applicant and property owner is Greg Judkins of Riverland Homes, Inc.

	[Villages-Civic Center Plan Amend PDG2017-0005 PC SR complete.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of an Ordinance Amending the  Rocklin Civic Center General Development Plan, Ordinances 745 and 899, to Modify Certain Development Standards Within the PD-8 Zone District  (Villages At Civic Center – Rocklin Civic Center (PDG2017-0005)
	[02 Villages-Civic Center Plan Amend PDG2017-0005 PC Reso - final.pdf]



	NON PUBLIC HEARINGS
	10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners
	11. Reports from City Staff
	12. Adjournment


